Public Document Pack

Development Control A
Committee
Agenda
Date: Wednesday, 9 January 2019
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: The Council Chamber - City Hall, College
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Donald Alexander (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Clive Stevens, Mark Wright,
Fabian Breckels, Tony Carey, Stephen Clarke, Mike Davies, Margaret Hickman, Olly Mead and
Afzal Shah
Copies to: Claudette Campbell (Democratic Services Officer), Gary Collins, Jeremy Livitt, Natalie
Queffurus, Ken Reid and Charlotte Sangway

Issued by: Claudette Campbell, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 922 2342
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Monday, 31 December 2018

Development Control A Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

2.

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda.
Please note that any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not
on the register of interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for
inclusion.

4.

Minutes of the previous meeting

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

Appeals

To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision.

6.

(Pages 13 - 23)

Enforcement

To note recent enforcement notices.

7.

(Pages 4 - 12)

Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on Tuesday
8th January 2019.

(Page 24)

Development Control A Committee – Agenda

Please note, your time allocated to speak may have to be strictly limited if
there are a lot of submissions. This may be as short as one minute.

8.

Planning and Development
(Page 25)

9.

a)

18.02902.F - Land north side of Belgrave Hill

(Pages 26 - 88)

b)

18.02302.F - Land bounded Winterstoke Road

(Pages 89 - 139)

c)

18.03064.F - The Old Sports Centre West Town Road

(Pages 140 - 168)

d)

18.05778.H - 7 Beryl Road

(Pages 169 - 182)

Date of Next Meeting

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Development Control A
Committee
28 November 2018 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:Councillors: Donald Alexander (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Clive Stevens, Fabian Breckels,
Stephen Clarke, Harriet Clough, Mike Davies, Margaret Hickman, Olly Mead and Richard Eddy
Officers in Attendance:Claudette Campbell (Democratic Services Officer), Gary Collins, Paul Chick, Andrew Cross and Lewis Cook

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair, Councillor D Alexander led introductions and welcomed those present.
2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor T Carey (substituted by Cllr R Eddy) and Councillor M
Wright (substituted by Cllr H Clough) and Cllr A Shah.
3. Declarations of Interest



Councillor S Clarke referenced Item 8(d) advising of his former links with the Bristol Port Authority
Councillor C Stevens acted as City Council’s non-executive Director to the Bristol Port Authority
and confirmed he had not been contacted by any part in relation to 8(d)
o Both stated they have made no pre-determination in the matter of 8(d) Avonmouth and
Severnside Enterprise Area

4. Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 17th October 2018 be approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chair, noting the following:


That Cllr R Eddy be removed from the attendance list

Page 4

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk




That Cllr L Alexander substituted for Cllr T Carey
The heading for agenda item 8(a) should read 17/05149/F Land adjacent to the Quays

5. Appeals
The Head of Development Management explained how the appeals process operated. He referred to the
following cases and outlined the latest situation in each case:






Appeal no 11 Hamilton House: Planning Inspectorate on appeal agreed with the Council’s decision.
Appeal no 14 Station rd Shirehampton: this was decided on delegate decision, a public inquiry has
just concluded with the decision to be delivered shortly.
Appeal no 18 & 19 Mortimer House: The appeal against committee decision was allowed by the
planning inspectorate further details will be shared with DC B at their next meeting.
Appeal no 20 Whiteladies Road: Officers had recommended approval but committee refused. The
inspectorate accepted that the proposed
Appeal 65 Raj Mahal City Clarence Road: Appeal on refusal the PI agreed Council’s case and
dismissed the appeal.

6. Enforcement
It was noted that there was 4 standard notices and 1 continuance notices served since the last
committee. Further explanation on the enforcement action taken for adverts still on display passed the
agreed date.
7. Public Forum
Members of the Committee received Public Forum Statements in advance of the meeting.
The statements were heard from before the application they related to and were taken fully into
consideration by the Committee prior to reaching a decision.
8. Planning and Development
The Committee considered the following Planning Applications
9. 18/01890/F - The Bell, Prewett Street
The representative of the Head of Development Management made the following points by Way of
introduction:
a. The details of the application site were outlined

Page 5

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

b. The proposed layout was shown
c. The development proposed to deliver 196 residential units; 176 units in the main residential
building; the remaining 20 units above the proposed sports building; the affordable housing
provision would be situated above the sports building and at lower levels in the main building (19
units).
d. The development site is bound to the north by the Double Tree Hilton Hotel complex; Magdalena
Court, a 3 and 4 storey residential building; to the east Proctor House, a 10 storey residential
block; to the west the 4 storey Corinthian Court residential development; Broughton House a 13
storey resident block to the south.
e. The site is considered suitable for development but the proposed scheme is not acceptable.
f. The concerns were raised following public consultation, fully detailed in the report, summarised as
follows:
i.
The design is bulky and wrong in context and approach for the site
ii.
Viewed as overbearing because of the proposed height and density of the development
iii.
The heritage impact of the development on St Mary Redcliffe Church
iv.
Concerns that the BRE Guidelines on daylight and natural light are not met in many of the
units
g. The impact of the BRE guidelines on the development were shared via visuals with the committee
h. Committee were referred to the supplementary document produced by the planning officer, that
was shared with Committee on 23rd November and published for public scrutiny, that assessed the
scheme against the Urban Living SPD which was adopted on 7th November 2018.
i. Committee were advised that planning officers attempted to resolve issues with the applicants but
they failed to engage to resolve the issues. The applicants instructed officers that they required
the application to be determined by Committee on its merits.
j. Committee were advised to refuse the application as it undermines the SPD; poor design, failure
to consider surrounding buildings; the negative impact on St Mary Redcliffe Church; the design
was viewed as oppressive and overbearing.
Questions for Clarification
k. Proposed sports centre: Members asked about who would run the centre; what noise assessment
had been made: Officers advised that as refusal was the primary position the details around the
sports centre had yet to be worked through.
l. Member commented that if the BRE guidelines were applied to previous developments a number
of buildings would not have been constructed. Officers commented that they had worked with
current guidelines and had clearly demonstrated the impact on neighbouring buildings to
committee both in the report and the visual shared during the presentation.
m. Questions were asked on the Urban Living SPD: Officers confirmed that they were obligated to
have due regard to current policy; the SPD was a key material consideration from the date of
adoption (7th November); the application must be compared against the SDP; it is not possible to
say without doubt that a decision made by committee is appeal proof; the SDP provided good
grounds for the officer recommendation.
n. Question was asked as to whether the developers were given the opportunity to respond to the
analysis made against SPD. Officers explained that the applicants had not been given a specific
opportunity in the run-up to the Committee meeting but had previously been given the

Page 6

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

opportunity to defer the application to another meeting in order for a wider discussion on the SPD
analysis but insisted that it continued to be considered at this meeting.
o. Officers confirmed that the building design reflected the standard national requirement in respect
of accessibility.
p. Affordable Housing: this would be located above the sports centre, together, and on the lower
floors of the main building to allow for the Housing Association to manage the scheme; unlikely
that it could be conditioned to mix the affordable housing across the development as this did not
fit the ask from social housing landlords; the location of the affordable housing is one of the many
issues that could have been explored further with the applicant; similar position with the
management/operation of the sports hall.
q. The Tree replacement scheme was another item not progressed because of Officers
recommendation to refuse.
r. Basketball Court: Officers shared that they received a mixed response from the public
consultation. A number reported that it was a site of anti-social behaviour; the police say there
had been no recent reported incidents; not known if this is because residents have failed to
continue to report due to apathy; the court is well used by children from the local secondary
school;
s. St Mary Redcliffe Church – Heritage Asset; discussion on how great a weight should be applied to
the loss of view from the Bath Road; if less than substantial harm how much weight should be
given when making a determination on the development; comments were made that there were
other available views to the asset.
t. CCTV: the options relating to the inclusion of CCTV cameras on the development was another
issue that would need to be progressed if members were minded to support the development.
This could be included in any s106 negotiations.
Member Debate
u. Cllr Eddy: noted the difficult location; the comments related to the heritage asset; that the area
was in need of development; that it would enhance the site; the sports centre would be of
benefit; that the development would assist in addressing the housing crisis. Minded to support the
application.
v. Cllr Hickman: pleased that the area would be developed but shocked by the proposed visual
impact of the building and the related impact on daylight and natural light into surrounding
buildings; although known as a deprived area what was needed is a development with greater
imagination; if what was proposed was lower with less negative impact it would be more
acceptable and was minded to support officers recommendation to refuse.
w. Cllr M Davies: the design is for a big and overbearing development; it would go towards satisfying
the need for much needed housing; a number of issues are unresolved including whether the
basketball court should be retained; considered that the matter should be deferred to allow for
the unresolved issues to be worked through and then brought back to committee.
x. Cllr Windows: a number of conflicting issues had arisen from the scheme; there was a need for
housing and affordable housing but did it outweigh the issues raised by the officers in the report;
is there substantial harm to the heritage asset not so sure as this depends on where you stand to
view the asset. Minded to vote against Officers advice.

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

y. Cllr S Clarke: Having read the analysis of the development in line with the SPD minded to agree
with officers advice.
z. Cllr Breckels: viewed the benefits and challenges of the development; noted the impact of the tall
building on surrounding buildings; the site needed development but he was not impressed with
the impact of the proposal on neighbouring properties and the location of social housing in the
scheme.
aa. Cllr Mead: Referenced the SPD and guidance in respect to weighting given to heritage assets;
would it be appropriate to add another ugly building to the area to satisfy the housing crisis; the
design gave no consideration to the accessibility needs of the disabled and the future needs of an
aging population; the design of the building is overbearing; agreed that future discussion needed
on the retention of the basketball court; minded to agree with officers recommendation to refuse.
bb. Cllr Clough: reminded all that such a development had the potential to have a negative impact on
the mental wellbeing of tenants; the development should be accessible for all and the minimum
space standard given failed to do this; minded to agree with Officers recommendation to refuse.
cc. Cllr Stevens: shared that he failed to see the relevance of the view of St Mary Redcliffe Church
from Bath Road; noted and accepted the guidance daylight/natural light into the development and
impact on surrounding properties; would give the matter further thought before voting.
dd. Chair: took the view that there was no justification for a development that was second rate; the
area required a development of quality and what was proposed was not.
ee. Cllr Mead proposed that Committee accepted officers reasons for refusal, seconded by Cllr
Clough.
Resolved: (7 for refusal and 3 against refusal) that the application be refused on the grounds set out in
the officers report.
10.18/02302/F - Land Bounded By Luckwell Road and Lynwood Road
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.
11.17/06631/F - 17 Bridge Walk
The representative of the Head of Development Management made the following points by Way of
introduction:
a. The details of the application were outlined.
b. The plans for the development were presented and salient points of the design explained.
c. The scheme would require the demolition of a property for the construction of a 3 storey building
containing 7 dwellings.
d. The development was within 50 metres of an urban centre; with access to public transport; the
units proposed were appropriate for the area.

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

e. The design included to the rear 2 storey level in line with the neighbouring property; the buildings
local to the development were of various designs; the proposed development incorporated the
red brick theme from a number of properties into the design; the design was viewed as
contemporary; made good use of the land.
f. One parking space was included in the development for the family unit; cycle storage provision
was included in design.
g. The roof incorporated solar panels in its design.
h. Officers recommended approval with conditions.
Questions from Members for Clarification:
i. Parking: explanation was sought on the decision to include just one designated parking area on
the development. Members were concerned about possible future contention; impact of
residents cars on an already crowded highway.
j. Officer advised that the original design included an area for parking for 5-6 cars with access via a
driveway; there was concerned about the negative impact of a car park on neighbouring
properties; but the decision was taken to revise the design and replace it with a garden area for
the use of all residents; the design included storage and refuge area to prevent any other vehicle
to access the site, other than the one vehicle attached to the family unit; there are no parking
controls in the area; on street parking was available; the site is sustainable so the decision was
made that it was unnecessary to commission a parking survey.
k. Officers were asked to explain the impact of the development on the adjacent property to the rear
of the development. The modification at that level reflected the neighbouring 2 storey at the rear;
no.25 had an extension that backed onto the development.
l. Glazing of the windows: the condition to include obscure glazing to the west side was not
necessary to the East side of the development because the outlook was different.
Member Debate:
m. Cllr M Davies: considered it a striking and modern design and was pleased to see it on a small scale
development; made good use of the land; had some concern about the parking of resident’s cars
on the highway and possible negative impact but was minded to support.
n. Cllr Mead: minded to vote against; considered the design favourable; had grave concerns about
the issues arising from additional cars in an area following a decision that a development was
sustainable; this had the potential to impact negatively on the area; but on the other hand agreed
with the decision not to include a car park in the development.
o. Cllr Clarke: liked the design of the development; considered the designed blended well with
existing buildings in the area.
p. Cllr Breckels: expressed concern about the potential future car parking issues; viewed the design
as ugly and believed it clashed with surrounding buildings; minded not to support.
q. Cllr Windows: agreed with Cllr Mead about the car parking issues and believed that officers had
underestimated the impact of the situation.
r. Cllr Stevens: liked the design and did not consider resident’s parking an issue, as on street parking
was available so was minded to support the application.
s. Cllr Eddy moved to support the officer recommended to grant and Cllr Davies seconded
Resolved (7 for and 3 against) that the application be granted as set out in the report.

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Cllr Richard Eddy left the meeting at 16:21, there were now 9 members present for the final item.
12.18/02847/FB - Avonmouth and Severnside Enterprise Area
The representative of the Head of Development Management made the following points by Way of
introduction:
a. The details of the application site were outlined
b. A number of maps of the Avonmouth & Severnside Enterprise Area were shared
c. The summary of the development extracted from the report:
 The application relates to a major infrastructure project to provide addition flood
protection works and ecological mitigation works in the Avonmouth area.
 The project runs from Lamplighters Marsh in the south up to the Severn Crossing in South
Gloucestershire, and hence parallel applications have been submitted to both authorities.
 The project intends to provide two areas of ecological mitigation, to include proposed
wetland environment at Hallen Marsh.
 The project intends to protect existing homes and business, has the potential of providing
additional employment land to meet the needs of the city.
d. Concerns were raised from the public consultation
 Challenge to the Flood Risk Assessment
 The amendment sheet with committee detailed the issues raised by the Bristol Port
Company with regards the modelling that was undertaken and the issues relating to the
Lock Gates.
e. Offices sought Delegated Authority to enable the finalisation of the detailed technical conditions
relating to the application.
f. Committee were advised that both authorities had to approve the development of this joint
project, to enable matters to progress. South Gloucestershire would be considering the
application in the New Year towards the end of January or early February 2019.
g. Officers requested that Committee delegate authority to Officers to grant planning permission
subject to conditions (to be granted) and to delay issuing the decision such that it coincided with
the decision being made on the South Gloucestershire application.
Questions for clarification
h. Concerns were raised about the Lock Gate issue not being resolved before the application came to
committee. Members asked:
 Why the lock gate issue had not been resolved before the application came to committee
 Whether the application could be taken in part to allow for the a resolution of the lock
gates
 If the application could be deferred
i. Officers advised

Page 10

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk



that the development would not preclude an opportunity for future consideration on the
issue of funding (of the Lock Gates) and to formulate a solution, but not as part of this
application.
 That Officers were unable to direct that the suggested works were completed at this stage
as the wider issue is with other parties to determine;
 the application could be deferred for wider discussion on the lock gates but there is no
immediate solution available on the issue,;
 the application provided resilience to the area notwithstanding the gap;
 that future discussions on conditions to extend the length of the wall can be part of the
development process;
j. Trees: Officers advised that the tree replacement conditions would be developed further and
could be done via phasing scheme to be conditioned.
k. Questions were asked of Officers relating to the timing of the current application in relation to the
wider scheme.
l. Officers explained that the application put to committee had to be considered and not the scope
of the project. The scope of the project has been determined by others although further
consideration to closing the gap up to the lock gates is being discussed with the relevant parties;;
and that there were alternative solutions to the lock gates from yet undetermined flood defences
options which may come forward in the future.
m. It was asked of Officers whether committee could be provided with an update on unresolved
conditions on the 9th January. Members were informed that an update can be provided at a
future meeting and that information can be issued in tandem with South Gloucestershire.
n. Officers provided a further explanation to the maps detailing the flooding scenarios with and
without the scheme.
o. Members asked whether the scheme did more good than harm and Officers gave assurance that it
did.
Member Debate:
p. Cllr Clarke questioned whether committee could approve the scheme in its current format.
q. Cllr Stevens stated he would find it difficult to approve a scheme with a ‘hole’ in it.
r. Cllr Davies concluded that the report was very technical and it was right to trust the observations
and guidance of Officers in this instance; that the application would have a major impact on
preventing floods events.
s. Cllr Windows concluded that the application did more good than harm to the area in question and
would support Officers recommendation.
t. Chair was aware of local issues and would support Officers recommendation and for delegated
decision to Officers.
u. Cllr Clough proposed and Cllr Windows seconded that committee accept the Officers
recommendation as set out in the Amendment sheet and grant the applications subject to
conditions and grant Officers delegated authority.
v. When put to the vote:
Resolved (5 for; 3 against; 1 abstention) that the application be approved subject to the
recommendations detailed in the amendment sheet and agreed conditions. That Officers have
delegated authority to issue the decision as set out in the report.

Page 11

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Meeting ended at 5.17 pm
CHAIR __________________

Page 12

Agenda Item 5

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A
9th January 2019
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR - PLANNING
LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS
Householder appeal
Item

Ward

Text0:
1
Ashley

Address, description and appeal type
16 Kathdene Gardens Bristol BS7 9BN
Two storey extension to the rear of the property and new
dormer loft conversion with roof balcony and raised deck.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
2
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

14 Southfield Road Westbury Bristol BS9 3BH
Replacement of existing wooden single glazed sash windows
with uPVC double glazed units (3no. at the front of the house
facing the street, 3no. at the rear).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
3
Lawrence Hill

30 Eve Road Bristol BS5 0JX
Loft conversion & ground floor extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
4
Bedminster

Text0:
5
Ashley

21 December 2018

Advertising Next To 267 West Street Bedminster Bristol BS3
3PZ
Replacement of existing internally illuminated 48-sheet
backlight advertising display with an internally illuminated 48sheet digital advertising display.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
62 North Road Bishopston Bristol BS6 5AF
Excavation and construction of a new driveway.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 13

Date lodged

23/10/2018

26/10/2018

29/10/2018

05/12/2018

05/12/2018

Page 1 of 11

Text0:
6
Lockleaze

Text0:
7
Stoke Bishop

Text0:
8
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

16 Baily Place Cheswick Village Bristol BS16 1BG
Erection of a first floor, side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
49 The Crescent Sea Mills Bristol BS9 2JT
Proposed first floor rear extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
2 Arrowfield Close Bristol BS14 0UQ
Proposed two storey side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

10/12/2018

11/12/2018

11/12/2018

Informal hearing
Item

Ward

Text0:
9
Filwood

Address, description and appeal type
PX Centre Bedminster Road Bristol BS3 5NR
Outline planning application (with access, layout, scale and
appearance to be considered) for redevelopment of the site
to provide 32no. self-contained flats (Use Class C3) with
associated access, parking, drainage and hard/soft
landscape works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Date of hearing

TBA

Public inquiry
Item

Ward

Text0:
10
Central

21 December 2018

Address, description and appeal type
Old Bristol Royal Infirmary Building Marlborough Street
(South Side) City Centre Bristol BS1 3NU
Demolition of the existing buildings and redevelopment of the
site to provide a part 7, 8 and 9 storey building fronting
Marlborough Street, comprising 715 student bedspaces;
communal areas and central courtyard; and erection of part
4, 5 and 6 storey building to the rear to accommodate a mix
of uses, including office floorspace (Use Class B1) and/or
medical school (Use Class D1) equating to 6,860sqm and a
small commercial unit; associated access road, landscaping,
public realm improvements, undercroft car parking and cycle
parking. (MAJOR).
Appeal against non-determination
Committee

Page 14

Date of inquiry

TBA

Page 2 of 11

Text0:
11
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

8 - 10 Station Road Shirehampton Bristol BS11 9TT
Demolition of glasshouses and redevelopment to form 33 No.
apartments for the elderly, guest apartment, communal
facilities, access, car parking and landscaping.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
12
Ashley

15-16 Brunswick Square Bristol BS2 8NX
Proposed change of use from Private Members' Club (Sui
Generis) at ground floor and lower ground floor with ancillary
office use on the upper floors to office floorspace (B1a) on all
floors with associated provision of waste storage and bicycle
parking facilities and external alterations.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
13
Ashley

15-16 Brunswick Square Bristol BS2 8NX
Internal and external works associated with the proposed
change of use from Private Members' Club (Sui Generis) at
ground floor and lower ground floor with ancillary office use
on the upper floors to office floorspace (B1a) on all floors with
associated provision of waste storage and bicycle parking
facilities.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

20/11/2018

19/03/2019

19/03/2019

Written representation
Item

Ward

Text0:
14
Lawrence Hill

Address, description and appeal type
199 Avonvale Road Bristol BS5 9SR
Enforcement Appeal against notice served for works to roof
including front dormer without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
15
Bishopston &
Ashley Down

318 Gloucester Road Horfield Bristol BS7 8TJ
Enforcement notice appeal for extension at rear of property.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
16
Cotham

16 Clyde Road Redland Bristol BS6 6RP
Partial demolition of existing garage/store structure and
erection of a single storey, 1 bedroom dwelling with revised
access.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

21 December 2018

Page 15

Date lodged

28/08/2018

10/09/2018

10/09/2018

Page 3 of 11

Text0:
17
Clifton Down

36 Hampton Park Bristol BS6 6LH
Construction of a one bed house, sunken into existing rear
garden.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
18
Bishopston &
Ashley Down

126 Downend Road Horfield Bristol BS7 9PW
Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a
Proposed use or development - Existing garage converted to
annex to main house.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
19
Easton

112 Robertson Road Bristol BS5 6JW
Erection of single residential dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
20
Central

Text0:
21
Clifton

Text0:
22
Filwood

Text0:
23
Lawrence Hill

Text0:
24
Redland

21 December 2018

City Point Temple Gate Bristol BS1 6PL
LED Digital Smartscreen.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
85 Queens Road Clifton Bristol BS8 1QS
1 x internally illuminated Fascia Sign. 1x Internally illuminated
Hanging Sign.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
13 Leinster Avenue Bristol BS4 1NH
Erection of a two storey, 3-bed detached dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Public Footpath West Side Of Bond Street South Bristol BS1
3EN
This application seeks consent for the erection and display of
a single sided advertising structure to be used to show
illuminated advertisements capable of automatic change of
image.
Appeal against refusal
Committee
22B Gloucester Road Bishopston Bristol BS7 8AE
Removal of existing dormer for proposed enlarged dormer
extension with external access onto roof as a result of
alteration to existing lean to roof to flat roof.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 16

10/09/2018

13/09/2018

24/09/2018

03/10/2018

04/10/2018

04/10/2018

04/10/2018

08/10/2018

Page 4 of 11

Text0:
25
Ashley

Text0:
26
Ashley

Text0:
27
Hillfields

Text0:
28
Southmead

Land Next To 75 City Road Bristol BS2 8UQ
New three storey end of terrace building containing 2no.
residential units.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Wadham Mansions Balmoral Road Bristol BS7 9AU
Erection of a 4 storey building comprising 2 No (1 bed-space)
studio apartments and 1 No (4 bed-space) 2 bedroom
duplex, with cycle store, attached to existing 4 storey block of
apartments.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
16 Woodcote Road Bristol BS16 4DE
Proposed new 1no. bedroom house, on land adjacent to 16
Woodcote road and a 2 storey extension to the existing
house.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
21 Shetland Road Bristol BS10 5JT
Erection of a detached dwellinghouse.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
29
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

16 Grove Leaze Bristol BS11 9QN
Erection of a single storey rear extension.
Appeal against conditions imposed
Delegated decision

Text0:
30
Stockwood

18 Burfoote Gardens Bristol BS14 8TE
Conversion of existing garage and erection of a first floor
extension to provide a two storey dwelling house.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
31
Stoke Bishop

Text0:
32
Easton

21 December 2018

19 Druid Hill Bristol BS9 1EW
Single storey side extension to extend existing hair salon.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
28 York Road Easton Bristol BS5 6BJ
Application for a Certificate of Proposed Development proposed porch.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 17

08/10/2018

16/10/2018

17/10/2018

18/10/2018

26/10/2018

08/11/2018

12/11/2018

15/11/2018

Page 5 of 11

Text0:
33
Clifton Down

Text0:
34
Clifton Down

Text0:
35
Clifton Down

Text0:
36
Hillfields

Text0:
37
Eastville

Text0:
38
Cotham

Text0:
39
Lawrence Hill

21 December 2018

40 - 44 St Pauls Road Clifton Bristol BS8 1LR
Retrospective application for the erection of a timber
structures over the rear patio area.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
40 - 44 St Pauls Road Clifton Bristol BS8 1LR
Retrospective application for the erection of a timber
structure over the rear patio area.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
40 - 44 St Pauls Road Clifton Bristol BS8 1LR
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of timber
structures to rear without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

62 Hillfields Avenue Bristol BS16 4JP
New dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land And Buildings On The South Side Sandy Lane Bristol
BS5 6SP
Enforcement notice appeal for use of garage/store for
commercial car repairs (COU).
Appeal against an enforcement notice

12E Alfred Place Kingsdown Bristol BS2 8HD
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of dormer without
planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Site ND6 Temple Quay Land Bounded By Providence Place,
Old Bread Street & Avon Street Bristol BS2 0ZZ
Erection of a 6- to 11-storey building comprising 120 no.
(PRS - privately rented sector), residential units (1-, 2- and 3bed), 524 sqm of flexible commercial floorspace (Use
Classes A1, A2, A3, A4, B1a, D1 or D2) at ground floor level
and associated development, including landscaping, public
realm, bin storage, plant areas and cycle parking (Major
application).
Appeal against non-determination
Committee

Page 18

27/11/2018

27/11/2018

27/11/2018

05/12/2018

10/12/2018

10/12/2018

10/12/2018

Page 6 of 11

Text0:
40
Ashley

Text0:
41
Ashley

Text0:
42
Ashley

The Full Moon Backpacker Hotel And Attic Bar North Street
City Centre Bristol BS1 3PR
The retention of an automated teller machine and associated
signage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
The Full Moon Backpacker Hotel And Attic Bar North Street
City Centre Bristol BS1 3PR
The retention of an automated teller machine and associated
signage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
The Full Moon Backpacker Hotel And Attic Bar North Street
City Centre Bristol BS1 3PR
The retention of 1no illuminated top sign and 1no illuminated
logo panel.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
43
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

12 Valentine Close Bristol BS14 9NB
Enforcement appeal for use of detached garage as selfcontained unit of residential accommodation including subdivision of garden area.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
44
Brislington West

239 Bloomfield Road Bristol BS4 3QT
Two storey side extension to create new dwelling, with raised
rear terrace and associated works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
45
Stoke Bishop

21 December 2018

Home Farm Barn Parrys Lane Bristol BS9 1AF
Rebuild the existing part of the house in the rear garden with
a lower floor level and to make it wider than at present and
create annex accommodation.To lower the level of a part of
the rear garden.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 19

10/12/2018

10/12/2018

10/12/2018

10/12/2018

11/12/2018

11/12/2018

Page 7 of 11

List of appeal decisions
Item

Ward

Text0:
46
Ashley

Text0:
47
Clifton

Text0:
48
Clifton

Text0:
49
Clifton Down

Address, description and appeal type
Hamilton House 80 Stokes Croft Bristol BS1 3QY
Notification for prior approval for a proposed change of use of
Blocks B & C from office use (Class B1(a)) to dwellinghouses
(Class C3) to provide 45no. self-contained dwellings
(comprising 25no. one bed units and 20no. two bed units).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Mortimer House Nursing Home Clifton Down Road Bristol
BS8 4AE
Proposed landscaping / external work alterations to return the
front garden to the original layout and provision of car parking
facilities at the rear of the building accessed through a new
opening in the side wall controlled by a sliding timber gate.
Appeal against refusal
Committee
Mortimer House Nursing Home Clifton Down Road Bristol
BS8 4AE
Proposed landscaping / external work alterations to return the
front garden to the original layout of the listed building and
providing car parking facilities at the rear of the building
accessed through a new opening in the side wall controlled
by a sliding timber gate.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Decision and
date decided
Appeal dismissed
20/11/2018

Costs not awarded

Appeal allowed
23/11/2018

Costs not awarded

Appeal allowed
23/11/2018

Costs not awarded

67 & 69 Whiteladies Road And 16A & 17A Aberdeen Road
Bristol BS8 2NT
Change of use of the existing Kwik Fit unit located at the
junction of Whiteladies Road and Aberdeen Road from Use
Class B2 (General Industrial) to Use Class A1 (Retail).
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Appeal allowed

Text0:
50
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

29 & 31 Bamfield Bristol BS14 0SN
Creation of vehicular access onto a classified road and offstreet parking areas for both properties.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal allowed
28/11/2018

Text0:
51
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

12 Southover Close Bristol BS9 3NG
Demolition of Existing Dwelling and Development of 6no.
Flats and Associated Works (resubmission of 18/00317/F).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
28/11/2018

21 December 2018

Page 20

26/11/2018

Page 8 of 11

Text0:
52
Windmill Hill

154 Marksbury Road Bristol BS3 5LD
Enforcement notice appeal for the development being the
erection of a detached ancillary building being larger than
approved by planning permission 16/04845/H.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal dismissed
21/12/2018

Text0:
53
Windmill Hill

154 Marksbury Road Bristol BS3 5LD
Retention of single storey building in rear garden.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
21/12/2018

Text0:
54
Eastville

631 - 633 Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 3BA
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of structure in the
rear yard used in association with the commercial ground
floor unit.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal dismissed
21/12/2018

Text0:
55
Clifton Down

18 Elgin Park Bristol BS6 6RX
Erection of garden room extension to existing annex with
associated alterations.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
56
Stoke Bishop

3 Dingle Road Bristol BS9 2LN
Application for variation of condition no.11 (List of Approved
Plans) attached to planning permission 16/05204/F.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
57
Stoke Bishop

3 Dingle Road Bristol BS9 2LN
Variation of condition 11 of reference number: 16/05204/F To allow external alterations to improve internal arrangement.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal allowed
05/12/2018

Text0:
58
Hillfields

227 Lodge Causeway Bristol BS16 3QW
Residential development of 2no. 2-bed apartments with
vehicular parking, refuse store and cycle racks on land to the
rear of 227 Lodge Causeway.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
13/12/2018

Text0:
59
Central

Central Reservation Temple Way Bristol BS1 6NH
Erection and display of a single sided advertising panel to be
used to show illuminated advertisements capable of
automatic sequential change.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Appeal dismissed
21/12/2018

21 December 2018

Page 21

Appeal allowed
28/11/2018

Appeal dismissed
05/12/2018

Page 9 of 11

Text0:
60
Lockleaze

Golden Bottle Inn Constable Road Bristol BS7 9YF
Outline application for the demolition of Golden Bottle Inn and
the erection of 10no. 3 bedroom houses (formed within two
short terraces and two pairs of semi-detached properties)
with associated parking and gardens (with access,
appearance, layout and scale to be determined, all other
matters reserved) - (Major Application).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
21/12/2018

Text0:
61
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

Land Adjacent To Karakal Penpole Lane Bristol BS11 0EA
Change of use of site to store 19 Self Storage units (B8 use
class).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal withdrawn
11/12/2018

Text0:
62
Central

(Land East Of) Colston Street Bristol BS1 5AY
Alterations to boundary wall, new access, development of suigeneris residential units for students (2no. 5-bed cluster
flats), with associated refuse and cycle storage.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Text0:
63
Central

(Land To The East Of) Colston Street Bristol BS1 5AY
Alterations to boundary wall, new access, development of suigeneris residential units for students (2no. 5-bed cluster
flats), with associated refuse and cycle storage.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Appeal allowed
20/12/2018

Costs not awarded

Appeal allowed
20/12/2018

Costs not awarded

Text0:
64
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

19 Stoke Lane Westbury Bristol BS9 3DP
Retention of loft extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
12/12/2018

Text0:
65
Bedminster

Land Adj To 5 Winterstoke Road Bristol BS3 2NN
Replacement of an existing slimline internally illuminated 48sheet advertising display with a 48-sheet digital LED display.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
04/12/2018

Text0:
66
Ashley

2 Watercress Road Bristol BS2 9YJ
Construction of roof extension and associated roof terrace.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
11/12/2018

21 December 2018

Page 22

Page 10 of 11

Text0:
67
Lockleaze

147 Dovercourt Road Bristol BS7 9SF
Proposed two storey rear and side extension and hip to gable
roof extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
11/12/2018

Text0:
68
Bishopsworth

75 St Peters Rise Bristol BS13 7NA
Notification of prior approval for the erection of a single
storey, rear extension that would extend beyond the rear wall
of the original house by 4.5 metres, have a maximum height
of 4.0 metres and have eaves that are 3.0 metres high.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
18/12/2018

Text0:
69
Lockleaze

11 Dorchester Road Bristol BS7 0LA
Two storey side extension with front porch.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
70
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

9 Dyrham Close Bristol BS9 4TF
Enclosing an existing balcony at first floor level using double
glazed windows.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

21 December 2018

Page 23

Appeal allowed
17/12/2018

Appeal dismissed
17/12/2018

Page 11 of 11

Agenda Item 6

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A
9th January 2019
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR - PLANNING
LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED

Item Ward
1

Brislington East

Address, description and enforcement type
2 Newbridge Road Bristol BS4 4DH
To take discontinuance action in respect of
advertisement hoarding.
Discontinuance notice

21 December 2018

Page 24

Date issued
03/12/2018

Agenda Item 8
Development Control Committee A
9 January 2019
Report of the Service Director - Planning
Index
Planning Applications
Item

Ward

Officer
Recommendation

Application No/Address/Description

1

Clifton Down

Grant

18/02902/F - Land On North Side Of Belgrave
Hill Bristol
Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3
dwellings with associated external alterations.

2

Bedminster

Grant subject to
Legal Agreement

18/02302/F - Land Bounded By Winterstoke
Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood Road Bristol
BS3 3HH
Demolition of all existing buildings, and the
erection of buildings to facilitate 67 residential
dwelling units consisting of 8 terraced houses
and 59 flats, external landscaping, parking and
other associated works.

3

Avonmouth &
Lawrence
Weston

Grant

18/03064/F - The Old Sports Centre West Town
Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
Proposed containerised self-storage facility with
ancillary office (mixed Use Classes B8/B1(a))
with altered access and associated car parking.

4

Bedminster

Grant

18/05778/H - 7 Beryl Road Bristol BS3 3DH
Proposed demolition of existing extension and
erection of replacement single storey rear
extension.

index
v5.0514

Page 25
S:\PLAN\Plan-Common\Dev Control Committees\2018-2019\Committee A\Wednesday 9th january 2019\Index - 09.01.2019.doc
21/12/2018 15:16

Agenda Item 8a
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
WARD:

Clifton Down

SITE ADDRESS:

Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

APPLICATION NO:

18/02902/F

ITEM NO. 1

CONTACT OFFICER:

Charlotte Sangway

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
18 January 2019
DEADLINE:
Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with associated external alterations.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

CSJ Planning Consultants Ltd
1 Host Street
Bristol
BS1 5BU

APPLICANT:

Mr James King
c/o Agent

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

21/12/18 14:14

Page 26

Committee report

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A REPORT (FOR COMMITTEE
MEETING ON 17TH OCT 2018) IN RELATION TO APPLICATION 18/02902/F- LAND ON THE
NORTH SIDE OF BELGRAVE HILL
The case was deferred by Development Control Committee (A) on 17th October 2018 following
concerns raised by Members in relation to land stability matters and access for emergency vehicles,
matters that are addressed below. Clarification is also given regarding space standards.
4 additional representations (objections) to the case have been received since 17th October, which
raise points already covered by the original report to the Committee (pages 4-5 of the original report
dated 8th October 2018 refer).
KEY ISSUES
F) LAND STABILITY CONSIDERATIONS (page11 of DC Committee A (17th Oct 2018) Report)
National policy (Paragraphs 178 and 179 of the NPPF, 2018) and local policy (Site Allocations and
Development Management Policy DM37) require planning decisions to take account of risks arising
from land instability and to ensure that adequate site investigation information is available to inform
these assessments.
The above policy sets out that this will require a desk based study of available records to assess the
previous uses of the site and their potential for instability in relation to the proposed development.
Where the study establishes that instability is likely but does not provide sufficient information to
establish its precise extent or nature, site investigation and risk assessment are carried out to
determine the standard of remediation required to make the site suitable for its intended use. Where
remediation measures are necessary, conditions or obligations may be applied to ensure that the
development does not take place until appropriate works are completed.
In this case, a desk-based study and site investigation and risk assessment have been carried out by
the applicant with proposals made for remediation of the land stability risks. Conditions are
recommended to secure the remediation works. The Local Planning Authority (LPA) has instructed a
specialist engineering geologist consultant (Arup) to review the submitted information.
In summary, the developer proposes to remove existing bedrock forming the base of the site and
stabilise the existing cliff face and masonry walling using rock anchors before constructing the
proposed development.
Based on the advice of its consultant, the LPA considers the proposal to be in line with the above
policy and to have addressed the risks relating to land instability matters through appropriate
remediation, which can be secured by planning condition. The detail of the land stability
considerations is set out below:
a) Site description, desk study and site investigation
The north-west of the site is bounded by the foot of an old quarried cliff, into which various masonry
walls have been constructed. The site is formed into the face of an old quarry excavated into the
Clifton Down Limestone of the Carboniferous Limestone. At the base of the cliff (the eastern surface
of the site) is an outcrop of bedrock. The majority of the elevation is then faced with a masonry wall,
masking the underlying rock face, sections of which are in a poor state of repair. There are a number
of alcoves and buttresses to the wall.
The applicant’s reports advise that over much of its length, the masonry is in relatively good condition
given its’ age, however localised areas were in poor condition with mortar joints being either

Page 27

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
weathered or absent. Vegetation remains are regularly observed protruding from and through the
face, causing distress to the wall. No evidence of any large scale mass movement was seen during
inspection.
The Applicant’s consultant engineering geologist advises that the rock face does not appear to be at
risk of large scale instability and that given the technical considerations that ‘wedge’ failure does not
appear to be critical. However, they have advised that it would still be appropriate to carry out some
remedial works to better the current situation, which would allow an appropriate design life, and
prevent future problems arising from the weathering and degradation of the masonry wall.
The LPA’s consultant (Arup) advises that for over 100 years these cliffs have been standing close to
vertical with the domestic properties on top and set back from the edge of the cliff edge. Indeed,
kinematic analysis1 completed by Integrale for their 2018 report [10] confirms planar failure is unlikely
to occur as the bedding planes dip at a lower angle than the rock mass angle of internal friction. Two
joint sets do intersect within relation to the slope face, which suggests wedge failure could
theoretically occur. It is understood that the potential failure mechanisms will be considered during the
investigation and stabilisation works.
Arup confirms that the characterisation of the land stability hazard has been carried out by a
competent party in accordance with the relevant standards, including the process described within BS
EN 1997-2:2007 [5], which is currently the best practice guide for geotechnical works in the UK.
b) The proposed combined investigation and stabilisation process (land stability remediation)
Arup advises that the applicant’s reports (Intégrale (2014) report [9] and Section A5.4 of the Intégrale
(2018) [10] report) describe the proposed method statement and sequencing of working to ensure that
the stability of the general area is not at any time compromised. It is understood that Dr Hawkins (the
LPA’s previous consultant) and the applicant’s geotechnical and structural consultants worked closely
to develop and agree on a method and sequence of working, described below. Arup has
independently reviewed these broad proposals and it is considered that this is an appropriate and
sensible procedure for investigation and subsequent stabilisation of the rock/masonry face.
A summary of the remedial proposals broadly includes: chemical treatment and vegetation clearance
> geotechnical inspection and assessment > erection of scaffolding > investigation of the masonry
wall and repointing and rebuilding of the masonry facing in areas of poor-quality stonework > drill
anchor holes/investigation location to confirm anchor lengths and agree lengths with the BCC
consultant > stress anchors > repeat for the next line of anchors in a top down fashion > repeat as
necessary to base of wall (as per Figure 1).
Arup state that the Integrale Ltd (2018) report [10] acknowledges that the proposal would be subject
to change in the light of findings revealed as the investigation phase of the works proceeded. The
reports do not elude as to what these changes may look like, but it is anticipated that this could
include more (or less) rock anchors and at greater (or fewer) intervals. It is considered unlikely that
steel mesh would be used as most of the rock face is covered by masonry stonework that will be
repointed.
Arup state that it is understood that the de-vegetation and topsoil removal work during the site
preparations have resulted in uncovering an exposure of bedrock on the construction platform that will
require removal. The agent confirms that this will be done using “non-percussive means utilising
diamond drilling equipment and hydraulic rock splitting equipment under the supervision of a qualified
engineer…the majority of works will be done utilising small handheld machinery. In terms of structural
stability, the wall will firstly be secured as set out in the structural report, before then removing the
small amount of stone bedrock”. The methodology of excavation is considered suitable given the site
constraints and are not expected to impact on the stability of the rock slope/masonry wall. Therefore,
no mitigation measures would be required. The Applicant proposes to use non-percussive techniques;
therefore there is no need for vibration monitoring.

Page 28

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

c) Can the land stability risks be satisfactorily mitigated overall?
Arup advises that the work carried out to date has followed industry best practice and meets the
requirements of the BCC Policy DM37. This includes characterising the land instability hazard,
including the potential modes of failure. The Applicant’s ground engineering consultants have used
this information to develop a scheme design, the principles of which are considered to satisfactorily
mitigate against land instability.
This includes any potential changes to the ground model as a result of future investigation work. If the
results investigations show that the level of the land stability hazard is greater than expected then the
proposal would be subject to change in the light of findings. This reactive approach is industry best
practice and is acknowledged within the Integrale Ltd (2018) report [10], however they do not elude to
how the scheme design may change (as discussed above).
The Intégrale (2014) report [9] identifies an issue that the walls further back from the crest (i.e.
boundary walls to other properties on the crest) will be in other peoples’ ownership. It is
acknowledged that this is out of the control of the Applicant, but if critical ‘risk’ areas are identified,
specific notification will be given to the relevant landowners, if the risks are likely to pose a future
threat to the public at the foot of the cliff.
d) Would the proposed remediation make the site safe for development of housing?
The applicant’s submission advises that the proposed dwellings would be constructed with concrete
slab roofs to protect against rock falls. Arup has advised that the agent should confirm the rock fall
measures to be incorporated into the proposed houses. The ability of the homes to meet their design
life of 60 years will depend on inspection and maintenance of the rock anchors and masonry/ rock
face.
e) What would the land stability situation be if works stopped part way through?
Arup advises that the proposed method and sequence of working is an acceptable method of working
and will ensure an improvement to stability if work must stop for any reason.
f) How should it be ensured that the mitigation measures are carried out satisfactorily?
Appropriate planning conditions are recommended, which will ensure that any alternative mitigation
measures are agreed with the Local Planning Authority and their consultant.

E) TRANSPORT CONSIDERATIONS (page 11 of the 17th Oct Committee Report refers)
Members of the Committee deferred a decision on the application on 17th October 2018 and
requested that officers review emergency vehicle access to the proposed development.
Planning policy and considerations
The NPPF (paragraph 110) requires Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to assess provisions for
emergency vehicle access as a material planning consideration. Emergency fire service access is
also covered by the Building Regulations and Government has emphasised that consenting regimes
(such as planning and building control) should avoid overlap.

Page 29

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
The Building Regulations (Approved Document B) requires assessment of fire service vehicle access
to a property, but only considering access within an application site and not on the surrounding
highway network. The Planning system should include consideration of access to any new dwellings
along the existing highway network.
Manual for Streets (MfS) (Department for Transport, 2007) provides technical guidance for planning
purposes but is based around the Building Regulations requirements. The key requirements for fire
service access are:
- There should be a minimum carriageway width of 3.7m between kerbs for operating at the
scene of a fire, with 3.1m the minimum width at a pinchpoint such as a gate. The Association
of Chief Fire Officers has expanded on the Building Regulations requirements and states that
to reach a fire, the access route could be reduced to 2.75m over short distances;
- There should be access for a fire pump appliance within 45m of single houses;
- Fire service vehicles should not have to reverse more than 20m;
- Sprinkler systems allow longer response times and alternative site layouts to be used.
Consultation with the Council’s Transport officers, the Council’s Building Regulations Team and Avon
Fire & Fire Service (AFRS) has been carried out and is summarised below.
Consultation responses
The Council’s Building Control Team advises that the Building Regulations requirements only apply
from the actual site boundary and do not apply to the existing roads outside the site. So the 45m
would apply from the site boundary (or from a suitable access point for a fire appliance within the site)
to all points within the dwellinghouse. If 45m is exceeded then if sprinklers are provided this can be
increased to 90m. If the 90m is exceeded then we would then discuss this on a case by case basis
with AFRS to see if a suitable solution can be achieved.
Avon Fire and Rescue Service (AFRS) advise that they would assess proposals based on the
Building Regulations requirements outlined above. However, in contrast to the guidance in Manual for
Streets they state that 2.75m would be too narrow for fire appliance access. Furthermore, while
sprinkler systems can allow alternative layouts to be considered, that leaving a fire appliance
unattended some 90m away from the site while dealing with a fire would not be considered safe. Their
view was that the ability to extend up to 90m [mentioned above] would apply to a scenario such as a
large commercial building where extra hose length would be required to travel through the building to
the scene of a fire.
The Council’s Transport Development Management (TDM) Team has identified highway widths,
residential parking spaces and the 45m distance from the proposed dwellinghouses on a plan.
They have advised that the site is situated within the Clifton East Residents parking scheme subject to
permit holder only parking Mon – Fri 9am-5pm. The area of Belgrave Hill, Richmond Dale, Quarry
Road and Quarry Steps are subject to these restrictions.
Vehicles currently park in demarcated bays at the beginning of Belgrave Hill and on the carriageway
and partly on the footway towards the sites frontage. The carriageway is sufficient width for fire
appliances to access within 45m of the site but vehicles parking wholly on the carriageway would
block carriageway access for larger vehicles meaning that they may continue to need to mount the
kerb. Bristol Waste currently service Belgrave Hill via a narrow access vehicle.
If members are concerned with fire service access to the proposal, a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
to provide double yellow lines and prevent parking along Belgrave Hill would be the only feasible
method to ensure that on street parking does not restrict the useable width of the carriageway.

Page 30

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

Summary of fire service access considerations and recommendation
The access for emergency vehicles to existing properties in this area would remain unchanged
following construction of the development (the proposal would not affect the existing road carriageway
or footpath width). The Council would not seek to adopt the site in order to widen the road
carriageway, as suggested by objectors.
The actual road carriageway width is wide enough for fire appliances to access the site but the
effective (useable) carriageway width is reduced due to the presence of on-street parking. Taking into
account the existing parking, fire appliances would need to mount the kerb in order to reach within the
required 45m distance of the site. This situation would not comply with the guidance for new
development.
The majority of existing properties along Belgrave Hill have alternative access with frontages on more
than one road and therefore do not rely Belgrave Hill alone for access. While other properties in the
wider area may rely on fire appliances having to mount kerbs for access, this is a proposal for new
development and the matter is a material planning consideration raised by Members. It is therefore
reasonable to explore the matter in further detail and to apply the available guidance on this matter.
Removing on-street parking on Belgrave Hill would increase the effective width of Belgrave Hill
sufficiently that a fire appliance could access within 45m of the site, as required by the Manual for
Streets. The applicant was asked to providing tracking diagrams indicating access around the corners
to Belgrave Hill, but has declined to provide this information. However, in the absence of this
evidence, the TDM Team has advised that they consider it likely that a fire appliance would be able to
manoeuvre around the corner at High Street/ Belgrave Hill (though not necessarily in one
manoeuvre).
Removing on street parking to enable access for this development via amendment of the TRO could
be secured by section 106 agreement if Members are minded to recommend approval. The Transport
Development Management Team can advise on the extent of the double yellow lines required.
This would result in the loss of parking from an area of Clifton where existing on street parking is
already in high demand and would impact on the amenity of existing residents in terms of availability
of parking spaces, which is also a material planning consideration. It is estimated that 4 or 5 parking
spaces (wholly on the carriageway) would be lost at the upper end of Belgrave Hill, with approximately
4 spaces (partly on the footway) at the lower end of the road outside the site.
It is therefore for Members to come to a view on whether the benefits of the proposed development
would outweigh the loss of parking and impact on the amenity of existing residents in order to ensure
satisfactory fire service access to the proposed development.
The officer recommendation is to approve subject to a section 106 agreement to secure a planning
obligation that would pay the fee for amending the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO).
(D) RESIDENTIAL AMENITY AND SPACE STANDARDS (page 9-10 of the 8th Oct Committee report
refer)
The national space standard (‘Technical housing standards – nationally described space standard’,
DCLG, 2015) should now be applied as a material consideration as they supersede the Bristol Space
Standards (2011).
The national standard deals with internal space within new dwellings and sets out requirements for
the Gross Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a defined level of occupancy as well as the floor
areas and widths of bedrooms, areas for storage and the floor to ceiling height.

Page 31

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

Both dwellings would be below the minimum gross internal floor area (for the whole dwelling) set out
within the national standard by nearly 16%- as set out in Table 1 below. The double bedrooms in
each dwelling would also be below the national standard of 11.5m² in area (they would measure
10.3m² and 9.7m² respectively).
Table 1

Unit 1
Unit 2

Proposal floor BCC Space Standard requirement
area (m²)
(now superseded) (m²)

Current national space
requirement (m²)

59.1
59.3

70
70

57- 67
57-67

In other respects, the proposed dwellings would meet the national space standards- meeting the
minimum floor area standard for single bedrooms and the minimum width for both double and single
bedrooms. Storage areas in accordance with the national standard minimum would also be included
or could be accommodated. This takes into account that the dwellings would meet the minimum 2.3m
floor to ceiling height over their floor area.
Policy BCS18 of the Bristol Core Strategy states that “Residential developments should provide
sufficient space for everyday activities and to enable flexibility and adaptability by meeting appropriate
space standards.”
Officers considered that the 2014 proposal would meet the policy requirements in terms of providing
sufficient space for everyday activities and to enable flexibility and adaptability. That scheme was
required to meet only the Bristol space standards, which it did. The current application is for an
identical proposal and therefore the view of officers would not change in this respect.
Therefore, while acknowledging the updated national space standards, on the balance of
considerations, officers would not consider refusal to be warranted.
CONCLUSION
Officers hope that this additional information addresses the queries of Members.
The officer recommendation is for approval of the application subject to s106 agreement for
amendment of the TRO and subject to the conditions set out at page 12 of the original report to
Committee (dated 8th Oct 2018).

Page 32

Development Control – 17 October 2018

ITEM NO. 2

WARD:

Clifton Down

CONTACT OFFICER:

SITE ADDRESS:

Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

APPLICATION NO:

18/02902/F

Charlotte Sangway

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
5 October 2018
DEADLINE:
Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with associated external alterations.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

CSJ Planning Consultants Ltd
1 Host Street
Bristol
BS1 5BU

APPLICANT:

Mr James King
c/o Agent

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

08/10/18 11:12

Page 33

Committee report

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

SUMMARY
The application relates to a site that previously benefited from planning permission (reference
14/02366/F) granted by Development Control Committee in 2014 for the same development proposed
under this application. That planning permission expired in November 2017 and the applicant is
seeking a new planning permission for the same development.
The application is being reported to committee at the request of Councillor Stevens. In addition, both
this application and the previous one has generates significant levels of public interest. 31 contributors
have commented on this application with 29 objecting to the proposal, 1 in support and 1 general
representation. Objectors include the Bristol Industrial & Archaeological Society, The Association for
Industrial Archaeology and Bristol Civic Society. The letter of support comes from the Conservation
Advisory Panel.
Given this application is for the same development as previously approved, the key consideration
here is whether there have been material changes in circumstances since the previous decision was
made, and would those changes warrant us reaching a different decision on the application. While
there has been an update to the National Planning Policy Framework (2018) since the previous
permission was granted, it is the view of officers that the policy relevant to this application is broadly
unchanged, including local policy. The circumstances of the application site and planning
considerations for the application also remain largely unchanged.
It is also material that since the previous permission was granted, several applications to discharge
conditions attached to that consent have been made in order to implement the previous permission.
However, while not all conditions were discharged in full they remain material considerations in the
consideration of the current case and the applicant has now submitted details relating to the
outstanding conditions in order to address a number of these matters up front as part of the current
application. Key matters covered by condition include: land stability, archaeology, highways matters,
nature conservation and drainage.
In addition, enabling works have been carried out on site in order to satisfy several conditions of the
2014 permission including vegetation clearance, archaeological investigation and partial ground
clearance.
The Council’s specialist land stability consultant has reviewed the submission and advised that it
satisfies the requirements of conditions attached to lapsed permission 14/02366/F. In terms of
archaeology, the Council’s Archaeologist advises that the details submitted are acceptable but that
further monitoring and reporting would be needed at subsequent stages of development should
permission be granted.
It is the view of officers that has the proposal as not changed, the policy remains broadly unchanged
and the circumstances do not differ significantly from those under the consideration of the 2014
application, that permission should be granted subject to relevant an updated list of conditions.

SITE DESCRIPTION
The application site is a narrow piece of vacant open ground that has a frontage of 29m facing
Belgrave Hill. The site boundary abuts the northern side elevation of 10 Sutherland Place/Sutherland
Mews.
The retaining wall to the rear of the site is constructed of local rubble stone. The site area once
formed part of a large quarry, a fact that explains the substantial change in levels between Upper

Page 34
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Belgrave Road, to the north and Belgrave Hill of between 8-12 metres.
The site is located within the Clifton Conservation Area but is situated along the boundary with the
Whiteladies Road Conservation Area. 15-21 Belgrave Hill to the east of the site are Grade II listed
buildings.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
This site was the subject of a recent planning permission 14/02366/F, which expired in November
2017. The full report in relation to that application is appended to this report.
The current application seeks a new consent for the same development and to address some of the
conditions attached to the previous consent.
Following the original approval in 2014, the application site was sold and the new owner (the current
applicant) started to discharge the pre-commencement conditions. However given the complexity of
the site and the condition requirements, some of the pre-commencement conditions remained
unresolved at the time the original consent lapsed on 14th November 2017, and therefore the
development could not be lawfully implemented (and as such necessitating the new application).
In undertaking to discharge relevant conditions of the original permission, several works were
undertaken, comprising:
- Vegetation clearance (Oct 2016);
- Rock mass assessment (Oct 2016) and structural appraisal;
- Archaeology ground works (Nov 2017);
- Repairs, repointing and scaffolding stabilisation of the wall;
The following applications have been made to discharge conditions on the previous permission:
16/04049/COND- Application to approve details in relation to conditions 4(Recording of the fabric of
building) 5(Archaeological Works) and 6 (Construction environmental Management Plan) of
permission 14/02366/F Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with associated
external works. Partially discharged 02.11.2016
17/05299/COND- Application to approve details in relation to condition 2 (Structural engineer) of
permission 14/02366/F Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with associated
external works. Partially discharged 05.01.2018
17/05624/COND- Application to approve details in relation to condition 3(Insurance) 7 (Highway) and
8 (Footway) of permission 14/02366/F Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with
associated external works. Not discharged 05.01.2018
17/05976/COND- Application to approve details in relation to conditions 4 (Fabric of Building) and 5
(Archaeological Works) 12 (Bat method statement) 13 (Bird and bat boxes) and 14 (Drainage
strategy) of permission 14/02366/F Proposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with
associated external works. Partially discharged 05.01.2018

Page 35
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Condition status summary table:
No. Condition title

Status

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

Condition not met
Not discharged
Not discharged
Not discharged
Approved
Approved
Not discharged
Not discharged
Details not submitted
Details not submitted
Details not submitted
Discharged
Not discharged
Not discharged

Commencement of development by 14.11.17
Supervision by structural engineer
Insurance policy
Recording fabric
Implement archaeological works
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)
Highway condition survey
Approval of road and footway works
Further details
Green living roof
Sample panels before element started
Bat method statement
Bird and bat boxes
Drainage strategy

Other Planning History:
11/04256/F- Redevelopment of existing vacant site for 3no. two bedroom dwelling houses with
associated external amenity space, refuse and cycle storage. REFUSED 05.11.2012

APPLICATION
This application is for the same development approved under permission 14/02366/F (now expired)as per the ‘description of development’.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
A site notice and press notice were issued/ published (expiry date 11th July 2018) and neighbours
were consulted by individual letter (expiry date 6th July 2018).
Councillor Stevens has referred to the application to development control committee for the following
reasons:
- Impact on heritage asset (quarry) in light of emerging NPPF policies not in place in 2014;
- Inappropriate provision of waste/ recycling storage and impact on the conservation area;
- Further work is needed to ensure the right conditions regarding geological stability of the wall,
insurance, structural engineer supervision, liaison with residents;
At the time of writing, 31 contributions to the application had been made- with 29 objections, 1 general
representation and 1 letter of support. Representations are summarised as follows:
OBJECTION
- Wide spread fears have been expressed over likely prejudice to ground instability and/or
drainage/flooding. The amount of bedrock to be removed was not understood at the time that the
previous planning permission was granted. The site is already prone to rock falls.
- There are concerns regarding access to the retaining wall/ rock face in the future. The developer’s
report states a design life of 60 years.

Page 36
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
- There is concern that the site could not be developed safely and development could lead to harm to/
loss of life (including to future residents of the properties- a concrete roof being proposed);
- There is concern that there is conflict between the Construction Environmental Management Plan,
which seeks non-percussive means of rock breaking to reduce noise impacts on residents and what
would be a safe form of development in stability terms;
- Need for insurance to cover damage to neighbouring properties- but it is also an objection that the
insurance required by Condition 3 of lapsed permission 14/02366/F could not actually be achieved.
One objector has commented that the developer “has tried to gain party wall agreement with us but
has stumbled on supplying sufficient insurance documentation for all properties above the site and
immediately below, including for loss of life or limb.”
- There has been no Party Wall Agreement with neighbouring property owners and there are
questions regarding the ownership of the land; *
- There is no plan to deal with drainage and development could divert water run-off to neighbouring
properties. Existing drains at the bottom of Belgrave Hill already over flow;
- Loss of industrial heritage and views of the old quarry cliff face (which is cited as being the location
of the discovery of the ‘Bristol dinosaur’ fossil);
- The design would be out of keeping with the area and detrimental to the character and appearance
of the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area;
- New evidence, as detailed in the by Archaeological Watching Brief Report, shows that the preexisting buildings on this site were constrained in size so that each building had its own associated
open courtyard, some 4 meters in size. These open courtyards served to let in light to the quarry
buildings & critically to also provide relief and light to the houses immediately opposite (within 14ft) in
Richmond Dale. Development should be constrained to its original dimensions.
- Over development of the site with resultant "overcrowding". Existing site represents a ‘breathing
space’ in a tightly developed area;
- Impact on residential amenity in terms of loss of privacy, overshadowing, noise disturbance from use
of outside areas amplified by quarry wall. The condition to restrict use of the upper level outside
space is not manageable. Previously a similar application was refused on grounds it was an
"oppressive and an overbearing form of development".
- Poor living environment of future occupiers of the site (in terms of size, outdoor space, outlook and
natural light). Also insufficient cycle parking storage is proposed;
- Additional on street car parking in an area already at saturation point, with attendant and resultant
detriment to highway safety, congestion, obstruction and emergency access. RPZ restrictions are
already regularly flouted as traffic wardens do not check regularly;
- Detriment to established nature conservation interests; including protected species.
- Noise and disruption during construction including parking/ access concerns- including for
emergency vehicles due to the narrow road. Many serious issues have already arisen during the
pre-condition enabling works of this complex & sensitivity site, which has necessitated Planning
Enforcement action and police involvement. Appropriate site management has not taken place.
* NB It should be noted that Party Wall Agreements are covered by separate legislation not dealt with
by the planning system and fall outside the planning consideration, as do land ownership matters.
The Bristol Industrial and Archaeological Society have commented (in summary- refer to
Background Papers for full comments):
-

The area was part of a large stone quarry and the site is a unique part of the industrial heritage
of Clifton. This application will have a huge visible impact due to wire netting and rock bolts on
the quarry face. This site is the only visible vestige of the quarry industry left in the area.

Page 37
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
-

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that local authorities must give great
weight to the conservation of heritage assets and should resist development that would cause
substantial harm unless it can be justified that there are public benefits to outweigh the harm, an
approach reflected through Bristol City Council’s own conservation policies. There is no public
benefit, in fact there is established concern by experts that the instability of the land may cause
construction issues and affect a large number of neighbouring properties.

-

This is over-intensive insensitive development which harms the asset in a conservation area.

-

Who is responsible for any problems that may arise during construction.

-

No insurance details have been submitted with the application despite this being a precommencement condition. The applicants have not addressed all of the stability issues.

-

Construction management and access to the site will be difficult.

-

The proposal will harm existing residential amenity.

-

The proposed materials are not appropriate.

-

The site should be set aside as open space indefinitely as being a unique part of Bristol’s
industrial heritage.

-

The new premises should not be allowed to obtain parking permits.

The Association for Industrial Archaeology commented as follows (in summary- refer to
Background Papers for full details): “The development will seriously compromise the visual impact of
this face and there is the problem of ensuring continued stability. It is preferable for the face to remain
visible and provide interesting evidence of the industrial past of this area and how people lived.”
Bristol Civic Society is concerned about the quality of living environment that can be achieved in
dwellings located in such a deep hollow and in such close proximity to a very high retaining wall.
There can be no rear windows and the resulting dwellings would be largely single aspect.

SUPPORT
The Conservation Advisory Panel has commented that they continue to support the proposal for the
residential redevelopment of this site.

CONSULTEES
A Consultant Senior Engineering Geologist has advised on the land stability aspects of the
application in terms of whether the submitted details meet the requirements of the conditions attached
to the previous consent 14/02366/F. Further details are provided under Key Issue F.
The City Design Group (including Conservation) raises no objections to the proposals subject to
conditions (refer to Key Issue C).
The Nature Conservation Team has advised that they now remove their original objection to the
application on the basis of the submitted up-to-date ecology survey, subject to conditions requiring the
installation of bird and bat boxes at the site in addition to other relevant conditions. See background
papers for full details.
The Public Protection (Contaminated Land) Officer advises that the proposed use would be
sensitive to contamination but is situated on land not thought to have been subject to a potentially
contaminating land use, historical quarrying was for limestone. This application does have a very
small area of soft landscaping and it is recommended that clean imported soils are used in this area.

Page 38
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
This matter can be dealt with via condition. See background papers for full details.
The Flood Risk and Drainage Team has reviewed the submitted Outline Drainage Strategy report
and raised a number of queries including: the storage details for the green roof, how water from the
wall and behind the development would drain, and confirmation from Wessex Water that a connection
into the sewer system would be acceptable. The applicant has responded to these queries and it is
concluded that any outstanding matters can be dealt with by condition.
The Transport Development Management Team raises no objections to the proposals subject to
conditions.
Wales and West Utilities have submitted an extract for the mains records of the area covered by the
proposal together with a comprehensive list of General Conditions for guidance. The promoter of the
development should contact them directly to discuss their requirements in detail before any works
commence on site. An advice note is recommended to advise the applicant of this.

EQUALITIES
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. Overall, it is considered
that the approval of this application would not have any significant adverse impact upon different
groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010.

PRE-APPLICATION INVOLVEMENT
There has been no pre-application involvement under the current application given that it is a
resubmission of a previous planning permission (now lapsed).
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – July 2018
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011) and Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014).
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
Clifton Conservation Area Character Appraisal
Bristol City Council Climate Change and Sustainability Practice Note (December 2012)

The Planning (and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
Technical housing standards – nationally described space standard (2015)

KEY ISSUES
The previous lapsed consent is a material planning consideration. The key consideration for this
application therefore is to reconsider the proposal in light of any changes in policy or planning
considerations since the previous consent (14/02366/F) was granted. In short, the local planning
authority cannot reach a different decision on matters previously considered, unless there has been a

Page 39
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
change in circumstances that would warrant this. In addition, this report will consider to what extent
the current application has addressed the conditions attached to the previous planning permission.
The policy situation under which the previous permission was determined remains unchanged with
the exception of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), updated as of July 2018- the
relevant updates are summarised under the relevant Key Issues below.

(A) IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN LAND USE TERMS AND IS THE MIX, BALANCE AND
AMOUNT OF HOUSING PROPOSED ACCEPTABLE IN PLANNING POLICY TERMS?
The policy considerations set out within the report to permission 14/02366/F continue to apply (page 5
of the appended report refers) and it is the view of officers that the 2018 update to the NPPF would
not warrant taking a different decision on the current application.

(B) WOULD THE PROPOSALS SAFEGUARD OR ENHANCE HERITAGE ASSETS OR AREAS OF
ACKNOWLEDGED IMPORTANCE AND HAVE ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONSIDERATIONS BEEN
ADDRESSED?
The policy considerations set out within the report relating to permission 14/02366/F continue to
apply- please refer to page 5. As set out above, the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was
updated in July 2018; however this remains broadly consistent in respect of heritage matters.
Paragraphs 184- 202 of the NPPF now apply (formerly paragraphs 126- 141).
The Council’s Conservation Officer has advised as follows in relation to the current application:
“The current planning application is a resubmission of a previously consented proposal (14/02366/FProposed development of 2 no. Use Class C3 dwellings with associated external works). This was
assessed at the time using the relevant sections of the National Planning Policy Framework. An
assessment of the heritage context was undertaken at the time, and has been further enhanced in the
present application with archaeology and building recording. These reports have interpreted the site
and recorded the standing and below-ground archaeology at an interim stage. The reports have not
identified any greater significance to the assets than previously established in 2014.
The Association for Industrial Archaeology have suggested in their recent public objection that “this
surviving face is all that remains of the quarrying heritage of Clifton”. The quarry setting is expressed
principally through the topography of the present site, the sudden fall away from the edge of the
Downs and the later tall retaining walls that now cover the original rock face. The quarried face has
been further obscured by remnants of dwellings that formerly stood against it. As such the industrial
context is not explicit, and the proposals would have no further direct impact on that as a nondesignated heritage asset. The small-scale of the new houses will ensure that the majority of the
retaining wall remains exposed to the Conservation Area whilst preserving the fabric where the
buildings abut. The previous assessment provided to Development Control Committee B in 2014
therefore remains broadly valid, and we would find it difficult to make an objection based on this
previously approved report.”
The stabilisation works (including rock anchor points) would have a visual impact on the heritage
asset, however this would be limited in number and extent and would not result in harm to the
heritage asset that would not be justified by the benefits of stabilising the asset for the future.
An Archaeological Watching Brief Report (Feb 2018) has been submitted with the current application,
setting out the archaeology recording works carried out to date which took place during rubble
clearance and initial groundworks on the site. The recording works recorded evidence of a row of
three mid-19th century house plots that were early examples of workers accommodation in this part of

Page 40
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Clifton, among the stone quarries. Only apparent damage from incendiary bombing during WWII
ended the occupancy of the houses with final demolition and clearance occurring after the 1970s.
Two conditions relating to archaeology were attached to permission 14/02366/F (Condition 4Recording fabric and Condition 5- Implement archaeological works). Since the previous permission
was granted, applications have been made to discharge these conditions. The Council’s Archaeology
Officer advises that Condition 5 (implementation of archaeological work in accordance with an
approved Written Scheme of Investigation) has been discharged (references 16/04049/COND and
17/05976/COND) and that Condition 4 (Recording fabric of building/ site) can be discharged when a
full report has been submitted to the Historic Environment Record (HER). Should permission be
granted by Members, a further condition would be recommended to secure further recording at
subsequent stages of development.
In summary, officers are satisfied that the proposal continues to address the relevant policy and the
requirements of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, particularly Section
72. Officers have given great weight and importance to harm resulting to the heritage assets of the
historic quarry and the Clifton and Whiteladies Road Conservation Areas in making this assessment.
It was previous concluded that the proposal would conserve the Conservation Area and the setting of
nearby listed buildings, and would offer public benefits through the provision of additional dwellings.
There is no reason to conclude differently here.

(C) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BE ACCPETABLE IN DESIGN TERMS?
The relevant policy and proposed design remain unchanged from the previous proposal and the
proposed design is deemed appropriate in this location- page 7 of the appended report refers.
Conditions 9 and 11 attached to permission 14/02366/F related to further design details and material
samples being submitted before those elements commence. No details have been submitted in
respect of these matters, however it is considered reasonable that these same conditions be attached
in the event that permission is granted.

(D) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SAFEGUARD THE RESIDENTIAL AMENITY OF
NEIGHBOURING OCCUPIERS AND WOULD IT MAKE SATISFACTORY PROVISION FOR THE
AMENITY OF FUTURE OCCUPIERS?
Space standards for future occupiers
The 2014 permission was assessed against the Council’s Space Standards Practice Note (2011),
which has been superseded by the Nationally Described Technical Standards (2015). The current
proposal is unchanged compared to the previous (lapsed) permission. The 2014 proposals met the
Council’s former space standard requirements, based on the houses providing three bedspaces (a
single bedroom and a double bedroom), but do not meet the new national technical standards as
follows.
Table 1
Proposal floor area (sqm)
Unit 1
Unit 2

59.1
59.3

BCC Space Standard requirement
(now superseded) (sqm)
57- 67
57-67

The agent for the applicant has responded to this issue as follows (quoted):
“The adopted policy arena in this regard remains unchanged.

Page 41
8-Oct-18

Current national space
requirement (sqm)
70
70

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Policy BCS18 – Housing Type remains the same and the background text puts emphasis on “Building
to suitable space standards will ensure new homes provide sufficient space for everyday activities.
Homes can also be used more flexibly and adapted more easily by their occupants to changing life
circumstances”.
As you have pointed out, the previous standards that Bristol chose to utilise were the HCA standards
and the proposal easily met those. The previous requirement for a 3 bed space was between 5767sqm. Both proposed houses are 59 sqm and also include private amenity space which is not
included within the floor space calculations. One of the dwellings includes a 19sqm courtyard, whilst
the second includes a 5.3sqm external space.
The new standards require 2 bed, 2 storey dwellings to meet 70sqm, which is a big difference. Both
the dwellings are flexible and adaptable, which is the key requirement of the adopted policy. In
addition, there have been several appeal decisions where proposals below the national space
standards have been allowed in Bristol. For example the Inspector in appeal ref:
APP/Z0116/W/16/3154994 focused on the space required for day-to-day activities and the flexibility &
adaptably of the units. In assessing a dwelling that doesn’t meet the national spaces standards he
states:
“Consequently, in addition to sufficient space for day-to-day activities, the size of this flat would afford
future occupiers the internal space for a reasonable degree of flexibility with which they would be able
to adapt to their changing living needs over time….” … “Consequently, in my view both proposed flats
would provide a suitable living environment for their future occupiers. The proposal would therefore
accord with CS Policy BCS18”.
I would also direct you to para 123 of the updated NPPF which says “Where there is an existing or
anticipated shortage of land for meeting identified housing needs, it is especially important that
planning policies and decisions avoid homes being built at low densities, and ensure that
developments make optimal use of the potential of each site”.
Para 117 supports the effective use of land to meet a need for homes and para 118 (c) supports the
reuse of brownfield land, particularly where there is the opportunity to remediate despoiled, degraded,
derelict, contaminated or unstable land.
There is clear overarching support for making the most of brownfield sites in urban areas. Whilst the
proposal no longer meets the national housing standard guidance, which has been now been adopted
by Bristol to replace the HCA guidance, the houses still easily provide adaptable and flexible living
conditions, with separate bedrooms, bathrooms hallways and kitchen dinners, especially when taking
on board the external space. This is a point that has been subject to appeals in Bristol. Given the
above, there are clear benefits to the development which ultimately outweigh the reduction in internal
floorspace from the latest national guidance.”
Whilst officers do not consider the result of one appeal to be the determinant factor, it is notable that
the previous permission was considered under policy BCS18, and as stated by the applicant it was
concluded that the development would have provided adequate space for everyday activities and for
appropriate levels of activities. Given this material consideration, it is not considered that the proposal
would warrant refusal on these grounds.
Neighbouring occupiers
There have been no changes in policy or site circumstances since the previous grant of planning
permission and it is the view of officers that the assessment undertaken in relation to permission
14/02366/F still applies. Please refer to the appended report for full details at page 8.

Page 42
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
It should be noted that a right to light is a civil matter not within the remit of the planning system and is
separate to assessments undertaken through a planning application.

(E) WOULD THE PROPOSALS BE ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT
ISSUES?
The proposal is unchanged compared to the lapsed 2014 permission in terms of highways matters.
The relevant policy also remains unchanged. The update to the NPPF would not warrant a different
decision on the application, in the view of officers.
Several conditions relating to highways matters were attached to the previous permission and these
are addressed below.
Condition 6- Construction environmental management plan (CEMP)
A CEMP was already approved under condition discharge application 16/04049/COND and CEMP
information was supplied with the current application. Taking into account local consultation
responses providing anecdotal details of local issues arising during enabling works on this part of the
highway network, it is deemed appropriate to seek further detailed information through a further
CEMP condition attached to any consent, should this be granted. The applicant’s agent has advised
that as no contractor is yet appointed for the works that it is therefore difficult to provide the detailed
information normally required, at the current stage.
Condition 7- Condition survey and Condition 8- Highway/ footway works approval remain outstanding.

(F) HAVE LAND STABILITY AND GROUND CONTAMINATION ISSUES BEEN ADDRESSED?
Land stability matters were assessed under consideration of application 14/02366/F (page 10 of the
appended report refers) and the following conditions were attached to the permission granted by
Committee:
Condition 2 - Full-time supervision by a structural engineer during enabling works (emphasis in bold
added for Committee purpose only)
No development shall take place on site until details have been submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority of the (suitably qualified) structural engineer/ geologist who
will undertake the full-time supervision of all enabling works (including all site investigation,
stabilisation works, clearance of base rock/ walls and foundation works). Thereafter the enabling
works shall only take place under the full-time supervision of the agreed structural engineer/ geologist
for the duration of these works and in accordance with the approach set out within the approved
Integrale 'Proposed method statement and sequence of working' and Integrale 'Outline Methodology
for Combining Geotechnical Investigation with Stability Works' reports, the final detail of which shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by and within a timescale to be agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure proper supervision during works in the interest of land stability.

Condition 3- Insurance policy
No development shall take place until the developer has provided evidence that an appropriate
insurance policy has been taken out (to which the City Council will have access as a named party on
the insurance details), to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in respect of any
adverse effect the works may have on the stability of the existing retaining wall to the north of the site,

Page 43
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
any base rock/ walls adjacent to the footway and any neighbouring properties upslope of the site
within 10m of the site boundary and also 10 Sutherland Place/ Mews. The insurance policy shall be
sufficient to cover any potential problems that may arise during the course of construction and
consequently as a result of the development.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority as a named party in the insurance policy, has
the access to the policy in order to secure the necessary funds to carry out any remedial works
required in respect of stability of the retaining wall or site, in the event that this becomes necessary.
Since the previous consent was granted, applications (17/025299/COND and 17/05624/COND) were
made to discharge those conditions; however the information provided was incomplete and it was not
deemed possible to discharge the conditions. A report was submitted in respect of discharging the
condition: ‘Geotechnical report on condition of rock face including structural addendum, rock slope
stability considerations and proposed anchor schedule’ (Integrale, Report No. 9221/B, September
2017).
The applicant has submitted an updated report in relation to the current application: ‘Geotechnical
report of rock face formation including structural addendum, rock slope stability considerations and
proposed anchor schedule’ (Integrale, Report No. 9221/C, May 2018). No details have been
submitted in respect of Condition 3. The applicant’s agent advises that the applicant cannot arrange
for insurance given the structural issues until they have consent.
The previous application and conditions are a material consideration in the assessment of the current
application. The Council has consulted an engineering geologist to provide advice as to whether the
details submitted in relation to the current application address the previous condition requirements.
The advice of the consultant is summarised below:
The consultant previously provided advice regarding this site in relation to condition discharge
application 17/05299/COND (Condition No. 2 of 14/02366/F) - they advised that the submitted
documents in relation to that application were sufficient to partially meet the requirements of the
condition, namely approving the final detail of the two Integrale reports. However, the details of the
appointed structural engineer/geologist to oversee the works were not provided. Furthermore, while
that submitted information recommended possible stability measures it did not confirm the approach
to be taken. A confirmed methodology and sequence of working would need to be submitted to and
agreed with the Council.
In relation to the information provided with the current application the consultant advises that:
-

Details of the appointed structural geologist have been provided and are acceptable;

-

The approach to stability measures has been confirmed (including installing rock anchors to
reinforce the rock face and masonry wall);

-

The applicant has confirmed a methodology and sequence of working within their submitted
report. This references the progressive inspection and assessment by the appointed geologist,
however it does not refer back to the proposed method statement and sequence of working
described within the 2014 report or the outline methodology for combining geotechnical
investigation with stability works. Nonetheless, it is considered that the Applicant’s engineer has
a comprehensive understanding of the stability issues and how to resolve them. As long as the
methodologies described within the 2014 report and the 2013 report are followed, it is
considered that this meets the requirements of pre-commencement condition no. 2.

-

It is considered that the applicant’s submission meets the requirements to discharge precommencement condition no. 2. However, this is on the basis of the assumption that this level of
support will continue for the remaining works on a full time basis. On this basis it is
recommended that Bristol City Council discharge this condition.

Page 44
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
In summary, the application submission demonstrates that land stability matters have taken account
of the latest evidence following investigation works and that this issue can be satisfactorily addressed
through the proposed methodologies and sequence of working. This approach has been devised by
an appropriately qualified party, who would be required to undertake full-time supervision during
works.

(G) HAVE SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES BEEN ADDRESSED AND ARE THERE ANY FLOOD
RISK OR DRAINAGE ISSUES?
There has been no change in policy or circumstances in terms of addressing sustainability objectives.
Conditions 17 and 18 of consent 14/02366/F remain relevant and are recommended in the event that
Members are minded to approve the application.
An updated Drainage Strategy was submitted with the application and the Council’s Flood Risk
management Team are satisfied that the proposal would satisfactorily address drainage
considerations subject to a further condition.

(H) HAVE NATURE CONSERVATION ISSUES BEEN ADDRESSED?
An updated ecological survey (2018) has been carried out and the Council’s Nature Conservation
Officer is satisfied subject to appropriate conditions.
CONCLUSION
The proposal is concluded to be acceptable in all respects including in terms of ground stability issues
and would be compliant with national and local planning policy in all respects. Approval of the
application is therefore recommended subject to detailed conditions. The recommended conditions
reflect those that were imposed on the previosu consent, albeit amended where conditions have been
discharged.

APPENDICES
Committee Report 2014 relating to permission 14/02366/F.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay?
The CIL liability for this development is £11,174.00.
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to conditions

Time limit for commencement of development
1. Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 45
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Pre commencement conditions
2. Full-time supervision by a geotechnical engineer/engineering geologist during enabling works
The development enabling works (including all site investigation, stabilisation works, clearance of base rock/
walls and foundation works) hereby approved shall be carried out only under the full-time supervision of the
approved geotechnical engineer/ engineering geologist for the full duration of the enabling works, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development hereby approved shall be carried out only in full accordance with the approach and
methodologies set out within the approved reports: ‘Proposed method statement and sequence of working’
(Integrale Ltd. 2014), 'Outline Methodology for Combining Geotechnical Investigation with Stability Works'
(Integrale Ltd. 2013, Report No. 4349/A) and ‘ Outline methodology for combining geotechnical
investigation with stability works and proposed anchor schedule.’ (Integrale Ltd. 2018, Report no.
9221/C) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Should unexpected conditions arise, which are not foreseen in the approved reports, no further work shall be
carried out (except those required to secure the site), without a working method agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until a validation report to confirm that the approved
works have been submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure proper supervision by an appropriately qualified geotechnical engineer/ engineering
geologist during works in the interest of land stability and to ensure compliance with the previously agreed
methodologies and sequence of working.

3. Insurance policy
No development shall take place until the developer has provided evidence that an appropriate insurance policy
has been taken out (to which the City Council will have access as a named party on the insurance details), to be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in respect of any adverse effect the works may have on the
stability of the existing retaining wall to the north of the site, any base rock/ walls adjacent to the footway and
any neighbouring properties upslope of the site within 10m of the site boundary and also 10 Sutherland Place/
Mews. The insurance policy shall be sufficient to cover any potential problems that may arise during the course
of construction and consequently as a result of the development.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority as a named party in the insurance policy has the access to
the policy in order to secure the necessary funds to carry out any remedial works required in respect of stability
of the retaining wall or site, in the event that this becomes necessary.

4. To secure the recording of the fabric of buildings of historic or architectural importance
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or stabilisation works to
the retaining wall - other than basic works to ensure the safety of the archaeologists/ other contractors to be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to being carried out) shall take place until the
applicant/developer has recorded those parts of the building which are likely to be disturbed or concealed in the
course of redevelopment or refurbishment. The recording shall be carried out by an archaeologist or
archaeological organisation approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that features of archaeological or architectural importance within a building are recorded
before their destruction or concealment.

5. To ensure implementation of a programme of archaeological works
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or stabilisation works to
the retaining wall - other than basic works to ensure the safety of the archaeologists/ other contractors, to be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to being carried out) shall take place until an updated
Written Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 46

8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; and:
* The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording- including timetable;
* The programme for post investigation assessment- including timetable;
* Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording
* Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the site investigationincluding timetable;
* Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site investigation- including
timetable;
* Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out within the Written
Scheme of Investigation.
The development (including demolition of existing structures or stabilisation works to the retaining wall - other
than basic works to ensure the safety of the archaeologists/ other contractors to be agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to being carried out) shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved
programme of archaeological work and timetable for work. The publication of the analysis and records and the
archive deposition or the records shall be carried out in accordance with the timetable agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that archaeological remains and features are recorded prior to their destruction.

6. Construction environmental management plan
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or stabilisation works to
the retaining wall) shall take place until a site specific ConstructionEnvironmental Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The plan must demonstrate the adoption and use of the
best practicable means to reduce the effects of noise, vibration, dust and site lighting. The plan should include,
but not be limited to:
a) Management of vehicle movements including parking, routes for construction traffic, proposed temporary
traffic restrictions;
b) Details of siting and form of the site compound/ office;
c) Pedestrian and cyclist protection;
d) Method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway;
e) Hours of operation;
f) Procedures for maintaining good public relations including complaint management, public consultation and
liaison;
g) Arrangements for liaison with the Council's Pollution Control Team;
h) Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours;
i) Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants. This must also take into account the need to protect
any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility to air-borne pollutants;
j) Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for security purposes;
The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Management Plan.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of surrounding occupiers and in the interests of highways safety.

7. Highway condition survey
The development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or stabilisation works to
the retaining wall) hereby approved shall not commence until a condition survey of the road network surrounding
the site has been carried out to an extent to be agreed with the Highway Authority and has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby approved shall not be brought
into use until remedial works to any part of this highway damaged as a result of the development have been
agreed with and undertaken to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority and details of these works submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The developers shall contact Highways Asset Management on 0117 9222100 to agree the extent of the

Page 47
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
condition survey and any remedial works required.
Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the highway.

8. Approval of footway works necessary
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures but excluding stabilisation
works to the retaining wall) shall take place until details of the following works to the highway/ footway have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:
1. All works to the existing footway/ pavement required by the development;
The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until these works have been completed in accordance with
the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that all road works associated with the proposed development are to a standard approved
by the Local Planning Authority and are completed before occupation.

9. Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy and associated
detailed design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using SuDS methods
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved drainage system
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the
building commencing and maintained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of surface
water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the principles of sustainable drainage are
incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the lifetime of the proposal.

10. Bat method statement and method of working
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures but excluding stabilisation
works to the retaining wall) shall take place until a method of working prepared by a suitably qualified ecological
consultant setting out the precautionary methods to be followed during all enabling and construction works with
respect to bats has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development hereby permitted (including enabling works: site clearance, stabilisation works and works to
the base rock/ walls on site) shall thereafter take place only in accordance with the approved pre-cautionary
method of working at all times. If works to implement this consent do not commence within 12 months of the
approved bat survey report (by 12 July 2019) then an updated bat survey report shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any works on the site
(including the enabling works listed above).
Reason: To conserve legally protected bats.

11. Further large scale details before relevant element started
Large scale detailed drawings of the following elements shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of work is begun. The detail thereby approved shall be carried
out in accordance with that approval.
a) Typical details of each new window and door type, including set-back window features, cills, heads, reveals
and surrounds;
b) Typical roof junctions including parapets, copings and eaves;
c) Typical corner detailing at junctions;
d) Junction with retaining wall;
e) Rainwater goods;
f) Terrace screening.

Page 48
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character of the area.

12. Green living roof
Prior to the commencement of the roof of the property a strategy for the implementation of the green living roof
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The strategy should include details relating to the extent, specification, installation method and the management
and maintenance of the green roof unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of the dwellings and shall be maintained in
perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and that the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area would be safeguarded, to promote sustainability interests and biodiversity
and to reduce surface water run-off. Alternatives to sedum will be expected to be explored to improve
biodiversity and inclusion of native species.

13. Sample panels before specified elements started
Sample panels of the rubble stone wall, render and timber cladding; demonstrating the colour, texture, face
bond and pointing are to be erected on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
relevant parts of the work are commenced. The development shall be completed in accordance with the
approved details before the building is occupied.
Reason: In order that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.

Pre occupation conditions
14. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development, it must be
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken
in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination, CLR 11', and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which
ensures the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be
prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
15. Bird and bat boxes
The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with approved plan 1506(L)33 Rev A
‘Proposed bird boxes and bat tubes’. The approved details shall be installed prior to the first occupation of the
dwelling hereby approved and retained at all times thereafter.
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.
16. Implementation/installation of refuse storage and recycling facilities - shown on approved plans
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the refuse store, and area/facilities allocated for storing of
recyclable materials, as shown on the approved plans have been completed in accordance with the approved
plans. Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be stored

Page 49
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
within this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the buildings that form part
of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored or placed for collection on the public
highway at any time or on the pavement except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general environment, and
prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are adequate facilities for the storage and
recycling of recoverable materials.

17. Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle parking provision
shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept free of obstruction and available for
the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.

18. Sustainability Statement and Energy Strategy
The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the measures contained within the
approved Sustainability Statement and the approved Energy Strategy prior to the first occupation of the
development hereby approved and shall be maintained in accordance with these details in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that sustainability policy objectives would be met.

19. Solar photovoltaic and solar thermal panels
The solar photovoltaic and solar thermal panels hereby approved shall be installed and made fully operational
prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. The solar panels shall be maintained in situ in
accordance with the approved details and as fully operational thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development would meet sustainability and climate change policy objectives.

Post occupation management
20. Restriction of the use of the roof
The roof of the dwellings (with the exception of the area marked 'terrace' in association with Unit 2 on drawing
1506 (L) 22) hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony, terrace, roof garden or similar amenity area
without the grant of further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises from overlooking, loss of privacy and disturbance
through noise impacts.

21. No extensions
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995
(or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no extension or enlargement (including additions to roofs)
shall be made to the dwellinghouses hereby permitted (including refuse/ cycle storage courtyard), without the
express permission in writing of the council.
Reason: The extension of these dwellings requires detailed consideration to safeguard the amenities of the
surrounding area.

Page 50
8-Oct-18

Item no. 2
Development Control – 17 October 2018
Application No. 18/02902/F : Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
22. No further windows/ enlargement of windows
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995
(or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no windows, other than those shown on the approved
plans shall at any time be placed in any elevation of the dwellings hereby permitted and none of the windows
hereby permitted shall be enlarged or altered (other than like for like replacement of the window frames) without
the grant of a separate planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises from overlooking and loss of privacy.

23. Site clearance
No clearance of vegetation on the site or demolition of any structures suitable for nesting birds shall take place
between 1st March and 30th September inclusive in any year without checking of the vegetation or structure by
a suitably qualified ecologist no more than 48 hours before the clearance or demolition. Should any nesting birds
or other protected species be encountered within the relevant element during the checks, then work to this
element should stop immediately and the Council's Nature Conservation Officer should be contacted on 0117
922 3403 to advise further on the scope of works possible to the relevant element.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected.

List of approved plans
24. List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the application as listed below,
unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in order to discharge other conditions attached to
this decision.

Page 51
8-Oct-18

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol

SUMMARY
The application relates to a site situated on the north side of Belgrave Hill within the Clifton
Conservation Area, at the boundary with the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area.
The site forms part of an old quarry and is bounded to the north by a high retaining wall, which is the
former ‘cliff face’ of the quarry. Above this lie the gardens and properties of Upper Belgrave Road.
The site is very narrow at only 4m in width and is currently an open space that is overgrown with
vegetation and with the remains of rubble stone walls visible, that once formed a couple of terraces
with the eastern most part of the site being set at a higher level. Historic maps show that the site was
once built on.
The application is for two, two-bedroom dwelling houses, one of which would have a small outside
terrace. No off-street car parking is proposed.
The application follows a previous application in 2011 for three dwellings on the site, which was
refused by Committee on the grounds of impact on the residential amenity of 10 Sutherland Place/
Mews and insufficient details regarding ground stability concerns in relation to the retaining wall.
This application has been subject to full publicity and consultation and 32 representations have been
received objecting to the proposals including on the following grounds: overdevelopment, loss of
industrial quarry heritage, loss of open space, land stability, parking and highways issues and
residential amenity impacts.
Since the previously refused application, the number of dwellings proposed for the site has been
reduced from three to two and the applicant has carried out significant further investigation into the
land stability matters. The Council’s consultant structural engineer/geologist has advised that the land
stability issues can be satisfactorily addressed through appropriate planning conditions, including a
condition requiring details to be submitted of an insurance policy in which the City Council would be a
named party, allowing a claim to be made in the event that the Council needed to make the site safe
at any stage. This is consistent with the approach taken on similar developments elsewhere in the city
where land stability has been a key issue.
It is the view of your officers, on the basis of all of the material considerations related to this
application, that approval of the application should be given subject to conditions.

SITE DESCRIPTION
The application site is a piece of vacant open ground largely orthogonal in shape that has a frontage
of 29m facing Belgrave Hill. The site boundary abuts the northern side elevation of 10 Sutherland
Place/Sutherland Mews. There is a fall of approximately 1.7m fall across the length of the site that is
currently derelict and overgrown. The retaining wall to the rear of the site is constructed of local rubble
stone. The site area once formed part of a large quarry, a fact that explains the substantial change in
levels between Upper Belgrave Road, to the north and Belgrave Hill of between 8-12 metres.
The site is located within the Clifton Conservation Area but is situated along the boundary with the
Whiteladies Road Conservation Area. 15-21 Belgrave Hill to the east of the site are Grade II listed
buildings.
The site is within Flood Zone 1.

Page 52
Page 1 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
The following recent planning history is associated with the site:
13/03239/PREAPP- Pre-application enquiry for the development of 2 no. 'Use Class C3' dwellings.
CLOSED 12.11.2013
11/04256/F- Planning application for the redevelopment of the existing vacant site for 3no. two
bedroom dwelling houses with associated external amenity space, refuse and cycle storage.
REFUSED Committee decision 31 Oct 2012 on the following grounds:
1. By reason of its juxtaposition with neighbouring occupiers at both 10 Sutherland Place and
Sutherland Mews, the proposed development to include; its excessive height, scale, massing
and detailed design, would constitute both an oppressive and an overbearing form of
development. For the reasons given proposals are contrary to policies BSC21 of the Core
Strategy (June 2011) and Policy DM 27 of the Site Allocations and Development Management
Preferred Approach Document March 2012.
2. Insufficient information has been submitted with the application to fully determine the impact of
development upon the incidence of ground stability. As a result the proposal is contrary to policy
ME13 of the Bristol Local Plan.

APPLICATION
The application proposes two no. two-bedroom dwellings on the site, one of which would have a
small, screened roof terrace. Both properties would have flat roofs with solar panels and a living green
roof. Unit 1 is approximately 6.5m in height and 10.5m in length, Unit 2 is approximately 8m in height
(maximum) and 14m in length. Both units are approximately 4m in depth.
The materials proposed include recycled rubble stone and coloured render to the elevations. Unit 2
also incorporates a timber panelled element to the top storey.
No off-street car parking is proposed. Cycle storage for each unit is proposed within their own
individual, secure cycle stores.
The Certificates submitted with the application state that all reasonable steps have been taken to find
out the names and addresses of everyone who, on the day 21 days before the date of the application,
was the owner of any part of the land to which the application relates, but the applicant has been
unable to do so. A notice has been published in the Bristol Evening Post to notify anybody with an
interest in the land and neighbouring properties that share a boundary with the site notified.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
A Community Involvement Statement was not required for this application given that it is categorised
as a ‘minor’ application in planning terms.
A site notice and press notice have been posted/ published and neighbours have been consulted by
individual letter. 33 written representations have been received to the proposals, with 32 of these
comments objecting to the proposals on the following grounds:
- Design issues and detriment to the character and appearance of the Whiteladies Road Conservation
Area;
- Over development of the site with resultant" overcrowding";

Page 53
Page 2 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
- Impact on residential amenity in terms of loss of privacy, overshadowing;
- Noise and disturbance from roof areas;
- Additional on street car parking, with attendant and resultant detriment to highway safety,
congestion, obstruction and emergency access;
- Detriment to established nature conservation interests; including protected species.
- Wide spread fears have been expressed over likely prejudice to ground instability and/or
drainage/flooding;
- Loss of industrial heritage and aspect of the old quarry;
- Noise and disruption during construction;
- Living environment of future occupiers of the site;
Comments include objections from the Bristol Industrial Archaeological Society and South Gloucester
Mines Research Group.

OTHER COMMENTS
The Council’s consultant structural engineer has reviewed the detailed geotechnical reports and
application submission and confirmed that their advice is that it is possible for the works to be
undertaken without causing any problems or distress to the adjacent structures and that therefore
planning permission could be granted subject to certain conditions. The recommended conditions
including full-time supervision by a qualified structural engineer, condition surveys of all relevant
properties and a bond to ensure that the Council would have the funds to make the site safe if
required. See background papers for full details.
The Conservation Advisory Panel (CAP) supports the application. (See background papers for full
details).
Urban Design has commented as follows:The proposed development of 2 residential dwellings in this street responds effectively to the
surrounding context. It will introduce a new street frontage to this part of Belgrave Hill which will
contribute positively to the street environment by providing additional enclosure and street level
activity and opportunities for surveillance. The scale and form of the development reflects a mews
type development which is suited to the immediate context and is proportionate with the street width.
The proposal presents a contemporary architectural style which responds well to the site constraints
and reduces the impact on neighbouring properties. (See background papers for full details).
Transport Development Management has commented as follows:The proposal is a car free development, which is acceptable in this location. An advice note is
recommended given the emerging residents parking zone that residents of the development shall not
be eligible for parking permits. Acceptable provision is made for cycle storage. There are concerns
regarding servicing of the development due to the narrow nature of streets surrounding the site,
however servicing would be possible from this location, although not ideal. Detailed conditions are
recommended including a requirement for the submission of a Construction Management Plan. (See
background papers for full details).
Contaminated Land Environmental Protection has commented as follows:No objections are raised to the proposals subject to conditions. (See background papers for full
details).

Page 54
Page 3 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Nature Conservation Officer has commented as follows:There is no objection to this application subject to detailed conditions. (See background papers for
full details).
Archaeology Team has commented as follows:The site is a locally important heritage asset, refusal of the application on archaeology grounds would
not be justified given that the site is not of national significance nor are the structural remains of the
quarry activity sufficiently well preserved. There are many other examples of quarries in the Bristol
area either already built on or surviving as part of the present landscape.
If the proposals are granted consent, securing archaeological recording of these remains with
associated documentary research through planning conditions is the appropriate response. (See
background papers for full details).

RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012
Bristol Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011)
BCS5
Housing Provision
BCS9
Green Infrastructure
BCS10
Transport and Access Improvements
BCS13
Climate Change
BCS14
Sustainable Energy
BCS15
Sustainable Design and Construction
BCS16
Flood Risk and Water Management
BCS18
Housing Type
BCS20
Effective and Efficient Use of Land
BCS20
Effective and Efficient Use of Land
BCS21
Quality Urban Design
BCS22
Conservation and the Historic Environment
BCS23
Pollution
Bristol Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014)
DM1
Presumption in favour of sustainable development
DM14
The health impacts of development
DM15
Green infrastructure provision
DM17
Development involving existing green infrastructure
DM19
Development and nature conservation
DM23
Transport development management
DM26
Local character and distinctiveness
DM27
Layout and form
DM28
Public realm
DM29
Design of new buildings
DM31
Heritage assets
DM32
Recycling and refuse provision in new development
DM33
Pollution control, air quality and water quality
DM34
Contaminated land
DM37
Unstable land

Page 55
Page 4 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Supplementary Planning Guidance
Clifton & Hotwells Conservation Area Character Appraisal
PAN 2
Conservation Area Enhancement Statements (November 1993)
Bristol City Council Climate Change and Sustainability Practice Note (December 2012)
Bristol City Council Space Standards Practice Note (July 2011)
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

KEY ISSUES
(A)

IS THE PROPOSED LAND USE ACCEPTABLE IN PRINCIPLE IN LAND USE TERMS AND
IS THE MIX, BALANCE AND AMOUNT OF HOUSING PROPOSED ACCEPTABLE IN
PLANNING POLICY TERMS?

The proposals would provide residential accommodation on a brownfield site and would therefore
meet policy objectives to make more efficient use of land in a location close to an existing Centre
(Whiteladies Road Town Centre) and as a windfall site would provide housing over and above the
housing targets and allocated sites set out within the Core Strategy and would contribute to meeting
national housing policy objectives.
The application proposes two dwelling houses, each with two bedrooms. The nature of housing in this
area is a mix of houses and flatted accommodation. Given the constrained nature of the site, there is
limited scope for a mix of housing within the development itself and the proposal is concluded to be
acceptable in this respect and to contribute to objectives to achieve mixed and balanced communities.
The site has been vacant for a significant period and therefore may reasonably be identified as
undesignated open space. In terms of local planning policies; Policy BCS9 of the Bristol Core Strategy
(BCS) seeks to maintain, enhance and extend the city’s strategic green infrastructure network and to
protect areas of open space that are important for recreation/leisure/ community use and townscape/
landscape quality and visual amenity. Policy DM17 of the SADMP supports these aims.
The site is not a publicly accessible space and therefore does not serve a recreation, leisure or
community use function. In terms of townscape value; small amenity spaces in densely built up areas
including street corners may have important townscape value linked to their greening effect. This is a
view shared by many in the community and is partly due to the ongoing derelict nature of the site
which has led to the site becoming overgrown. While the site is considered to have some informal
townscape value in terms of its green nature, in other respects the derelict state of the site detracts
from the visual amenity of the area and residential development could readily have the potential to
improve the local townscape. Overall, the site is not considered to be so valuable in terms of its
townscape value as open space such that it should be set aside as open space indefinitely.
The principle of new residential development on the land would be acceptable.
(B)

WOULD THE PROPOSALS SAFEGUARD OR ENHANCE HERITAGE ASSETS OR AREAS
OF ACKNOWLEDGED IMPORTANCE AND HAVE ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONSIDERATIONS
BEEN ADDRESSED?

The site is within the Clifton Conservation Area (at its boundary with the Whiteladies Road
Conservation Area to the south, which runs along Belgrave Hill). The Clifton Conservation Area and
Whiteladies Road Conservation Areas are ‘designated heritage assets’ as defined within the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The site is not specifically identified within the Clifton and
Hotwells Character Appraisal or the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area Enhancement Statement.
There are several listed buildings within the immediate vicinity of the site- 15-21 Belgrave Hill to the
east of the site are Grade II listed and these also constitute ‘designated heritage assets’.

Page 56
Page 5 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
The NPPF also contains policies relating to non-designated heritage assets (i.e. 'heritage assets') and
defines these as being buildings, monuments, sites, places, areas and landscapes positively identified
as having a degree of historic significance meriting consideration in planning decisions. The site forms
part of a former quarry dating from the eighteenth century and there is evidence of residential
development on the site from the mid-nineteenth century. The site itself is therefore considered to be
a local heritage asset (non-designated). The site has no other designations on the Proposals Map for
the Bristol Local Plan - Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (SADMP) document.
Local heritage asset/ non-designated archaeological site
The significance of the heritage asset is as a site that forms part of a former quarry dating from the
eighteenth century and comprises a narrow strip of land to the south of the former wall of the quarry,
now faced in rubble stone. There are a number of vault structures evident within the face of the wall
and remnants of structural features from the former housing on the site. A lower rubble stone wall is
set at the back edge of the pavement and bounds the terraced areas behind the wall that are currently
derelict and overgrown with vegetation. The high stone wall is in need of stabilization as the integrity
of the wall has diminished over the years.
Paragraph 135 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that "The effect of an
application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. In weighing applications that affect directly or indirectly non designated
heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss
and the significance of the heritage asset."
Policy BCS22 of the Bristol Core Strategy requires development to safeguard or enhance heritage
assets and the character and setting of areas of acknowledged importance including Conservation
Areas and archaeological remains. Policy DM31 of the Bristol Local Plan- Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies (SADMP) document states that proposals affecting locally
important heritage assets should ensure that they are conserved having regard to their significance
and the degree of harm or any loss of significance and sets out the criteria to be addressed in terms
of conserving heritage assets.
In terms of archaeology, policy DM31 states that scheduled monuments and other non-designated
archaeological sites of equivalent importance should be preserved in situ. In those cases where this is
not justifiable or feasible, provision should be made for excavation and record with an appropriate
assessment and evaluation. The Council's Archaeology Team advises that while the site is an
important local heritage asset, that it would not be considered an archaeological feature of national
significance or equivalent to a scheduled monument. The structural remains associated with the
quarry activity are not sufficiently well preserved to require their preservation in situ or to justify refusal
of the application and archaeological evaluation and recording is recommended.
The historic mapping evidence for this area demonstrates that the site has previously been
developed, it is thought as cottages up to two-storeys in height judging by features remaining on site.
The proposed development is for two mews-style houses, and while these houses would partly
obscure the high retaining wall behind through infilling this space, the dramatic topography of the area
would still be clearly appreciated and the retaining wall would remain visible above the houses
retaining the sense of the original quarry wall and vault features within the wall.
It is therefore concluded that the harm to the significance of the heritage asset as a result of the
proposal would be limited and that the proposals would conserve the significance of this site in
accordance with the NPPF and local policies BCC22 and DM31. The proposal also offers
conservation benefits for the heritage asset in terms of the stabilization and maintenance of the rubble
wall in situ. Conditions relating to archaeological recording are recommended.

Page 57
Page 6 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Clifton Conservation Area and Whiteladies Road Conservation Areas
Great weight and considerable importance should be attached to the conservation of these
designated heritage assets. The proposal is concluded to maintain the sense of the topography of the
area and retaining the character of tight-knit streets with smaller residences that forms the character
of these parts of these Conservation Areas.
In terms of the NPPF assessment, it is concluded that the proposal would result in ‘less than
substantial harm’ to these Conservation Areas and that any harm would be minimal and limited to the
partial obscuring of parts of the existing retaining wall by the proposed houses and the loss of a very
small area of inaccessible, overgrown open space. This limited degree of harm would be concluded to
be justified by the public benefits of the proposals of bringing the site back into use and meeting
housing needs. In fact, there are considered to be conservation benefits in terms of ensuring the long
term preservation of the rubble wall and enhancement of this derelict site.
Listed buildings
15-21 Belgrave Hill to the east of the site are Grade II listed buildings. The proposals would be
concluded to preserve the setting and special interest of these buildings in accordance with the
requirements of the NPPF, Policy BCS22 of the Core Strategy, Policy DM31 of the SADMP document
and Section 66 (1) of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
Summary
In summary, the proposals would be concluded to conserve the significance of this heritage asset and
to conserve and safeguard the Clifton and Whiteladies Road Conservation Areas. The proposal would
preserve the setting and special interest of the nearby listed buildings 15-21 Belgrave Hill.
It is your officers' opinion that while great weight and considerable importance has been given to the
impact of the development on both non-designated and designated heritage assets that the impact on
these heritage assets would be limited and would be outweighed by the public benefits achieved in
terms meeting housing need requirements. The proposals are deemed by officers to be in accordance
with both Sections 66 (1) and 72 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990, Section 12 of the NPPF (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) and local policies
BCS22 and DM31 in all respects.
(C)

WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BE ACCPETABLE IN DESIGN TERMS?

Policy BCS21 of the Bristol Core Strategy states that development should deliver high quality urban
design, and sets out the ways in which development should achieve this. Policies DM26, DM27,
DM28, DM29 and DM31 of the Bristol Local Plan- Site Allocations and Development Management
Policies document (SADMP) set out more specific design criteria by which developments will be
judged. The key principles being that the design of development will be expected to contribute
towards local character and distinctiveness and result in the creation of quality urban design, making
efficient use of land and resulting in healthy, safe and sustainable places.
The proposed development of 2 residential dwellings in this street responds effectively to the
surrounding context. It will introduce a new street frontage to this part of Belgrave Hill which will
contribute positively to the street environment by providing additional enclosure and street level
activity and opportunities for surveillance. The scale and form of the development reflects a mews
type development which is suited to the immediate context and is proportionate with the street width.
The proposal presents a contemporary architectural style which responds well to the site constraints
and reduces the impact on neighbouring properties. The proposed materials (render and rubble
stone) are reflective of those found within the immediate context. The proposed design is concluded

Page 58
Page 7 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
to be acceptable and to safeguard the character and appearance of the Clifton and Whiteladies Road
Conservation Areas.
Conditions are recommended to ensure that the detailed design of the development would be of a
high quality finish.
(D)

WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SAFEGUARD THE RESIDENTIAL AMENITY OF
NEIGHBOURING OCCUPIERS AND WOULD IT MAKE SATISFACTORY PROVISION FOR
THE AMENITY OF FUTURE OCCUPIERS?

Neighbouring occupiers
Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy replaces policy B8 of the Bristol Local Plan and states that new
buildings should be designed so that the amenity of the existing and future occupiers of residential
properties are not adversely affected. This has been assessed with respect to the relationship
between the proposed properties and the existing surrounding properties. The key issues raised by
local residents in response to consultation include issues of loss of privacy, reduction in light levels
and noise from the use of terraces.
Overlooking
Belgrave Hill is a narrow street and the façade of the proposed development would be 6m from the
façade of those houses opposite. In view of this close separation distance, the potential for
overlooking of neighbouring homes on the opposite side of Belgrave Hill would be controlled through
the use of high level glazing, set back window positioning and narrow slot windows with the larger
area of glazing at the top level to be set back from the front of the site and positioned at roof level of
the property directly opposite. This relationship is concluded to be acceptable and while it is
acknowledged that some overlooking would occur, this would not be to an unacceptable degree.
The previous application was refuse on the basis of the impact on the amenity of 10 Sutherland Place
and Mews to the west of the site due to the overbearing impact of the development on this property as
a result of its proximity and scale. The development has been amended since this time to reduce the
number of dwellings and to improve the relationship with this dwelling. At present the flats and
maisonettes to 10 Sutherland Place and Mews each have habitable rooms, bedrooms and living
rooms, with an open aspect to Belgrave Hill, the lower floor to the Mews at street level has a bay
window. It is concluded that these revisions have now satisfactorily overcome these original concerns.
Reduction in light levels
In terms of reduction in light levels to the properties opposite on Belgrave Hill, the site is situated north
of these properties and therefore would have no overshadowing impact and would not result in a loss
of sunlight. A sunlight study has been submitted to demonstrate this. While the proposed development
would be situated in close proximity to the properties opposite, the narrow nature of this street and its
topography already limit the amount of daylight received by the windows of these properties and the
proposed development would not be concluded to significantly worsen this situation. Such a
relationship between buildings is not uncommon in tight-knit urban environments such as this.
Noise levels
The special acoustic properties of this area are noted in terms of the topography and the potential for
noises to be reflected from the quarry walls, as raised by a number of residents. The proposed
dwellings would not be expected to result in excessive noise levels compared to the existing situation.
Unit 1 would not have any outdoor space and only a small terrace is proposed to Unit 2 at first floor
level. This would be very small in size and set behind a timber screen which would prevent
overlooking and also contain noise. The flat roof area at the second floor level of Unit 2 would not be

Page 59
Page 8 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
accessible from the dwelling and a condition is recommended to this effect to prevent issues of
overlooking and disturbance.
Construction issues would be dealt with through a Construction Management Plan for the site.
Future occupiers
Space standards- The proposed development is for two dwellings each with a single and double
bedroom (i.e. three bed spaces). The dwellings would meet the minimum space standards required by
Policy BCS18 of the Core Strategy for dwellings of this size.
While the outlook from these dwellings is limited, it would be concluded to be acceptable on balance.
Summary
It is the view of officers that the proposals have addressed previous concerns in respect of the impact
on the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers and would safeguard the amenity of all
neighbouring occupiers and would make satisfactory provision for the amenity of future occupiers of
the site.
(E)

WOULD THE PROPOSALS BE ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF TRANSPORT AND
MOVEMENT ISSUES?

The site is located on Belgrave Hill, which is a narrow street with narrow pavements on either side.
The pavement on the north side of the highway in front of the application site is very narrow
(approximately 700mm wide) and is often parked on by vehicles along its length. There are no parking
restrictions along this road currently; however the Clifton East residents’ parking zone is currently
undergoing informal consultation. Under the proposals that have been informally consulted on as part
of this process, there are no residential parking permit spaces proposed along Belgrave Hill, however
a disabled parking bay is proposed outside the site.
Given the constrained nature of the site, no off-street parking is proposed for the new dwellings and
the development is therefore assessed as a car-free development. It is therefore recommended on
this basis that the residents not be eligible for parking permits and an advice note making this
recommendation is proposed. The site is in a sustainable location close to local facilities and public
transport routes on Whiteladies Road and therefore residents could reasonably be expected to live in
this location without the need for a private vehicle.
The existing pavement would be retained under the proposals and the proposed houses would have
entrances accessed directly from the pavement. While the pavement is very narrow in this location, it
would provide sufficient refuge for pedestrians entering or leaving the dwellings from the street. The
number and speed of vehicles travelling along Belgrave Hill is low given the narrow width of the street
and there would be good visibility of pedestrians entering or exiting the property for vehicles turning
the corner towards the site. This arrangement is concluded to be acceptable in terms of ensuring
pedestrian safety around the site.
Residents have raised concerns regarding emergency and access around the area as a result of the
proposal. Officers advise that the proposed development would result in reduced parking in this
location (on the pavement), which would improve access for emergency vehicles along Belgrave Hill.
This is likely to be formally set out through the emerging residents’ parking scheme.
Cycle storage and refuse storage is proposed off-street and is acceptable. Conditions are
recommended to secure this provision. While the access for servicing vehicles to the properties is not
ideal given the narrow nature of the surrounding street network, the dwellings are located close to

Page 60
Page 9 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
other existing dwellings that already require regular bin collections from close to the site. Officers are
therefore content that the dwellings would be serviced satisfactorily.
It is recommended that the details of the construction be agreed via a Construction Management
Plan, to be secured by condition. Other highways conditions are required.
(F)

HAVE LAND STABILITY AND GROUND CONTAMINATION ISSUES BEEN ADDRESSED?

The previous application on this site was refused by Committee on the basis that insufficient evidence
had been provided on the subject of ground stability. An extensive process of further consideration
and exploration of this issue has been carried out by the applicant in discussion with officers following
that Committee decision in order to address this matter. These issues are discussed further below.
Land stability
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out that the planning system should prevent
new development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from land instability and
should remediate and mitigate despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable land, where
appropriate to bring unstable land, wherever possible, back into productive use.
Planning decisions should ensure that the site is suitable for its new use taking account of ground
conditions and land instability and should ensure that adequate site investigation information,
prepared by a competent person, is presented. The NPPF makes clear that where a site is affected by
land stability issues the responsibility for securing a safe development rests with the developer. The
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) sets out the steps that developers should take if land
stability is an issue for an application and this is supported by Policy DM37 of the Bristol SADMP
relating to unstable land. These provisions require expert advice to be sought and an assessment of
ground stability to be undertaken and necessary remediation measures proposed.
The site forms part of a former quarry and a high retaining wall bounds the site with a substantial
terrace of properties set above the height of this retaining wall. The retaining wall is faced with rubble
stone, which is in a neglected state overall. The issue of land stability was considered under the
assessment of the previous application 11/04256/F, however Committee Members were not satisfied
with the level of information submitted regarding this issue and the application was refused on this
basis.
Since this previous decision, a further detailed technical site investigation and geotechnical
assessment report have been submitted with the application prepared by a ground engineering
consultancy. This report proposes an outline methodology that the full geotechnical investigation be
combined with stabilisation works in order to minimise costs (the main costs being in accessing the
cliff face) and to minimise disruption to neighbours.
The Council has commissioned an assessment of this report by local expert Dr Brian Hawkins of H M
Geotechnics (Chartered Engineer, Chartered Geologist and European Engineer). Dr Hawkins has
advised that the information submitted demonstrates that planning consent could be given subject to
the following conditions:
a) Full time supervision of the works by a suitably qualifies engineer/ geologist throughout the
enabling works;
b) Condition surveys on all of the upslope properties and their boundary walls (all upslope
properties within 10m of the boundary of the site). The surveys should be agreed with Party
Wall Inspectors and appropriate Party Wall Agreements signed and copies of the surveys and
agreements shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their records.

Page 61
Page 10 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
c) A bond should be provided by the developers to ensure that funds are available to safeguard
the stability of the retaining wall should the project not be completed timeously.
In response to this advice, the Council’s Legal Team has advised that rather than seeking a bond, a
condition to require evidence that an insurance policy has been taken out that would cover any
adverse effect the works may have on the stability of the retaining wall and neighbouring buildings.
The developer should be asked to provide confirmation that the insurance company has seen the
relevant reports and understand the nature of the risk they are insuring against. The developer would
also be required to demonstrate that the Council would be a named party to this insurance policy, to
allow the City Council to make a claim against this policy in the future should they need to- for
example if the development was left incomplete and the Council needed to ensure the safety of the
site. The condition is considered to be fundamental to the development as without it the development
should be refused and therefore meets the relevant tests for planning conditions. The removal of this
condition in the future would therefore not be acceptable.
A further condition is recommended to require supervision by a qualified structural engineer and an
advice note is required to recommend that the developer undertake condition surveys of all
neighbouring properties upslope of the site within 10m of the site boundary and 10 Sutherland Place/
Mews. This is a party wall matter and therefore must be dealt with through the Party Wall Agreement
process and cannot be required through this planning permission.
In summary, despite the challenging nature of construction for this site, the proposal to combine
further site investigation works with stabilization and remediation works is concluded to be acceptable
and officers are satisfied that the development would comply with the requirements of the NPPF and
NPPG. Provided that satisfactory insurance is in place to cover any potential problems as a
consequence of the proposed works and that the other points above are covered by condition, it has
been advised that development could be carried out safely.
Officers advise that the proposals would comply with the policy requirements of the National Planning
Policy Framework, Policy DM37 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies
document and the guidance of the NPPG in this respect.
Ground contamination
Officers are satisfied that ground contamination issues can be dealt with via appropriate condition.
(G)

HAVE SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES BEEN ADDRESSED AND ARE THERE ANY FLOOD
RISK ISSUES?

An Energy Strategy has been submitted to demonstrate the energy efficiency and renewable energy
generation measures proposed for the development. The application proposes the installation of both
solar thermal (hot water) and solar photovoltaic panels and the completed Energy Strategy table
indicates that this would achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions of 20% from the residual
level in line with local sustainability policy objectives.
Other aspects of sustainability including overheating considerations, material sourcing, heating
system, water consumption; drainage and green infrastructure are covered within the Design and
Access Statement. The proposal includes a sedum roof, which is welcomed. A condition is
recommended to seek the detail of this roof in order to maximise its potential to contribute to the
biodiversity of the area. Conditions are recommended to ensure that the sustainability measures
would be provided as proposed.
The site is within Flood Zone 1 and there are no flood risk issues.

Page 62
Page 11 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
(H)

HAVE NATURE CONSERVATION ISSUES BEEN ADDRESSED?

Ecological surveys have been carried out in respect of the site and the Council’s Nature Conservation
Officer advises that they are satisfied with the recommendations of these updated surveys and
recommends a number of conditions in respect of nature conservation. As evidence of the presence
of bats has been found at the site, the Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has recommended that a
method statement requiring further details of the precautionary approach to be taken during the work
in terms of identifying the presence of bats be agreed prior to work commencing.
(I)

ARE THERE ANY OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS?

During the determination of the application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
There is no indication or evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different
groups have or would have different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation to this
particular proposed development other than those considered above. Overall it is considered that the
approval of this application would not have any significant adverse impact upon different groups or
implications for the Equalities Act 2010.

CONCLUSION
The proposal is concluded to be acceptable in all respects including in terms of ground stability issues
and would be compliant with national and local planning policy in all respects. Approval of the
application is therefore recommended subject to detailed conditions.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay?
The CIL liability for this development is £8739.38.
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Full-time supervision by a structural engineer during enabling works
No development shall take place on site until details have been submitted to an agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority of the (suitably qualified) structural engineer/ geologist

Page 63
Page 12 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
who will undertake the full-time supervision of all enabling works (including all site
investigation, stabilisation works, clearance of base rock/ walls and foundation works).
Thereafter the enabling works shall only take place under the full-time supervision of the
agreed structural engineer/ geologist for the duration of these works and in accordance with
the approach set out within the approved Integrale 'Proposed method statement and sequence
of working' and Integrale 'Outline Methodology for Combining Geotechnical Investigation with
Stability Works' reports, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure proper supervision during works in the interest of land stability.
3.

Insurance policy
No development shall take place until the developer has provided evidence that an appropriate
insurance policy has been taken out (to which the City Council will have access as a named
party on the insurance details), to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in
respect of any adverse effect the works may have on the stability of the existing retaining wall
to the north of the site, any base rock/ walls adjacent to the footway and any neighbouring
properties upslope of the site within 10m of the site boundary and also 10 Sutherland Place/
Mews. The insurance policy shall be sufficient to cover any potential problems that may arise
during the course of construction and consequently as a result of the development.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority as a named party in the insurance policy,
has the access to the policy in order to secure the necessary funds to carry out any remedial
works required in respect of stability of the retaining wall or site, in the event that this becomes
necessary.

4.

To secure the recording of the fabric of buildings of historic or architectural importance
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or
stabilisation works to the retaining wall - other than basic works to ensure the safety of the
archaeologists/ other contractors to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior
to being carried out) shall take place until the applicant/developer has recorded those parts of
the building which are likely to be disturbed or concealed in the course of redevelopment or
refurbishment. The recording to be carried out by an archaeologist or archaeological
organisation approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that features of archaeological or architectural importance within a building
are recorded before their destruction or concealment.

5.

To ensure implementation of a programme of archaeological works
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or
stabilisation works to the retaining wall - other than basic works to ensure the safety of the
archaeologists/ other contractors to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior
to being carried out) shall take place on site until the applicant/developer has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a Written Scheme
of Investigation which has been submitted by the developer and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance and research
questions; and:
* The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording- including timetable;
* The programme for post investigation assessment- including timetable;
* Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording

Page 64
Page 13 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
* Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the site
investigation- including timetable;
* Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site
investigation- including timetable;
* Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out
within the Written Scheme of Investigation.
The development (including demolition of existing structures or stabilisation works to the
retaining wall - other than basic works to ensure the safety of the archaeologists/ other
contractors to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to being carried out)
shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved programme of archaeological work
and timetable for work. The publication of the analysis and records and the archive deposition
or the records shall be carried out in accordance with the timetable agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that archaeological remains and features are recorded prior to their
destruction.
6.

Construction environmental management plan
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or
stabilisation works to the retaining wall) shall take place until a site specific Construction
Environmental Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Council. The plan must demonstrate the adoption and use of the best practicable means to
reduce the effects of noise, vibration, dust and site lighting. The plan should include, but not
be limited to:
a) Management of vehicle movements including parking, routes for construction traffic,
proposed temporary traffic restrictions;
b) Details of siting and form of the site compound/ office;
c) Pedestrian and cyclist protection;
d) Method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway;
e) Hours of operation;
f) Procedures for maintaining good public relations including complaint management, public
consultation and liaison;
g) Arrangements for liaison with the Council's Pollution Control Team;
h) Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours;
i) Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants. This must also take into account
the need to protect any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility to air-borne
pollutants;
j) Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes;
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of surrounding occupiers and in the interests of
highways safety.

7.

Highway condition survey
The development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures or
stabilisation works to the retaining wall) hereby approved shall not commence until a condition
survey of the road network surrounding the site has been carried out to an extent to be agreed
with the Highway Authority and has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use until
remedial works to any part of this highway damaged as a result of the development have been
agreed with and undertaken to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority and details of these

Page 65
Page 14 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
works submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The developers
shall contact Highways Asset Management on 0117 9222100 to agree the extent of the
condition survey and any remedial works required.
Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the highway.
8.

Approval of footway works necessary
No development (including demolition/ alteration to existing base rock/ wall structures but
excluding stabilisation works to the retaining wall) shall take place until details of the following
works to the highway/ footway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority:
1. All works to the existing footway/ pavement required by the development;
The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until these works have been completed in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that all road works associated with the proposed development are to a
standard approved by the Local Planning Authority and are completed before occupation.

9.

Further large scale details before relevant element started
Large scale detailed drawings of the following elements shall be submitted to and be approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of work is begun. The detail
thereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with that approval.
a) Typical details of each new window and door type, including set-back window features, cills,
heads, reveals and surrounds;
b) Typical roof junctions including parapets, copings and eaves;
c) Typical corner detailing at junctions;
d) Junction with retaining wall;
e) Rainwater goods;
f) Terrace screening.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character of the area.

10.

Green living roof
Prior to the commencement of the roof of the property a strategy for the implementation of the
green living roof shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The strategy should include details relating to the extent, specification, installation method and
the management and maintenance of the green roof unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first
occupation of the dwellings and shall be maintained in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and that the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area would be safeguarded, to promote
sustainability interests and biodiversity and to reduce surface water run-off.

Page 66
Page 15 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
11.

Sample panels before specified elements started
Sample panels of the rubble stone wall, render and timber cladding; demonstrating the colour,
texture, face bond and pointing are to be erected on site and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the relevant parts of the work are commenced. The development
shall be completed in accordance with the approved details before the building is occupied.
Reason: In order that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.

12.

Bat method statement
No development (including enabling works: site clearance, stabilisation works and works to the
base rock/ walls on site) shall take place until a method statement prepared by a suitably
qualified ecological consultant setting out the precautionary methods to be followed during all
enabling and construction works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
method statement.
The development hereby permitted (including enabling works: site clearance, stabilisation
works and works to the base rock/ walls on site) shall be carried out only in accordance with
the recommendations of the approved bat survey report dated 17 July 2014 at all times. If
works to implement this consent do not commence within 12 months of this report (by 17 Jul
2015) then an updated bat survey report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any works on the site (including the
enabling works listed above).
Reason: To conserve legally protected bats.

13.

Bird and bat boxes
Prior to commencement of development details shall be submitted providing the specification
and location for built-in bird nesting and bat roosting opportunities. This shall include two builtin bird and two built-in bat boxes. The approved details shall be installed prior to the first
occupation of the dwelling hereby approved and retained at all times thereafter.
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.

Pre occupation condition(s)
14.

Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development, it must be reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11', and where
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which ensures the site will
not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and

Page 67
Page 16 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
15.

Implementation/installation of refuse storage and recycling facilities - shown on approved plans
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the refuse store, and area/facilities
allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved plans have been
completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable
materials associated with the development shall either be stored within this dedicated
store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the buildings that form part of
the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored or placed for collection on
the public highway at any time or on the pavement except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general
environment, and prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.

16.

Completion and maintenance of cycle provision - shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept
free of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.

17.

Sustainability Statement and Energy Strategy
The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the measures
contained within the Sustainability Statement section within the submitted Design and Access
Statement and the approved Energy Strategy prior to the first occupation of the development
hereby approved and shall be maintained in accordance with these details in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that sustainability policy objectives would be met.

18.

Solar photovoltaic and solar thermal panels
The solar photovoltaic and solar thermal panels hereby approved shall be installed and made
fully operational prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. The solar
panels shall be maintained in situ in accordance with the approved details and as fully
operational thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development would meet sustainability and climate change policy
objectives.

Post occupation management
19.

Restriction of the use of the roof
The roof of the dwellings (with the exception of the area marked 'terrace' in association with
Unit 2 on drawing 1506 (L) 22) hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony, terrace, roof
garden or similar amenity area without the grant of further specific planning permission from
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises from overlooking, loss of
privacy and disturbance through noise impacts.

Page 68
Page 17 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
20.

No extensions
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no extension
or enlargement (including additions to roofs) shall be made to the dwellinghouses hereby
permitted (including refuse/ cycle storage courtyard), without the express permission in writing
of the council.
Reason: The extension of these dwellings requires detailed consideration to safeguard the
amenities of the surrounding area.

21.

No further windows/ enlargement of windows
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no windows,
other than those shown on the approved plans shall at any time be placed in any elevation of
the dwellings hereby permitted and none of the windows hereby permitted shall be enlarged or
altered (other than like for like replacement of the window frames) without the grant of a
separate planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises from overlooking and loss of
privacy.

22.

Site clearance
No clearance of vegetation on the site or demolition of any structures suitable for nesting birds
shall take place between 1st March and 30th September inclusive in any year without checking
of the vegetation or structure by a suitably qualified ecologist no more than 48 hours before the
clearance or demolition. Should any nesting birds or other protected species be encountered
within the relevant element during the checks, then work to this element should stop
immediately and the Council's Nature Conservation Officer should be contacted on 0117 922
3403 to advise further on the scope of works possible to the relevant element.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected.

List of approved plans
23.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
1506(L)00 Site location plan, received 23 May 2014
1506(L)01 Existing site layout, received 23 May 2014
1506(L)21 Proposed elevation, received 23 May 2014
1506(L)22 Proposed floor plans, received 23 May 2014
1506(L)23 Proposed sections, received 23 May 2014
1506(L)24 Proposed section G-G, received 23 May 2014
Bat Survey, received 17 July 2014
Energy Statement, received 23 May 2014
Integrale 'Proposed method statement and sequence of working' report, received 23 May 2014
Integrale 'Outline Methodology for Combining Geotechnical Investigation with Stability Works'
report, received 23 May 2014

Page 69
Page 18 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Advices
1.

Living green roof
It is recommended that the green living roof be provided with local low-nutrient status subsoil
and no nutrients added with no seeding to take place to allow colonisation by native wild
plants. If seeding is preferred a wildflower mix should be used rather than Sedum (stonecrop)
because Sedum provides limited wildlife benefits.
The landform on the roof could be mounded with troughs and mounds to provide habitat
diversity and structure, with stones, coils of rope and dry dead wood included to provide
invertebrate niches (the use of egg-sized pebbles should be avoided because gulls and crows
may pick the pebbles up and drop them). Please see www.livingroofs.org for more
information.

2.

Construction site noise:
Due to the proximity of existing noise sensitive development and the potential for disturbance
arising from contractors' operations, the developers' attention is drawn to Section 60 and 61 of
the Control of Pollution Act 1974, to BS 5228: Part 1: 1997 - "Noise and Vibration Control on
Construction and Open Sites Code of practice for basic information and procedures for noise
and vibration control" and the code of practice adopted by Bristol City Council with regard to
"Construction Noise Control". Information in this respect can be obtained from Pollution
Control, Brunel House, St. George's Road, Bristol BS1 5UY.
Bristol City Council encourages all contractors to be `Considerate Contractors' when working
in the city by being aware of the needs of neighbours and the environment.

3.

Right of light: The building/extension that you propose may affect a right of light enjoyed by the
neighbouring property. This is a private right which can be acquired by prescriptive uses over
20 years; as such it is not affected in any way by the grant of planning permission.

4.

Contaminated land: It is suggested that the certificate of remediation referred to in Condition
No. 14; should be along the lines of:"This is to certify that the scheme of decontamination and reclamation at the site known as ****
in relation to Planning Application No. **** was carried out between the dates of **** and ****
and was completed in accordance with the specification detailed in the document reference
**** and titled ****, which were designed to afford protection from contamination on the site to
all known receptors (in this context contamination and receptor have the same definition as in
part 2(a) of the Environment and Protection Act 1990)".
The certificate should be signed and dated.

5.

Nesting birds: Anyone who takes, damages or destroys the nest of any wild bird whilst that
nest is in use or being built is guilty of an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
and prior to commencing work you should ensure that no nesting birds will be affected.

6.

Bats and bat roosts: Anyone who kills, injures or disturbs bats, obstructs access to bat roosts
or damages or disturbs bat roosts, even when unoccupied by bats, is guilty of an offence
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 and
the Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations Act. Prior to commencing work you

Page 70
Page 19 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
should ensure that no bats or bat roosts would be affected. If it is suspected that a bat or bat
roost is likely to be affected by the proposed works, you should consult English Nature
(Taunton office 01823 283211).
7.

Retaining walls: Where retaining walls above or below the highway are to be constructed or
are affected by development, details of the structural design should be approved by the Local
Highway Authority. (Telephone 0117 9222100).

8.

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO): The implementation of a TRO may be required. The TRO
process is a lengthy legal process involving statutory public consultation and you should allow
an average of 6 months from instruction to implementation. You are advised that the TRO
process cannot commence until payment of the TRO fees are received. Telephone 0117
9036846 to start the TRO process.

9.

Wessex Water requirements: It will be necessary to comply with Wessex Water's main
drainage requirements and advice and further information can be obtained from
http://www.wessexwater.co.uk.

10.

The development hereby approved is likely to impact on the highway network during its
construction. The applicant is required to contact Highway Network Management to discuss
any temporary traffic management measures required, such as footway, Public Right of Way
or carriageway closures, or temporary parking restrictions. Please call 0117 9031212 or email
traffic@bristol.gov.uk a minimum of eight weeks prior to any activity on site to enable
Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared and a programme of Temporary Traffic
Management measures to be agreed.

11.

Note that in deciding to grant permission, the Committee/Planning Service Director also
decided to recommend to the Council's Executive in its capacity as Traffic Authority that on the
creation of any Restricted / Controlled Parking Zone area which includes the development,
that the development should be treated as car free / low-car and the occupiers ineligible for
resident permits.

12.

Party Wall Act
Party Wall Agreements will likely be required in relation to all properties upslope of the site and
also 10 Sutherland Place/ Mews should they share a party wall with the application site.
Please be advised that this planning consent does not act in any way as Party Wall consent
and the developer/ applicant should be satisfied that they have undertaken all necessary
measures and actions in respect of this matter prior to the commencement of the
development.
It is recommended that the developer undertakes condition surveys of all properties upslope of
the application site within 10m on the site boundary as well as 10 Sutherland Place/ Mews to
provide a benchmark against which any potential movement/ damage can be measured.
In the event that any issues arise during or following construction in terms of impacts on the
upslope properties, the resolution of these issues will need to be addressed through the Party
Wall process, third party insurance or any other legal processes available to third parties.
However, the Local Planning Authority will seek through the discharge of Condition 4 to ensure
that the insurance policy taken out will cover damage to neighbouring properties.

13.

With regards to Condition 4 of this consent, you are advised that the City Council will require
access to the insurance policy (as a named party on the insurance details) in the event that a
claim is to be made.

Page 71
Page 20 of 21

Item no. 6
Development Control Committee B – 12 November 2014
Application No. 14/02366/F: Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill Bristol
14.

Bird and bat box guidance:
Examples of built-in bird and bat boxes are available from:
http://www.ibstock.com/sustainability-ecozone.asp
http://www.nhbs.com/brick_boxes_for_birds_eqcat_431.html
If built-in bird and bat boxes cannot be provided within built structures, they should be provided
on trees (with no more than one bird box per tree).
Bird boxes should be installed to face between north and east to avoid direct sunlight and
heavy rain. Bat boxes should face south, between south-east and south-west. Bird boxes
should be erected out of the reach of predators. For small hole-nesting species bird boxes
should be erected between two and four metres high. Bat boxes should be erected at a height
of at least four metres, close to hedges, shrubs or tree-lines and avoid well lit locations.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Urban Design
Transport Development Management
Contaminated Land Environmental Protection
Nature Conservation Officer
Archaeology Team
Consultant Structural Engineer
Conservation Advisory Panel

Page 72
Page 21 of 21

15 October 2014
8 October 2014
26 June 2014
24 July 2014
25 June 2014
30 September 2014
17 June 2014

Supporting Documents
1.

Land On North Side Of Belgrave Hill, Bristol
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Location plan
Existing plans
Existing elevations
Proposed plans
Proposed elevations
Proposed sections
Proposed section G-G

Page 73

Page 74

Page 75

Page 76

Page 77

Page 78

Page 79

Page 80

Supporting Documents
1.

Land on North Side of Belgrave Hill
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Location plan
Existing elevations
Existing plans
Proposed elevations
Proposed plans
Proposed section G-G
Proposed section

Page 81

Page 82

Page 83

Page 84

Page 85

Page 86

Page 87

Page 88

Agenda Item 8b
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019

ITEM NO. 2

WARD:

Bedminster

CONTACT OFFICER:

SITE ADDRESS:

Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood Road Bristol
BS3 3HH

APPLICATION NO:

18/02302/F

Natalie Queffurus

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
14 November 2018
DEADLINE:
Demolition of all existing buildings, and the erection of buildings to facilitate 67 residential dwelling
units consisting of 8 terraced houses and 59 flats, external landscaping, parking and other
associated works.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

CSJ Planning Consultants Ltd
1 Host Street
Bristol
BS1 5BU

APPLICANT:

Crown Developments
Unit 5
Victoria Grove
Bristol
BS3 2AN

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

21/12/18 14:12

Page 89

Committee report

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH

SUMMARY
The application site relates to an area of approximately 0.4ha of land known as land bounded by
Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road and Lynwood Road in Bedminster, South Bristol. The site is made
up of both the former buildings and yards of the Kellaway Building Suppliers and the existing site of
the Winterstoke Garage.
The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of all existing buildings at the site
and the erection of buildings to facilitate 67 residential dwelling units consisting of 8 terraced houses
and 59 flats, external landscaping, parking and other associated works.
The development proposes a mix of 59 one and two bed flats arranged over three separate flat blocks
of up to five storeys and eight three bed houses arranged over a terrace fronting onto Luckwell Road.
The application site is due to be purchased by United Communities Housing Association and they
have confirmed that should planning permission be granted they will be taking the site forward as
100% affordable housing.
Vehicular access to the site would be provided off Lynwood Road and this would provide access to a
two armed internal access road, with two associated parking zones comprising 42no. spaces.
Improved pedestrian access to the site is also proposed off Luckwell Road via a gated undercroft
through the Luckwell Building, a gated pedestrian access from the private lane from Winterstoke Road
and via the existing footpath on Lynwood Road through the removal of one of the gate posts on
Lynwood Road. The Application further proposes to retain the existing Winterstoke Centre right of
access for loading and unloading and improve the Winterstoke Centre loading dock, both the land
afforded the right of access to the Winterstoke Centre and the loading dock are in the Applicant’s
ownership.
Key issues in the report concern the principle of development, affordable housing provision, design,
impact on residential amenity, transport and movement, flood risk, nature conservation and
sustainable design and construction.
In relation to the principle of development it is considered that the loss of employment land at the site
is justified through the Economic Statement which demonstrates that a thorough marketing exercise
was undertaken and that the site has not attracted any serious commercial interest. It is further
considered that the site’s delivery of a fully policy compliant level of affordable housing, plus the
potential overall outcome of the site to be delivered as 100% affordable housing would make a
significant contribution to Bristol’s housing needs and should be given substantial weight in the
determination of the application.
In terms of design and impact on residential amenity, it is considered that the final design sufficiently
addresses the previous concerns from the Council’s City Design Group and the final layout and scale
would be acceptable in this location.
From a transport and movement perspective, whilst the site has an outstanding objection from Public
Transport regarding the lack of provision of a bus shelter and associated real time information, it is
considered that the proposed development is in accordance with all other relevant transport policies in
the Core Strategy and Site Allocations & Development Management Policies document. As such,

Page 90

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
when weighed in the balance, the issue of not providing a bus shelter with real time information is not
considered sufficient to warrant a recommendation for refusal in this case.
It is further considered that the legal representations submitted alongside the application have
satisfied the Council that whilst the Winterstoke Centre have a right of access for loading and
unloading at the proposed site entrance, this does not allow them to park or leave a vehicle
unattended and obstruct the access point to the site providing a sufficient means of access and
suitable enforcement mechanism.
Having carefully considered the technical information submitted in support of the application and the
policy context, specifically against the Core Strategy and Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies as the development plan, the application is recommended for approval subject
to the conditions attached to this report and Section 106 Agreement contributions set out in the
recommendation.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The application site relates to an area of approximately 0.4ha of land known as land bounded by
Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road and Lynwood Road in Bedminster, south Bristol. The site is made
up of both the former buildings and yards of the Kellaway Building Suppliers and the existing site of
the Winterstoke Garage.
Access to the site is currently gained off Luckwell Road via a dropped kerb and gated entrance,
Winterstoke Road via a private access lane to the Winterstoke Centre and Lynwood Road which is a
no through road providing access to both the former Kellaway Building Suppliers loading bay and the
current Winterstoke Centre loading bay.
The surrounding area comprises a mix of uses but is in predominately residential use to the north and
east and commercial and industrial uses off Winterstoke Road to the south and west. The site’s
immediate boundaries are formed by the Winterstoke Garage and the Redpoint Bristol Climbing and
Fitness Centre to the south and west, the Winterstoke Centre to the north which comprises a mix of
businesses including artists and event/equipment hire and nos. 184-192 Luckwell Road to the east.
The site is not allocated within the Local Plan for any particular land use and is not located within a
Conservation Area or in close proximity to any listed buildings.
RELEVANT HISTORY
The site has no relevant planning history, however a pre-application enquiry was submitted to the
Council in 2017 for the proposed demolition of all existing structures at the site and the erection of
residential dwellings.
APPLICATION
The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of all existing buildings at the site
and the erection of buildings to facilitate 67 residential dwelling units consisting of 8 terraced houses
and 59 flats, external landscaping, parking and other associated works.
The development proposes a mix of 59 one and two bed flats arranged over three separate flat blocks
of up to five storeys and eight three bed houses arranged over a terrace fronting onto Luckwell Road.

Page 91

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
The proposed density for the site is 144 dwellings per hectare (dph) and the accommodation mix
would be as follows:

Building
1. Luckwell Building

Height
4 storeys

2. Lynwood Building

5 storeys

3. Winterstoke Building

3 storeys

Terraced Houses

2.5 storeys

Accommodation Schedule
Total 13no. flats:
 5no. 1 bed flats
 8no. 2 bed flats
Total 43no. flats:
 12no. 1 bed flats
 31no. 2 bed flats
Total 3no. flats:
 3no. 2 bed flats
Total 8no. houses:
 8no. 3 bed houses

The application site is due to be purchased by United Communities Housing Association and they
have confirmed that should planning permission be granted they will be taking the site forward as
100% affordable housing.
All development would be focused around a small triangular area of public open space which would
accommodate some landscaping features and a ‘doorstep’ children’s play area.
Vehicular access to the site would be provided off Lynwood Road and this would provide access to a
two armed internal access road, with two associated parking zones comprising 42no. spaces.
Improved pedestrian access to the site is also proposed off Luckwell Road via a gated undercroft
through the Luckwell Building, a gated pedestrian access from the private lane from Winterstoke Road
and via the existing footpath on Lynwood Road through the removal of one of the gate posts on
Lynwood Road. The Application further proposes to retain the existing Winterstoke Centre right of
access for loading and unloading and increase the Winterstoke Centre loading dock by 250%,
including the provision of a new return leg to enable vehicles to reverse up to the dock.
The development also proposes one car club space on Luckwell Road and 119no. cycle spaces for
both residents and visitors, plus communal bin stores for the flats and private bin stores for the 8no.
terraced houses. Solar panels are proposed on the roofs of all buildings and brown roofs are
proposed for the three flat blocks.
A Section 106 Agreement for the site would include contributions relating to:
i)

13no. affordable dwellings (3no. houses and 10no. flats) with a tenure of 3 x 3 bed shared
ownership houses and 5 x 1 bed and 5 x 2 bed social rent flats;
ii) £5,395 – contribution for a Traffic Regulation Order for double yellow lines to prevent parking
along Lynwood Road and at the junction with Luckwell Road and at entrance of the site
and southern side of Lynwood Road;
iii) £5,395 – contribution for a Traffic Regulation Order to enforce a car club bay; and
iv) £3,500 – contribution for Travel Plan Management and Audit Fee.

Page 92

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Please note that the 13no. affordable dwellings in the above mix are the policy compliant ‘fall-back
position’ in the event that the site is not taken forward by a Registered Provider for 100% affordable
housing.

PRE-APPLICATION COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The Applicant has carried out pre-application community consultation as detailed in the Statement of
Community Involvement submitted with the planning application.
In Autumn 2017 discussions were held with Ward Councillors followed by consultation and a series of
public events and a door knocking exercise in Winter/Spring 2018 to discuss the proposed
development.
The issues raised and outcomes provided are detailed in the Statement of Community Involvement
submitted in support of the application.
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
Site notices were issues, a press advert published and letters sent to neighbouring properties.
GENERAL RESPONSE FROM PUBLIC
In total there were 35 replies received from members of the public. All 35 responses were in objection.
Comments were made in objection on the following grounds:










Parking pressures;
Impact of the shared access between the residential development and the Winterstoke Centre;
Height and scale of the proposed buildings is out of keeping and would overshadow and
overbear on existing surrounding properties and businesses;
Impact on the Winterstoke Centre 24hr loading bay and function of the business;
Conflict of light industrial and residential uses with noise impacting on future residents and fear
of complaints;
Loss of employment land;
Objection to the proposed yellow lines on Lynwood Road and lack of on-site parking;
Impact on the loading bay and security for Winterstoke Centre; and
Concerns about construction.

In addition to the objections received for the application, a legal representation and nine statutory
declarations were also submitted by the Winterstoke Centre in response to the application and the
Applicant’s legal representation and three statutory declarations from the previous operators at the
site. The documents submitted by the Winterstoke Centre outline their legal view with regards to the
right of access to their loading bay at the end of Lynwood Road and declarations from the owners and
tenants of the Winterstoke Centre outlining how the loading bay is used by their businesses.

Page 93

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
COMMENTS FROM COUNCILLORS
Councillor Mark Bradshaw – Neutral
I am commenting on the application as one of the Bedminster Councillors (for the record, I am also a
local resident living near to the proposed development site). On balance, I support the provision of a
mix of new homes, some affordable or intermediate, given the housing pressures across Bristol,
particularly in Bedminster.
The site was previously used by a builder's merchant with HGV vehicles and visitors arriving and
leaving during the working day. The previous occupier chose to relocate and this extensive site has
been vacant since. In this part of Bedminster, parking pressures are exacerbated by the number of
local businesses nearby, for whom employee and customer parking tends to be on street rather than
in dedicated parking areas. While we have considerable parking and traffic management issues
across the entire Ward, this tension between resident and employee/business parking is most
sensitive in the Winterstoke/Luckwell/Victory areas. You will see that parking is mentioned in most of
the public comments about this scheme.
I welcome the partnership between the applicant and United Communities to ensure that the
affordable homes are well-managed.
The applicant has been fairly receptive to discussions I have had with them about some local parking
and public transport issues. Relocating the bus stop to provide a shelter and hopefully real time
information, will be good for local people using the 24 bus route and facilities such as the nearby
climbing centre. Providing an additional car club vehicle and bay will be welcome as these are difficult
to secure outside the planning process.
However, both will have a marginal impact on the parking tension I've outlined. A permit scheme for
residents of the new development would have greater impact and I would ask the Council to seek to
introduce a restriction on residents in the proposed scheme from parking on Luckwell Road or nearby
streets.
The survey work completed by the applicant's transport adviser does not reflect the tidal local parking
pressures experienced. For example, there is much employee parking during the day from people
working at the nearby caravan factory which disappears after the shift changes in the afternoon.
However, during evenings more cars and vans appear due to events/classes at the Redpoint climbing
centre or people visiting North St park park here to avoid the RPS or general lack of parking spaces.
Also, it is now proposed to extend both the Southville and Bedminster East RPS, which will further
add to the pressures for limited on street parking.
I am also concerned at how Lynwood Road will be taking the brunt of all new vehicle movements onto
the busy Luckwell Road. I have told the applicant about my concern about visibility at this point, which
is also on a route to the nearby Primary School. Lynwood Road will also continue as the main access
for the local businesses remaining next to the proposed development. My view is that Lynwood Road
needs some additional work to improve both visibility and capacity. In terms of wider access, the link
for pedestrians and people cycling directly onto Winterstoke Road is welcomed.
Finally, various residents have raised their concerns about the impact of the taller 5 storey residential
block on their light and privacy. I know these are difficult issues for planners but both have a dramatic
impact on the quality of life for people living nearby. I would ask that some further work is done to

Page 94

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
remodel the height of the development to set back some of the highest elevations away from Luckwell
Road without losing the overall number of units, especially the affordable ones.
I would hope that suitable conditions can be framed to address the access, parking, building
height/overlooking issues and also site management aspects. The latter is also an important matter
for nearby residents, should the application receive approval, given that construction activity, dust and
noise; obstructive contractor parking and over lengthy pavement closures have recently been
experienced elsewhere in Bedminster.
COMMENTS FROM INTERNAL CONSULTEES
Economic Development – No objection
Economic Development have raised no objection to the loss of employment uses at the site.
Economic Development attended a meeting with the Applicant during the determination period and at
this confirmed that the loss of employment uses was justified through the Economic Statement
submitted with the application.
City Design Group – No objection
The Council’s City Design Group have provided a number of comments for the site and following the
most recent set of plans have commented as follows:
The issues raised previously related to the definition of public and private space, the reduction of the
number of single aspect apartments and the lack of evidence to suggest that the proposed scale of
the new buildings would not have an adverse impact on surrounding streets. In addition there was a
recommendation to apply conditions related to material and detailing around windows and doors to
ensure sufficient 3-dimensional modelling particularly of the larger block.
Whilst the concerns were aimed at trying to improve the design qualities of the scheme which would
possibly be in the main acceptable, there have been a number of aspects related to these concerns
that the applicant has acknowledged but ultimately made few changes to the design. The definition of
the public and private space was a key area where it was felt that improvements could be achieved,
particularly by the treatment of both vehicular and pedestrian entrances into the central space. This
has not been achieved, however, the latest drawings do attempt to increase the defensibility of part of
the central space which is most suitable for offering a level of amenity for families with children. Whilst
this is welcomed, it appears that opportunities to organise the site in a more legible way, or make
thresholds into the central space more apparent, have not been taken as recommended.
With regard to the scale of the 5 storey proposed building within what is essentially a broader
residential context, some diagrams have been produced to suggest that the development would not
be visible. (refer to applicant’s response dated the 21st June) The submission cannot be considered
as a comprehensive analysis of the site or the impact of the proposal and falls well short of an LVIA.
We have recently been using google earth to generate viewsheds which indicate where a point at any
height above ground can be seen. I have put a height of 15 metres to indicate the approximate height
of the 5 storey residential block. This appears to confirm that the development will not be visible from
the adjacent streets i.e., Colliter Cresent, Longmoor Road, Luckwell Road or Gore’s Marsh Road,
however views to the buildings will be possible as the land rises to the North East of the site. As such
it suggests that the development at 5 storeys will be visible from Garnet Street, Elmdale Road and
Avonleigh Road. Whist this seems likely, the existing views include the existing climbing centre and

Page 95

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
other industrial sheds along Winterstoke Road, and as such the proposed buildings are unlikely to be
overly detrimental. It does however suggest that we should contain some control of the design and
materials of the roofscape through condition.
To conclude the scheme maintains a number of design concerns as suggested above, however
provides a good response to the Luckwell Road elevation. I do not consider that the ongoing concerns
are sufficient to refuse the scheme on design grounds.

Transport Development Management – Objection from Public Transport
Transport Development Management (TDM) have removed all objections to the application apart from
one outstanding Public Transport objection:
Transport Statement
Due to the number of bus routes that are accessible within a moderate walk of the site coupled with
the fact that the city centre/key employment sites can also be reached on foot/cycle the statement
concludes that the site is within a sustainable location. To understand the potential impact the change
of use would have on the number of two-way trips that would be generated, an assessment was
undertaken using TRICs. This concluded that whilst the extant use would generate 223 two-way trips,
the proposed use would generate just 177 two-way trips, resulting in a net reduction of 46 two-way
trips on an average day. The application proposes 42 parking spaces.
Based on an assessment of car ownership levels for the Bedminster Ward taken from the 2011
census, when taking into consideration 12% growth as calculated by TEMPRO the site is likely to
require parking for approximately 61 cars. Further analysis undertaken by Transport Development
Management, which reviewed the likely number of cars that would be owned per household, revealed
a similar figure when discounting the 4% of households which would own three or more vehicles, as
this was considered highly unlikely due to the sites location. As a result of the proposed parking
arrangements this would leave a shortfall of 19 spaces.
However, following the submission of additional information on the 11th of September (Reference CTP-17-522) the applicant has confirmed that the entire development will now consist of affordable
housing. As residents of affordable homes within the Bedminster ward have lower car ownership
levels it is estimated that this would decrease the demand for parking by 13 vehicles. As a result the
site is likely to require parking for approximately 48 cars. A revised Parking Survey conducted on
Wednesday the 18th of July at 2018 at 10.20pm indicated that there were at least 26 spaces within a
150m walk. Whilst some of these spaces have been discounted, due to the requirement for parking
restrictions on Lynwood Road and the fact that Transport Development Management considers that
dangerously parked vehicles should not be included, the evidence would suggest that there is
sufficient space on-street to cope with any overspill parking.
However, it should be pointed out that as the survey was conducted right before the school summer
holidays it may not be entirely representative. Furthermore, the information submitted does not take
into consideration any parking associated with the tenants of the Winterstoke Centre that would occur
during the daytime nor the need for parking for any visitors. Many of the objections raised by local
residents indicate that the area currently suffers from a shortfall of on-street parking which due to the
lack parking restrictions leads to dangerous/inconsiderate parking. This is particularly acute when

Page 96

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
there are matches at Ashton Gate Stadium. To address these issues and for the avoidance of doubt,
it is recommended that an additional parking survey is undertaken outside of any school holidays.
Travel Plan
Whilst the Travel Plan submitted contains a number of measures, these are insufficient for a
development of this size and no information has been provided as to who or when they would be put
in place, what budget will be available or how they will be monitored. Due to the size of the
development a Travel Plan Management and Audit Fee of £3,500 applies. Alternatively for a fee of
£9,180 (£135 per dwelling) the council will undertake the implementation of the Travel Plan as well as
all monitoring required. A revised Travel Plan written using the council’s template, taking into
consideration the requirements set out within Travel Plan Guide for New Developments which is
available at www.bristol.gov.uk/travelplans must be submitted.
Footway / Lynwood Road / Traffic Regulation Order
As the existing vehicle crossovers on Luckwell Road will no longer be required, the applicant has
agreed to reinstate the footway to full kerb height, for which a Section 171 Licence and a Section 278
Agreement will be required. Due to the limited protection offered by the existing footway as a result of
the height/age of the kerbstones and its poor condition, as evidenced by surface cracking, it must be
fully reconstructed and resurfaced. To ensure large vehicles such as a fire tender and 11.4m refuse
vehicle can safely access the site the applicant proposes to install double yellow lines along one side
of Lynwood Road and at the junction with Luckwell Road. However, swept path analysis submitted
clearly shows that the space between any parked cars and an 11.4m refuse vehicle, particularly when
entering the site, would be extremely tight. If this manoeuvre were to be misjudged there is a risk that
the refuse vehicle could strike vehicles parked nearest the site access point. As a result double yellow
must also be provided on the southern side of Lynwood Road nearest the sites access point to
prevent this from happening. The cost of the associated Traffic Regulation Order (£5,395) along with
the cost of lining which will generate an additional charge must be met by the applicant.
Bus Stop / Car Club Space
Whilst the applicant has agreed to pay for the upgrading of the Marsh Lane (northbound) bus stop,
because they are not prepared to provide any additional land there is insufficient space to be able to
install a shelter. Public Transport Infrastructure Team considers the existing stop not fit for purpose
and that improved facilities are required in order to provide a more viable alternative to single person
car trips and encourage a modal shift. As a result the formally object to the proposals. To ensure there
is sufficient room for a bus to be able to pull up level with the raised kerb and pull away the length of
the bus cage cannot be altered.
It is also important to ensure there is sufficient spare capacity should the frequency of the improved
be increased at a later date. Furthermore the kerb radii at the junction between Winterstoke Road and
Luckwell Road will not be tightened as in doing so buses or any longer vehicles would travel over the
centreline, potentially into the path of oncoming vehicles. In regards to a car club space proposed on
Luckwell Road, this is acceptable providing the applicant is willing to pay for the cost of the Traffic
Regulation Order (£5,395) required to designate and enforce the bay, all lining and signing required, a
vehicle and membership for all residents of the development for a period of at least three years.
Servicing of the Winterstoke Centre

Page 97

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Currently the Winterstoke Centre can be accessed via an L shaped loading dock at the end of
Lynwood Road. As the building’s owner has a “right of way at all times and for all purposes (including
loading and unloading vehicles)” which grants them unrestricted access to the area in front of the
loading dock as shown by the hatched area on the supporting Land Registry Title BL91552 the
Applicant proposes to retain and improve the Winterstoke Centre’s loading dock and provide a parallel
loading bay. Evidence submitted by the applicant in the form of emails, three statutory declarations
and several letters (Reference MO.5407, Reference CTP-17-522, Reference Stancold Luckwell Rd),
the most recent of which was submitted by Cook & Co Solicitors on the 1st of November, set out that
whilst the Winterstoke Centre does have a right of way which expressly includes a right to load and
unload in the area to the front of the loading bay this this doesn’t allow them to park (other than for the
purposes of loading) or to obstruct the access point to the site.
In particular the three statutory declarations set out that the tenants of the Winterstoke Centre have
never backed up to the dock and have always parked against it when loading/unloading. This has
been directly contested by the owner/tenants of the Winterstoke Centre who have submitted their own
evidence in the form of nine statutory declarations and a letter written by their solicitors Temple Bright
(Reference PT/COL022/0001).
Whilst the loading dock is L shaped, due to the presence of a solid structure/pillar, it is not possible for
vehicles to back up to the section of the dock in front of the former Kellaway Building Supplies building
to unload from the rear of a vehicle and for items to then be transferred round into the Winterstoke
Centre, through the roller shutter door.
It has been suggested by the Applicant in evidence cited above that vehicles such as a Mercedes
Sprinter Van could park parallel to the loading dock within the proposed loading bay and be serviced
presumably by means of a sliding door. However:







It assumes all vehicles have side doors, which is not always the case;
It does not take into consideration the height difference between the loading dock and the
vehicle. An examination of the technical specification of a Mercedes Sprinter Van, available
online at www.mercedes-benz.co.uk, indicates that depending on the model the vans floor
would sit between 0.3m and 0.4m below the 0.9m high loading dock. As a result a ramp would
need to be used. Depending on the weight of the items to be transferred this may require the
vehicle to be parked away from the loading dock so that the ramp has a gentle gradient. In
such circumstances it is possible that the vehicle would completely block the access road for
the length of time that is needed to load it as per the current situation.
It assumes only panel vans will use the loading dock, which is not the case. In this instance a
flatbed truck fitted with hiab (a loader crane) is being used to transfer an extremely heavy
sculpture onto the back of the truck. Such large vehicles would more than likely completely
block the access road.
It does not take into consideration the fact that the proposed hammerhead will make it easier
for vehicles to reverse directly back to the loading dock and as a result will encourage the form
of servicing the applicant does not want the tenants of the Winterstoke Centre to undertake.

Due to the conflicting evidence that has been submitted by both parties, a definitive position was
sought from the Councils Legal Services Department. They have confirmed that whilst the
Winterstoke Centre has a right of access this does not include a right to park. As such if anyone
wanted to access the site they would be required to move any vehicle. Furthermore any arrangements
over the provision and access to the loading bay would need to be agreed between both parties as

Page 98

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
the access road will be on private land. On this basis the proposed servicing arrangements are
deemed to be acceptable.
Surface / Layout / Turning Areas / Lighting
The applicant proposes to make the entire internal road layout a shared surface. To prevent residents
from having to walk in the road the applicant proposes to remove one of the gateposts. The applicant
had requested that the hammerhead be adopted to enable Bristol Waste vehicles to access the site.
However, as it does not meet the councils adoptable standard so this is not possible. Instead a private
waste contractor will be employed. Swept path analysis submitted for an 11.4m long refuse vehicle
indicates that in order to enter the site and emerge in a forward gear there is the risk that it may hit: i)
Vehicles parked on the left hand side of Lynwood Road (looking towards the site) if parking
restrictions are not provided on both sides ii) Any vehicle utilising the loading bay as due to the
difference in height any vehicle is likely to project further out into the carriageway iii) The new
retaining brick wall to the rear of the terraced houses even with the provision of an offset kerb.
Furthermore due to its geometry the driver may not have a sufficiently clear view of any approaching
vehicles thereby increasing the risk of head on collision or a rear end shunt. As the carpark serving
the Winterstoke and Luckwell Buildings has space for 22 cars, the access road should be wide
enough to allow two cars to pass each other within the bend. Both the access road and parking
spaces will be constructed from permeable paving. To prevent the discharge of any surface water
onto the adopted highway appropriate drainage must be provided within the curtilage of the site at the
point of access. To protect Lynwood House from being hit five bollards are proposed which will be set
back at least 0.45m from the edge of the carriageway. Bollards will also be provided to protect the
visitor cycle parking by the entrance to Luckwell House. All of the buildings will feature 0.5m wide
buffers. To protect the Winterstoke Centre and the rear of the terraced houses all of the parking
spaces will feature wheel bump stops.
All of the parking spaces are 2.4m wide x 4.8m long, with the exception of the parallel space and have
at least 6m manoeuvring space. All of the spaces designated for disabled residents have 1.2m wide
hatched areas with the exception of the parallel space, which also lacks 45˚ splays. The spaces will
be allocated, marked, signed and illuminated by bollard lighting, as will the footpaths. To improve
connectivity across the site, the site plan proposes providing a pedestrian/cycle link under the
Luckwell Building that will be protected by a bollard. This is acceptable.
Pedestrian Access To Winterstoke Road
Whilst pedestrians will be able to access the site from Lynwood Road and Luckwell Road it was
originally proposed that they could also utilise the private lane off of Winterstoke Road that serves the
western end of the Winterstoke Centre. However, as this is protected by a right of way it must be
appropriately delineated by a wall/fence/bollards with signage provided to indicate that it is not a
public right of way.
Car Parking / Cycle Parking
The application proposes 42 on-site parking spaces all of which will be allocated. Of these three
spaces will be suitable for disabled people. To enable the installation of Electric Vehicle Charging
Points at a future date the applicant proposes to install the necessary ducting. To encourage
sustainable travel the applicant proposes to fund a car club and vehicle on Luckwell Road. All of these
measures are acceptable. In respect of cycle storage space will be provided for 119 cycles. This will

Page 99

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
consist of three internal stores for the blocks of flats which will comprise a mixture of Sheffield Stands
and two-tier racks which is acceptable. Each of the terraced houses will have a store within their rear
gardens. However, this would mean residents would have to carry their cycles through their homes
which is unacceptable and must be reconsidered. For the use of visitors seven Sheffield Stands will
be provided across the site.

Waste
The site plan submitted proposes that both the Luckwell and Lynwood Buildings will have internal
waste stores. As the hammerhead will not be sought for adoption, the applicant proposes to use a
private waste contractor to collect the waste. Whilst this is acceptable in the case of the Luckwell
Building the entrance to the store must be repositioned to the front of the building, thereby reducing
the distance crews will have to transport the bins. This is essential given that they can only
manoeuvre four wheeled bins a maximum of 5m.
In respect of the terraced houses integral waste stores are proposed within the small front gardens. It
is unclear however, based on the site plan submitted whether these will be large enough to
accommodate a refuse bin, two recycling boxes (44ltr and 55ltr) as well as kitchen waste bin and be
appropriately screened and secure against scavenging pests. This must be clarified. A Waste
Management Plan which sets out how waste will be managed, stored and collected is recommended,
which can be conditioned.
Construction Management
Due to the impact this proposal would have on the highway network during the demolition/construction
period the applicant must produce and submit a Construction Management Plan before work
commences. This would need to be adhered to throughout the construction period and should set out
details regarding:










Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors:
Routes for construction traffic
Hours of operation
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway
Pedestrian and cyclist protection
Proposed temporary traffic arrangements including hoardings and/or footway closures
Arrangements for turning vehicles
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles
Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses
A Highway Condition Survey will also be required, the extent of which will be determined in
consultation with Highways Maintenance. This must be undertaken prior to investigation work,
demolition, siting of site compound/welfare facilities. The survey must consist of:



A plan to a scale of 1:1000 showing the location of all defects identified;
A written and photographic record of all defects with corresponding location references
accompanied by a description of the extent of the assessed area and a record of the date,
time and weather conditions at the time of the survey.

Page 100

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH

Recommendations
Based on the additional information submitted Transport Development Management considers the
proposal acceptable on highway safety grounds. The following issues however do need to be
addressed:






The parallel disabled space should have 45˚ splays to enable vehicles to more easily access
the space.
Appropriate signage to be provided to indicate that the lane from the Winterstoke Centre to
Winterstoke Road is private and does not constitute a right of way.
Provide a canopy to protect the visitor’s cycle parking.
Cycle storage for the terraced houses must be reconsidered so that residents do not have to
transport cycles through their homes.
Reposition the doors to the waste store within the Luckwell Building so that they open directly
onto the footway.

Nature Conservation – No objection
The Council’s Biodiversity Officer has raised no objection to the application but has requested a
number of conditions related to demolition, bats and bird boxes and brown roofs.
Land Contamination – No objection
The Council’s Land Contamination Officer has commented as follows:
The proposed development is sensitive to contamination and is situated on and adjacent to land
which has been subject to land uses which could be a potential source of contamination. The Phase 1
and Phase 2 Geotechnical and Contaminated Land Investigation report, prepared by RSK Group
dated February 2018 reference 313843-R01 (00) has been reviewed as part of this consultation. The
report identified a number of contaminants of concern and recommendations for further works. The
survey was limited spatially due to the presence of existing buildings and operations, the existing
buildings earmarked for demolition have themselves been used for industrial purposes for many years
and asbestos containing materials noted. A number of above ground fuel storage tanks were
identified. There was also an issue with one of the ground gas monitoring points.
The presence of made ground on site may require removal and/or stabilisation, it is useful as part of
any future remediation strategy for details regarding the made ground can be provided. We also note
the SUDS strategy is to use an impermeable liner to create an attenuation tank of sorts, can the
applicants confirm the lifetime expectancy of such a liner? The product chosen should be adequately
resistant to contaminants present in the soils.
The Land Contamination Officer also recommended a number of conditions required for the site.
Air Quality – No objection
The Council’s Air Quality Officer has raised no objection to the proposed development.

Page 101

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Pollution Control – No objection
The Council’s Environmental Health Officer (EHO) raised some concern about the potential for noise
from the Winterstoke Centre affecting nearby residents of the proposed development. However, given
that it would be difficult for a noise survey to catch every likely noise from the warehouse site, the
EHO has requested that a Noise Sensitive Premises Assessment condition is applied should
permission be granted.
This condition would require a scheme of noise insulation and ventilation measures for the Lynwood
building to be submitted and approved in writing by the Council prior to commencement of
development and to take into account the application and the provisions of BS 8233: 2014 " Guidance
on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings”. The approved details shall be implemented in
full prior to the commencement of the use permitted and be permanently maintained.
Flood Risk – No objection
The Flood Risk Manager has commented as follows:
The drainage strategy is suitable in principle, I would recommend that our standard condition B35
Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) be applied to this application.
COMMENTS FROM EXTERNAL CONSULTEES
Bristol Waste – No objection
Following a review of the documentation for the development, Bristol Waste has considered the waste
and recycling provision.
For the 8 individual houses we would provide the standard kerbside collection service. This would
consist of the following containers for each property:
Container

Volume
(litres)
180
55

Width (mm)

Refuse bin
465
Green recycling
600
box
Black recycling box 45
540
Food waste bin
23
320
Kitchen caddy*
5
250
Garden waste bin** 240
570
*to be kept inside property **optional, paid for service

Depth (mm)

Height (mm)

740
400

1070
360

400
400
205
740

280
405
205
1070

The plans specify that each property will have adequate storage space to accommodate at least a
refuse bin, green recycling box, black recycling box and food waste bin. Whilst it is not a statutory
service it would be advisable to allow some additional space for a garden waste bin as these
properties do have gardens. Containers from all properties should be presented at the kerbside on the
relevant collection day.

Page 102

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
For the Winterstoke and Luckwell Buildings (16 apartments), we would recommend that the following
waste and recycling provision is allowed for:
Material

Collection frequency (per
week)

Container size (litres)

Number of bins

Plastic/Cans

1

360

1

Glass

1

240

1

Card

1

1100

1

Paper

1

240

1

Food

1

140

1

Refuse

1

1100

1

Total

6

For the Lynwood Building (44 apartments), we would recommend that the following waste and
recycling provision is allowed for:
Material

Collection frequency (per
week)

Container size (litres)

Number of bins

Plastic/Cans

1

360

2

Glass

1

240

1

Card

1

1100

1

Paper

1

240

1

Food

1

140

2

Refuse

1

1100

3

Total

10

This varies from what is indicated in the plans, which refer to ‘recycling’ bins. We collect recyclable
materials separated and in different sized bins. The requirements are therefore as detailed above.
Please note that given TDM is unable to adopt the internal access road and hammerhead the site
would be serviced by a private waste contractor.

Page 103

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Crime Reduction Unit – No objection
Crime figures for Beat area BS104
Violence against the person 443
Criminal damage 105
Burglary 96
Although I would not deem this to be a high crime area I am now making the following
recommendations to mitigate the risk of incidents occurring as a result of the proposed application
being built, there has been no mention of security measures in the Design and Access statement;








During preliminary discussions with the Architects, concerns were raised that the site was
excessively permeable. Allowing for the fact that there are established rights of way from
Winterstoke Road and that vehicular access is required from Luckwell Road, it was
recommended that gates were installed at the pedestrian access under the Luckwell
apartments building. This walkway could potentially feel the least safe walkway to the
development as it has no natural surveillance from either side due to the end terrace on
Luckwell Road having no gable end and its proximity to the refuse store. There will be natural
surveillance from the terrace on the opposite side of Luckwell Road. Gates in this location
would not necessarily need to be kept locked, but would indicate clear demarcation from the
public road to private space. I also recommend that this walkway is lit.
Boundary treatment for the rear of the new and existing terrace on Luckwell Road should
ensure that these properties are not made vulnerable from the ‘opening up of the space.
Although the terraces will have natural surveillance from the 5 floor Lynwood building (building
2) opposite, I recommend that the rear boundary of the terraces should have a wall/fencing of
at least 1.8 m which may then have additional topping to 2.m.
The two pedestrian access points from Winterstoke Road are likely, in my view, to be used as
a cut through by bikes and mopeds from the often very congested Winterstoke Road through
to Luckwell Road. I recommend that the planned bollards are spaced at a distance designed to
prevent mopeds being able to access the paths or to have a physical barrier to stop
mopeds/motorised bikes from gaining access. These measures would also act to ‘slow ‘cycles
entering the site and avoid conflict with residents using the communal seating and play area.
With regard to physical security for the five floor Lynwood apartments building, Secured by
Design New Homes 2016 recommends the following measures;
1. Larger developments containing more than 25 dwellings or bedrooms shall have an
access control system providing the following attributes, access to the building via use of
a restricted electronic key fob, card or key.
2. Vandal resistant external door entry panel with an integral camera.
3. Remote release of the primary entry door set from the dwelling.
4. Audio/visual communication between the occupant and the visitor.
5. Capture (record) images in colour of people using the door entry panel.
6. Battery back-up facility of the resident entry features of the system.

Page 104

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
7. Unrestricted egress from the building should be afforded to the user in the event of an
emergency or power failure.


In addition, as larger developments incorporating multiple flats can suffer adversely from antisocial behaviour due to unrestricted access to all areas and floors of the building, unlawful free
movement may be curtailed through the use of an access control system with either of the
following, controlled lift access, each resident is assigned access to the floor on which their
dwelling is located via the use of a proximity reader, swipe card or key. Dedicated door sets on
each landing preventing unauthorised access from the corridor to the stairwell and or lift, each
resident being assigned access to the floor on which their dwelling is located. It is imperative
that the fire service should have unrestricted access to all floors in the event of an emergency
and the access control system must incorporate this.



The smaller Luckwell apartments building should also have a visitor door entry system and
compartmentalisation as stated for the Lynwood apartments.



Communal cycle storage and refuse areas should also have restricted access via an access
control system to mitigate the risk of cycle theft and arson.

Please note that following the provision of the Crime Reduction Unit’s comments the Applicant
amended the plans to incorporate a gate for the undercroft off Luckwell Road and the rear entrance
from Winterstoke Road and confirmed that all other comments would be addressed should planning
permission be granted.
RELEVANT POLCIES
National Planning Policy Framework – July 2018
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate).
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
KEY ISSUES
(A) IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN PRINICPLE?
Loss of employment use
As the site is currently in employment use and in accordance Policy BCS8 the loss of employment
uses at the site is a key consideration in determining the principle of development for the site. Policy
BCS8 states that employment land outside of the Principle Industrial and Warehousing Areas should
be retained where it makes a valuable contribution to the economy and employment opportunities.
Policy DM13 further states that employment sites should be retained for employment use unless it can
be demonstrated that:
i. There is no demand for employment uses; or
ii. Continued employment use would have an unacceptable impact on the environmental quality
of the surrounding area; or

Page 105

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
iii. A net reduction in floorspace is necessary to improve the existing premises; or
iv. It is to be used for industrial or commercial training purposes.
Therefore in accordance with the above Policies, the Council would expect evidence of marketing
activity to be submitted with the application to demonstrate that the land is no longer viable or
valuable for employment uses.
An Economic Statement was submitted with the application which outlines that both employment sites
have been marketed by industry recognised commercial agents for longer than a year without any
serious commercial interest.
In relation to the former Kellaway site, the business moved out of the premises in July 2017 to new
premises on Vale Lane, Bedminster. The company moved as the subject premises were no longer
deemed to be fit for purpose and would not allow them to grow their business. The site is now vacant
and the site was marketed by ETP property consultants from March 2017 (for a period 1 year and 1
month at the time of submission). ETP marketed the freehold and leasehold interests of the property,
undertaking comprehensive marketing, which included marketing the site online, mailing and emailing
details to commercial property agents and the production of full marketing particulars to be made
available and sent to any interested parties.
During the marketing of the site many enquiries were received, however these were drawn from
residential property developers seeking planning conditional agreements. During the marketing
exercise, there was no serious interest from commercial users, including no offers received and no
site inspections requested due to the property/site no longer being attractive for commercial uses.
The other half of the application site is currently in use by the Winterstoke Garage (Use Class B2).
The owner plans to vacate the premises soon and move business operations to an adjacent site
(more suitably fronting Winterstoke Road), retaining employee levels within a modern and more
appropriate facility. The site to be made vacant was marketed by Lambert Smith Hampton from
February 2017 (for a period of 1 year and 2 months at the time of submission). Lambert Smith
Hampton undertook a comprehensive marketing campaign which included marketing the site online,
mailing and emailing details to commercial property agents and the production of full marketing
particulars to be made available and sent out to any interested parties.
During the first 7 months there was almost no serious interest in the site despite a lengthy, extensive
and wide-ranging marketing exercise. Further marketing endeavours were undertaken in late August
2017 to promote interest, however the process failed to deliver any unconditional offers. The only
serious interest which generated offers was for the redevelopment of the site for residential purposes.
In Lambert Smith Hampton’s professional opinion, the site could no longer be considered valuable
employment land. The property did not attract occupier interest due to its poor condition, poor external
space for loading access and the strong competition from higher quality and better specified industrial
premises on more established industrial estates in the locale.
Officers have reviewed the Economic Statement and supporting information submitted with the
planning application and noted that the unallocated employment site is no longer making a valuable
contribution to the economy and employment opportunities. The Council’s Economic Development
team has raised no objection to the planning application and it is considered that the loss of
employment land and change of use to residential is justified.

Page 106

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Residential Use
In considering the principle of development and redevelopment of the site for residential use, it is also
important to consider whether the site would be appropriate for residential development.
Policy BCS1 states that South Bristol will be a priority focus for development and comprehensive
regeneration. With reference to the delivery of housing the policy aims for the provision of around
8,000 new homes of a mix of type, size and tenure within the South Bristol. The policy further outlines
that development within this part of the City will primarily occur on previously developed land.
Alongside Policy BSC1, Policy BCS20 requires that new development is primarily focused on
previously developed land.
Policy BCS5 sets out that the Core Strategy aims to deliver new homes within Bristol's existing built
up areas and between 2006 and 2026, 30,600 new homes will be provided in Bristol. The policy
further states that the development of new homes will primarily be on previously developed sites
across the city.
The Urban Living SPD states that development proposals should make the most efficient use of land
by delivering an optimum density for its site and location.
By proposing a large residential development, in a sustainable location on a previously developed
site, it is considered that the proposed development would accord with Policy BCS1 and BCS20 of the
Bristol Core Strategy.
The proposed development would deliver 67no. affordable dwellings within the existing built up area
of Bedminster. The site is considered to be in a sustainable location with access to a variety of public
transport offerings including bus routes on Luckwell Road and Winterstoke Road and would be in
close proximity to the Parson Street railway station.
Furthermore, the site would be located within an existing residential area to the north of Winterstoke
Road where a mix of both residential and commercial uses, within close proximity to each other is
already established. The delivery of the site would also help the Council to meet its target for new
homes and would provide a site of 100% affordable housing.
Conclusion
In conclusion, it is considered by Officers that the principle of the proposed development on the site is
supported.
(B) DOES THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PROVIDE AN APPROPRIATE LEVEL AND MIX OF
AFFORDABLE HOUSING?
The proposed development falls within Use Class C3 of the Use Classes Order, meaning that it is
required to address the Council’s Affordable Housing Policies.
Policy BCS17 requires all residential developments of 15 dwellings or more to deliver 30% affordable
housing and to provide a mix of affordable housing units and contribute to the creation of mixed,
balanced and inclusive communities.
During the determination of the application an email was submitted to the Council confirming that
United Communities Housing Association have agreed terms with the Applicant to purchase the site

Page 107

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
and should planning permission be granted the site would come forward as a 100% affordable
housing, supported by a grant from Bristol City Council which has recently been approved.
Overall it is United Communities Housing Association’s intention to the deliver the site as 100%
affordable housing, however the Section 106 Agreement will only secure the policy complaint 13no.
affordable dwellings (when taking into consideration the Vacant Building Credit). These 13no.
affordable dwellings would be provided without grant funding and would be available in perpetuity in
the event that the site is not taken forward by United Communities Housing Association or another
Registered Provider.
The application is therefore in full accordance with Policy BCS17 by delivering a policy compliant
13no. affordable homes through a Section 106 Agreement. Members should give substantial weight to
the extent to which the proposals are contributing to the delivery of affordable housing through the
Section 106 Agreement, specifically the 13no. dwellings secured in this way.
Members may want to also give weight to the potential overall outcome of the total amount of
affordable housing proposed to be delivered at the site - another 54no. affordable dwellings for
Bedminster.
Officers consider that we have reached a stage where the proposals provide a policy compliant
scheme for affordable housing and that the opportunity exists to enable a high quality development
that (with the input of public subsidy) provides a good level of affordable housing.
(C) IS THE DESIGN OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE?
Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy aims to ensure that all new development in Bristol achieves high
standards of urban design. The policy states that “design can contribute positively to local character
by responding to the underlying landscape structure, distinctive patterns and forms of development
local culture”.
Policies DM26-29 of the SADMP require development to contribute to the character of an area
through its layout, form, public realm and building design.
The Council’s City Design Group (CDG) has reviewed all original and revised planning plans and
drawings for the application and from the outset have tried to work with the Applicant to improve the
environmental quality of the proposed development.
Following the provision of the final revised plans the Council’s CDG have welcomed some of
proposed changes at the site, including the defensibility part of the central space which is now a more
suitable offering for the level of amenity. There has also been a reduction in the number of single
aspect apartments. The Applicant has also sought to address the comments from the Crime
Prevention Unit by providing a gate under the Luckwell Building undercroft off Luckwell Road and the
private lane from Winterstoke Road.
The Council’s CDG have confirmed that they do not now have any objection to the proposed
development which would warrant a refusal from a design perspective.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policy BSC21 and
Policies DM26-DM29 and should planning permission be granted an appropriately worded condition
would be applied to ensure that further large scale details are provided prior to the commencement of
development for all windows and doors and elevation treatments for the facades of all buildings.

Page 108

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
(D) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HAVE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE AMENITY
OF RESIDENTS SURROUNDING THE SITE?
Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy states that high quality design should consider the amenity of both
existing and future residents.
Policy DM29 states that new buildings should be designed to a high standard of quality, responding
appropriately to their importance and reflecting their function and role in the public realm.
A number of comments have been made by members of the public relating to the impact of the
proposed development on their amenity, particularly in terms of overlooking, overbearing and
overshadowing.
Overlooking
In terms of overlooking, the nearest residential property to the proposed development is no. 192
Luckwell Road which would have a first floor window located some 13m in plan from the edge of the
eastern elevation of the proposed Lynwood Building. Concerns have therefore been raised about the
overlooking impact from the windows on this eastern elevation onto the existing Luckwell Road
terrace.
In response to this the Applicant has confirmed that the building has been positioned at a
perpendicular angle to the existing terrace to reduce any impact of overlooking and all windows on
this elevation would either be at a high cill level (minimum of 1.5m above finished floor level) or would
be at an oblique angle or behind a parapet to prevent overlooking.
Furthermore, when considering the perpendicular angle between the proposed building and existing
terrace, the separation distance would increase to 15.2m which is a marginal increase in the existing
separation distance between no. 192 Luckwell Road and the existing warehouses at the site. It is
therefore considered that the design of the Lynwood Building is sufficient to reduce any potential
impacts on residential amenity.
There were also some concerns raised that the fourth floor roof terraces of the Lynwood Building
would present a risk of overlooking. However, the Applicant has confirmed that the terraces are
positioned back from the roof edge by 1.5m and would have a parapet up-stand to prevent anyone on
the terraces looking directly down into the gardens of Luckwell Road.
Overbearing
In terms of overbearing, concerns have also been raised about the height of the proposed
development and in particular the five storey element of the Lynwood Building. Whilst it is
acknowledged that there are no other five storey buildings in close proximity to the site, it is
considered that the scale and height of the building is justified in this location. The tallest Lynwood
Building is located at the northern extent of the site and set back as far as possible so its visibility from
the road is reduced. Furthermore, the provision of roof terraces at the eastern and western elevations
of the fourth floor mean that the five storey height is only in the middle section of the building and
provides a step down in scale and massing.
The proposed terrace and other two flat blocks have also been designed to reflect the prevailing
heights in the surrounding area. The houses are all 2.5 storeys in height with the pitch and ridge
height of the proposed houses set to match that of the existing terrace. The Luckwell Building and

Page 109

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Winterstoke Building have also been designed to reflect the height of the adjacent climbing centre
which at its highest point extends to four storeys and then steps down to three.
CDG have also concluded that given the existing long distance views of the climbing centre and the
surrounding industrial units, the proposed buildings were unlikely to be detrimental or overbearing in
the wider site context.
Overshadowing
In terms of overshadowing the Applicant submitted a Shadow Study for both the summer solstice (21
June) and the autumn equinox (21 September) for both the existing and proposed scenarios. The
study shows that at 15.00pm on the summer solstice the overshadowing to the gardens of nos. 190
and 192 Luckwell Road would marginally worsen as a result of the proposed development. The study
also shows at 15.00pm on the autumn equinox the overshadowing to the gardens of nos. 184 – 190
would worsen.
However, the proposed development would not result in any increased overshadowing to the
habitable rooms of the existing Luckwell Road terrace and whilst it is acknowledged that the
overshadowing to the gardens would marginally worsen during the summer solstice, when people are
most likely to use their gardens, it is considered that the impact of overshadowing is acceptable when
weighed in the balance.
In terms of impact on light to the adjacent Winterstoke Centre whilst it is acknowledged that light to
the centre is important, the proposed development would actually open up this part of the site through
the demolition of the existing warehouse buildings and enable more light to enter into the centre.
Overall it is considered that the proposed development is designed and sited in a way to avoid
adverse impacts on the amenity of residents and adjacent land uses in accordance with Policies
BCS21 and DM29.

(E) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HAVE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE AMENITY
OF FUTURE OCCUPIERS?
Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy states that high quality design should consider the amenity of both
existing and future residents.
Policy BCS23 states that in locating and designing development, account should be taken of the
impact of existing sources of noise or other pollutions on the new development and the impact of the
new development on the viability of the existing uses by reason of its sensitivity to noise or other
pollution.
Policy DM35 states that noise-sensitive development in locations likely to be affected by existing
sources of noise such as busy roads, railway lines, aerodromes, industrial/commercial developments,
waste, recycling and energy plant and sporting, recreation and leisure facilities, will be expected to
provide an appropriate scheme of mitigation to ensure adequate levels of amenity for future occupiers
of the proposed development.
As part of the consideration for the application, consultation was undertaken with the Council’s
Environmental Health Officer (EHO) to assess whether the existing surrounding land uses would have
an adverse impact on the amenity of future of occupiers in terms of noise.

Page 110

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
The EHO raised some concerns about the potential for noise from the Winterstoke Centre affecting
nearby residents of the proposed development. However, given that it would be difficult for a noise
survey to catch every likely noise from the Winterstoke Centre, the EHO has requested that a Noise
Sensitive Premises Assessment condition is applied should planning permission be granted.
This condition requires the details of the proposed scheme of noise insulation and ventilation
measures in accordance with the provisions of BS 8233: 2014 "Guidance on sound insulation and
noise reduction for buildings” for the Lynwood Building be submitted and approved in writing to the
Council prior to commencement of development. The approved details shall then be implemented in
full prior to the commencement of the use permitted and be permanently maintained.
It is therefore considered that with the proposed measures of control governed by the condition, the
adjacent Winterstoke Centre would not adversely impact on the amenity of future occupiers.
(F) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS TRANSPORT AND
MOVEMENT ISSUES?
Policy BCS10 and Policy DM23 require that development does not give rise to unacceptable traffic
conditions. These policies support the delivery of improvements to transport infrastructure to provide
an integrated transport system, which improves accessibility within Bristol and supports the proposed
levels of development. With regards to parking and servicing, it requires that development proposals
provide an appropriate level of safe, secure, accessible and usable provision having regard to the
Council’s adopted parking standards.
Policies DM27, DM28 and DM32 in tern deal with layout and form, public realm and recycling and
refuse provision in new developments. Policy DM27 specifically outlines that Proposals should not
prejudice the existing and future development potential of adjoining sites or the potential for the area
to achieve a coherent, interconnected and integrated built form.
Transport Development Management (TDM) have removed their objection to the proposed
development related to a conflict between the existing loading bay at the Winterstoke Centre and the
proposed vehicular access route for the site. However, there is an outstanding objection to the
application from Public Transport in relation the upgrading the bus stop on Luckwell Road.
Winterstoke Centre Loading Bay
TDM’s primary concern for the site was the potential conflict between the existing Winterstoke Centre
loading bay and the proposed site access. Currently the Winterstoke Centre utilise part of an Lshaped loading dock at the end of Lynwood Road. They also have a legal right of access over a
square shaped area at the end of Lynwood Road (hatched in blue on the appended Land Registry
Title BL91552 in the Supporting Documents pack) for unrestricted loading and unloading of vehicles
at all times.
This area of land, whilst granted unrestricted access for the Winterstoke Centre, is within the
Applicant’s ownership as is the current loading dock utilised by the Winterstoke Centre and therefore
as part of the proposed development the Applicant intends to retain and respect this right of access
for employment purposes and improve the existing loading dock for the Winterstoke Centre by
increasing it in size by 250% and providing a new return leg to the dock which would enable users to
reverse up to the dock and load / unload parallel to the Winterstoke Centre and entrance to the
proposed site. The improved loading dock would also remove the existing canopy, pillars and existing
structures which currently prevent access from one part of the loading bay to the other.

Page 111

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
The Applicant considers this parallel loading bay arrangement and dock improvements are
appropriate as they believe it would reflect the current loading arrangements in place for the centre as
described in their submitted statutory declarations. However, the current loading bay arrangements
have been disputed by the Winterstoke Centre in their legal representation and statutory declarations,
expressing concern about the potential conflict between the loading bay and proposed site access.
Evidence submitted by the Applicant in the form of several letters, a legal representation and emails,
including three statutory declarations from the previous owners and occupiers of the site and the
adjacent Kellaway loading bay suggest that the presence of the loading bay and the proposed access
would not present a conflict as the bay could be loaded from a parallel position, which is how the two
adjacent loading bays have allegedly been previously operated.
Written correspondence has also been provided by the Applicant outlining that discussions were held
with both the management and those who work at the Winterstoke Centre prior to the submission of
the application, and the proposed development has been designed to secure and retain their right of
access and loading.
However, since these initial discussions it is apparent that there has been a breakdown in
communication between the Winterstoke Centre and the Applicant with several strong objections, a
legal representation and nine statutory declarations submitted by both the owners of the Winterstoke
Centre and their tenants. These letters relate to the proposed interaction between the residential
development, its proposed access and the existing operations at the Winterstoke Centre.
The Winterstoke Centre have stated that delivery vehicles ranging from small vans to 8 tonne trucks
regularly serve the site delivering and removing large stone and metal sculptures, sound equipment
etc. and these movements are essential for the operation of the Winterstoke Centre and their tenants.
They have further suggested that due to the presence of a solid structure between the Winterstoke
Centre loading bay and the former Kellaway loading bay it is not possible for vehicles to be loaded
parallel to their bay as suggested by the Applicant. As a result the Winterstoke Centre have
suggested that the majority of vehicles have not been loading parallel to their bay but have reversed
back to the loading bay at a perpendicular angle to load, apart from in the case of very large vehicles
which must load parallel. They have also stressed that they are entitled to “park in any position on the
area referred to, including all loading bay areas. Users of the Winterstoke Centre are entitled to and
do park in any position on that area while they load and unload. On frequent occasions, as is
evidenced in the objections and the statutory declarations now submitted in reply to the application,
the vehicles can be present for hours at a time. The application envisages the removal of a significant
part of the current loading bay, and the creation of a through road. It should be self-evident that if
planning permission were granted on the current application, on many occasions when the owner and
tenants lawfully utilise the easement, there would be significant conflict with the new residents,
delivery and servicing vehicles.”
Given the conflicting views presented by the Applicant and the Winterstoke Centre it has been difficult
for TDM to ascertain the full picture of how the Winterstoke Centre currently operates but in any event
for the purposes of the determination of this application what is significant is how the access can be
used in law.
Following the submission of the legal representations from the Applicant’s solicitor, the Winterstoke
Centre’s solicitor and a legal review by the Council’s solicitor, the Council are satisfied that whilst the
Winterstoke Centre have a right of access for loading and unloading, this does not allow them to park

Page 112

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
or to obstruct the access point to the site. Further, the enforcement of a private right of way of this
nature is a private law matter given that the access to the site will not be adopted but the planning
authority needs to be satisfied that the access arrangements can operate satisfactorily as proposed.
The legal right of the Winterstoke Centre is a right of way which is a right of passage and a right to
load and to unload, not a right to remain, to park or to obstruct.
The Solicitor acting for the Applicant has confirmed that under the terms of the Exception and
Reservation on the title to the land;




Vehicles belonging to Winterstoke Centre are not permitted anywhere outside of the Loading
Area,
They are not allowed by the Exception and Reservation to be unattended (loading and
unloading must by definition be an attended activity),
The Winterstoke Centre are not allowed to park, nor unreasonably obstruct the Loading Area
shown coloured blue on the plan.

In summary following a legal review by the Council’s Legal Services Department the access is
deemed acceptable in highways terms. It is acknowledged that there are private rights over the new
access but any issue regarding those rights and their enforcement is a private law matter that would
need to be resolved between the landowners and outside the planning system.
Transport Statement and Travel Plan
The Applicant submitted a Transport Statement and Travel Plan with the application which concluded
that due to the number bus routes that are accessible within a moderate walk of the site, coupled with
the fact that the city centre/key employment sites can also be reached on foot/cycle, the site is within
a sustainable location. The Transport Statement also included a TRICs assessment which concluded
that whilst the extant use would generate 223 two-way trips, the proposed use would generate just
177 two-way trips, resulting in a net reduction of 46 two-way trips on an average day.
In terms of parking, the site proposes 42no. allocated parking spaces at the site which TDM consider
to be a shortfall of 6no. spaces. However, the Applicant have submitted a Parking Survey conducted
in July 2018 which indicates that there were at least 26no. offsite parking spaces within 150m of the
site. Whilst some of these spaces have been discounted, due to the requirement for parking
restrictions on Lynwood Road and the fact that TDM considers that dangerously parked vehicles
should not be included, the evidence would suggest that there is sufficient space on-street to cope
with any overspill parking and TDM have not objected the proposed provision.
The Travel Plan submitted with the application also contains a number of measures to discourage the
use of the private car including a travel information pack and free taster public transport tickets.
However despite the measures included in the submitted plan, TDM have requested an update to the
Travel Plan through a pre-occupation condition.
Traffic Regulation Order
As the existing vehicle crossovers on Luckwell Road would no longer be required, the Applicant has
agreed to reinstate the footway to full kerb height, for which a Section 171 Licence and a Section 278
Agreement would be required. To ensure that large vehicles such as fire engines and refuse vehicles
can safely access the site, the Applicant has also agreed to install double yellow lines along the
northern side of Lynwood Road and the southern side of Lynwood Road nearest the sites access

Page 113

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
point. The costs of the associated Traffic Regulation Order would be secured through a Section 106
Agreement.
The Applicant has also agreed to a contribution to provide a car club space on Luckwell Road which is
required to designate and enforce the bay, all lining and signing required and provide a vehicle and
membership for all residents of the development for a period of at least three years.
Bus Stop
Whilst the Applicant has agreed to pay for the upgrading of the Marsh Lane (northbound) bus stop
because they are unable to provide any additional land to facilitate the installation of a shelter, the
Public Transport Infrastructure Team have objected to the application. Public Transport consider the
existing bus stop not fit for purpose and that improved facilities including a bus shelter and real time
information should be provided to provide a more viable alternative to single person car trips to
encourage modal shift.
Whilst Public Transport’s objection to the scheme is a material consideration for the application, it is
considered that:




The site is located within a sustainable location with good access to employment and public
transport.
The existing bus stop has a raised kerb that provides level access.
The provision of additional land for a bus shelter would likely result in the loss of developable
land and impact on the number of affordable housing units in what is quite a challenging site,
when considering the access arrangements and adjoining uses.

As such, when weighed in the balance, the issue of not providing a bus shelter with real time
information is not considered sufficient to warrant a recommendation for refusal in this case.
Cycle Parking / Waste
The development proposes 119 no. cycle spaces which meets the Council’s minimum requirement.
All proposed flat blocks would have internal secure communal bike stores. The 8no. terraced houses
would have secure bike sheds in their rear gardens and visitor cycle spaces are proposed. TDM have
raised concerns about the location of the bike store for the residential properties in the rear gardens
given that there will be no rear access. However, the levels at the rear of the site would preclude a
rear access and the Crime Prevention Officer has raised concerns about a rear access for the
houses. It is therefore considered that the location of the bike stores is acceptable.
In addition to the communal bike stores, the Luckwell and Lynwood Buildings would have secure
internal bin stores and the terraced houses would all have their own external bin store. Given that
TDM are unable to adopt the hammerhead and internal access road the site will be served by a
private waste contractor and a Waste Management Plan will be conditioned should planning
permission be granted. All bin stores would meet the policy requirements and would be located within
5m of the highway.

Page 114

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Construction Management
During consultation some concerns were raised about construction management, as such a
Construction Management Plan condition will be required should planning permission be granted,
which will cover both traffic and environmental management during demolition and construction.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is acceptable in highways and transport
terms and accords with Policies BCS10 and DM23.
(G) IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF FLOOD RISK?
Policy BCS15 states that sustainable design and construction will be integral to new development in
Bristol. As part of this, development should address conserving water resources and minimising
vulnerability to flooding. Further to this, Policy BCS16 states development in areas at risk of flooding
will be expected to be resilience to flooding through design and layout and / or incorporate sensitively
design mitigation measures which could take the form on on-site floor defence works.
The site is located with Flood Zone 1, an area identified at low risk of flooding. The application is
accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy which have been reviewed by the
Council’s Flood Risk Manager.
The Flood Risk Manager has raised no objection to the Drainage Strategy and has confirmed that the
outline FRA and Drainage Strategy are deemed acceptable in principle. The Flood Risk Manager has
requested that a detailed Sustainable Urban Drainage Strategy condition is applied.
On the basis of the information submitted with the application and the planning conditions which
would be imposed should planning permission be granted, it is considered that the proposed
development is in accordance with Policies BCS15 and BCS16.
(H) IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF NATURE
CONSERVATION?
Policy DM19 states that any development which would be likely to have any impact upon habitats,
species or features which contributes to nature conservation should be designed (as practicably as
possible) to avoid any harm.
The proposals have been reviewed the Council’s Biodiversity Officer and they have raised no
objection subject to the implementation of a series of conditions related to demolition, bird and bat
boxes and brown roofs.
A comprehensive landscape plan has also been submitted with the application which proposes a
number of urban trees within the site. A doorstep play area with natural play and pergola feature with
climbing plants and trellises are also proposed to better enclose the space and provide some natural
green features within an otherwise urban setting. The Landscape Plans have been reviewed by the
Council’s CDG and they have raised no objection.
It is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policy DM19 with regards to
nature conservation and green infrastructure.
(I) DOES THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ADOPT AN APPROPRIATE APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION?
Policies BCS13-15 concern climate change and sustainable design, energy and construction. The
policies require development to contribute to both mitigating and adapting to climate change, and to

Page 115

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. They require development in Bristol to include
measures that reduce carbon emissions from residual energy use by at least 20%.
The Energy and Sustainability Statement submitted with the application demonstrates that through the
use of PV panels across the development, a carbon dioxide saving of 20.1% can be achieved, which
aligns with the policy requirement. Other sustainable features of the site include the provision of
brown roofs and electric charging points.
In conclusion the proposed development is considered to be in accordance with Policies BCS13-15.
CONCLUSION
Notwithstanding the objection from Public Transport regarding the lack of provision of a bus shelter
and associated real time information, the proposed development is considered to be in accordance
with all other relevant policies in the Core Strategy and Site Allocations & Development Management
Policies document.
This application would not only deliver a policy compliant level of affordable housing but is also
expected to deliver all 67no. dwellings as affordable homes making a significant contribution to
Bristol’s housing needs in an existing sustainable location. The loss of employment land at the site
has been justified and it is considered that the design of the development has sufficiently overcome
issues of layout, appearance, amenity (for both existing and future residents), overlooking and
overbearing.
Given the scale and complexity of the site, the proposed development has been assessed under a
broad range of headings within this report and having carefully considered the technical information
and policy context, the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions attached to
this report and the signing of the Section 106 Agreement.
CIL
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay?
The CIL payable is £ 181,975.22
RECOMMENDATION

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

(A) That the Applicant be advised that the Local Planning Authority is disposed to grant planning
permission, subject to the completion, within a period of six months from the date of this
committee, or any other time as may be reasonably agreed with the Service Director, of a
planning agreement made under the terms of Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended), entered into by the Applicant, Bristol City Council and any other
interested parties to cover the following matters:
i)

13no. affordable dwellings (3no. houses and 10no. flats) with a tenure of 3 x 3 bed shared
ownership houses and 5 x 1 bed and 5 x 2 bed social rent flats;
v) £5,395 – contribution for a Traffic Regulation Order for double yellow lines to prevent parking
along Lynwood Road and at the junction with Luckwell Road and at entrance of the site
and southern side of Lynwood Road;
vi) £5,395 – contribution for a Traffic Regulation Order to enforce a car club bay; and
vii) £3,500 – contribution for Travel Plan Management and Audit Fee.

Page 116

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH

(B) That the Head of Legal Services be authorised to conclude the Planning Agreement to cover
matters in recommendation (A).
(C) That on completion of the Section 106 Agreement, planning permission be granted subject to
the following conditions:

CONDITIONS
1. Full planning permission

The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the date
of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre-commencement condition(s)
2. Further large scale details before relevant element started
Detailed drawings of the following shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the relevant part of work is begun. The detail thereby approved shall be
carried out in accordance with that approval.
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

All windows and doors;
Elevations showing design details of façade treatments;
Roof design for the Lynwood Building 2;
45˚ splays for parallel disabled parking space;
Lighting for shared surface access, car parking spaces and footpaths; and
Appropriate signage to indicate that the private lane to the Winterstoke Centre is private and does
not constitute a right of way.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, the character of the area and highway safety.

3. Highway Works – General Arrangement Plan
No development shall take place until general arrangement plan(s) to a scale of 1:200 indicating
the following works to the adopted highway have been submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority






Reconstruction and resurfacing of the footway to full kerb height along the entire length of the site
on Luckwell Road
Remove keep clear lines on Luckwell Road by removing and relaying the surface course of the
adopted highway
Indicating proposals for:
Existing levels of the highway tying into building threshold levels
Alterations to waiting restrictions or other Traffic Regulation Orders to enable the works

Page 117

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH





Locations of lighting, signing, street furniture, street trees and pits
Structures on or adjacent to the highway
Extent of any stopping up or dedication of new highway (including all public rights of way shown
on the definitive map and statement)
No development should take place over the route of the public right of way prior to the
confirmation of a Town & Country Planning Act 1990 path diversion/stopping up order
Prior to occupation these works shall then be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway
Authority and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For further information contact
the Highway Authority’s Transport Development Management Team by emailing
transportdm@bristol.gov.uk
Reason: In the interests of public safety and to ensure that all road works associated with the
proposed development are planned and approved in good time to include any statutory
processes, are undertaken to a standard approved by the Local Planning Authority, and are
completed before occupation.
NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement under
Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the Highway
Authority’s technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be considered
and approved.

4. Construction Management Plan
No development shall take place including any works of demolition until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and been approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan must demonstrate the adoption and use of the
best practicable means to reduce the effects of noise, vibration, dust and site lighting. The
approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The statement
shall provide for:


-

-

-

All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such other place
as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out only between the
following hours: 08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays and 08 00 and 13 00 Hours
on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2: 2009 Noise and Vibration Control on
Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbance from construction
works.
Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.
Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants.
Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for security
purposes.
Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
Routes for construction traffic.
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway.
Pedestrian and cyclist protection.
Proposed temporary traffic arrangements including hoardings and/or footway closures.
Arrangements for turning vehicles.
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles

Page 118

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
-

Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and neighbouring
residents and businesses.
Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the highway and amenities of surrounding occupiers
in the lead into development both during the demolition and construction phase of the
development.

5. Highways Condition Survey
No development shall take place (including investigation work, demolition, siting of site
compound/welfare facilities) until a survey of the condition of the adopted highway has been
submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. To agree the extent of
the area to be surveyed contact the Highway Authority’s Transport Development Management.
Team by emailing transportdm@bristol.gov.uk The survey must consist of:



A plan to a scale of 1:1000 showing the location of all defects identified;
A written and photographic record of all defects with corresponding location references
accompanied by a description of the extent of the assessed area and a record of the date, time
and weather conditions at the time of the survey.
N.B. No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until any
damage to the adopted highway has been made good to the satisfaction of the Highway
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any damage to the adopted highway sustained throughout the
development process can be identified and subsequently remedied at the expense of the
developer.

6. Further site investigation
Following demolition but prior to construction, an additional site specific risk assessment and
intrusive investigation shall be carried out to assess the nature and extent of the site
contamination and whether or not it originates from the site. The investigation and risk
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must
be produced.
The results of this investigation shall be considered along with the Phase 1 and Phase 2
Geotechnical and Contaminated Land Investigation report, prepared by RSK Group dated
February 2018 reference 313843-R01 (00). The written report of the findings shall be submitted to
an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works (except demolition) in
connection with the development, hereby approved, commencing on site. This investigation and
report must be conducted and produced in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agencys Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off site receptors.

Page 119

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
7. Land affected by contamination - Submission of Remediation Scheme
Following demolition no construction shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human
health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to
be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and
site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
8. Land affected by contamination - Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no development other than that required to be carried out
as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall take place until the approved remediation
scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local Planning Authority must be
given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and
be approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination both during the construction phase and to
the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
9. Sustainable Drainage System (SUDS)
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy
and associated detailed design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage
for the site using SuDS methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved Sustainable Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and
maintained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory
means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the
lifetime of the proposal.

Page 120

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
10. Demolition
The demolition of the buildings shall be carried out using a ‘soft strip’ method. Areas of the
building with fibre-concrete sheeting including roofing and fascias shall be dismantled by hand.
Reason: To conserve legally protected bats in the event that they are found to be roosting.
Guidance: All species of bats and their roosts are legally protected. Soft stripping is a
precautionary measure in case legally protected bats are roosting in a building. For example
ridges and roof tiles should be lifted off vertically rather than slid off, and linings within the roof
and any wooden cladding, soffits or similar which provide crevices should also be removed with
care. Demolition of buildings is best carried out between April to October inclusive to avoid
disturbing hibernating bats. If bats are encountered all demolition or construction work should
cease and the Bat Conservation Trust (Tel 0845 1300 228) should be consulted for advice.
11. Brown Roofs

Prior to commencement of the relevant part of the works, a method statement shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the creation of brown living roofs on
site which do not employ a significant area of Sedum (Stonecrop). This shall include details of the
layout and area, construction, design (to include the provision of features for invertebrates,
mounds and troughs, seeding and planting) and maintenance of the living roofs. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the statement or any amendment approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To conform with Policy DM29 in the Local Plan.
Guidance: The roofs should be covered with local low-nutrient status aggregates (not topsoil) and
no nutrients added. Ideally aggregates should be dominated by gravels with 10 - 20% of sands.
On top of this there should be varying depths of sterilised sandy loam between 0 - 3 cm deep. An
overall substrate depth of at least 10 cm of crushed demolition aggregate or pure crushed brick is
desirable. The roofs should include areas of bare ground and not be entirely seeded (to allow wild
plants to colonise) and not employ Sedum (stonecrop) because this has limited benefits for
wildlife. To benefit certain invertebrates the roofs should include local substrates, stones, shingle
and gravel with troughs and mounds, piles of pure sand 20 – 30 cm deep for solitary bees and
wasps to nest in, small logs, coils of rope and log piles of dry dead wood to provide invertebrate
niches (the use of egg-sized pebbles should be avoided because gulls and crows may pick the
pebbles up and drop them). Deeper areas of substrate which are at least 20 cm deep are
valuable to provide refuges for animals during dry spells. An area of wildflower meadow can also
be seeded on the roof for pollinating insects. Please see www.thegreenroofcentre.co.uk and
http://livingroofs.org/ for further information and the following reference: English Nature (2006).
Living roofs. ISBN 1 85716 934.4

Page 121

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
Pre-occupation condition(s)
12. Noise Sensitive Premises Assessment
No commencement of use shall take place until a scheme of noise insulation and ventilation
measures for the Lynwood building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.
The scheme shall take into account application and the provisions of BS 8233: 2014 "Guidance on
sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings”. The approved details shall be implemented in
full prior to the commencement of the use permitted and be permanently maintained.
The recommended design criteria for dwellings are as follows:
-

Daytime (07.00 - 23.00) 35 dB LAeq 16 hours in all rooms & 50 dB in outdoor living areas.
Nightime (23.00 - 07.00) 30 dB LAeq 8 hours & LAmax less than 45 dB in bedrooms.
Reason: To interests of amenity for future occupiers.

13. Further details of waste storage for the terraced dwellings
The terrace houses shall not be occupied until there has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority further details of the proposed waste storage. The details
will confirm that the waste storage is provided in a secure and covered space with the correct
capacity. No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the
waste storage have been completed in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: To ensure the provision of secure cycle and waste storage.
14. Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities – Shown on approved
plans
The Lynwood Building and Luckwell Building shall not be occupied or the use commenced until
the refuse store, and area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the
approved plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all
refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be stored within this
dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the building(s) that form
part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored or placed for collection
on the public highway or pavement, except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general
environment, and prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.
15. Waste Management Plan

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a waste
management plan setting out how waste will be stored and collected has been submitted to and
been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the approved waste management plan.
Reason: To ensure appropriate waste management facilities are provided to accommodate all
waste generated by the development.

Page 122

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
16. Renewable Energy Generation Measures

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the respective solar photovoltaic
panels shown on the approved plans have been installed and are operational. Thereafter the
solar panels shall be maintained as fully operational in perpetuity at all times, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To secure sufficient renewable energy generation to satisfy Core Strategy Policy BCS14.
17. Completion of Vehicular Access - Shown on approved plans

No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means of
vehicular access has been constructed and completed in accordance with the approved plans
and the said means of vehicular access shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

18. Completion of Pedestrian and Cyclists Access - Shown on approved plans

No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means of access
for pedestrians and cyclists have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans and
shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
19. Reinstatement of Redundant Accessways - Shown on approved plans

No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the existing accesses
to the development site has been permanently stopped up and the footway reinstated to full kerb
height in accordance with the approved plans. An Excavation Licence (Section 171 Licence) must
be obtained before starting any work on the adopted highway. For full information visit
www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety.
20. Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on approved plans

No building hereby permitted shall be occupier or the use commenced until the car/vehicle
parking area shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, the area shall be
kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles associated with the development.
Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development.

Page 123

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
21. Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision – Shown on approved plans

No building hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle parking
provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept free of
obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.
22. Travel Plan – Submitted

Prior to occupation or use commenced, evidence that the pre-occupation elements of the
approved Travel Plan have been put in place shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
The approved Travel Plan shall then be implemented, monitored and reviewed in accordance with
the agreed Travel Plan to the satisfaction of Local Planning Authority unless agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To support sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single occupancy car
journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking and cycling.
23. Street Name and Numbering

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until of the name
and numbering of any new house(s) and/or flats/flat conversion(s) on existing and/or newly
constructed streets has been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Any new street(s) and property naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with Bristol City
Councils Street Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations can only be
issued under the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) and the Public Health
Act 1925 (Section 17, 18 & 19). For full information visit www.bristol.gov.uk/registeraddress
Reason: To ensure that all new properties and streets are registered with the emergency
services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and National Land and Property Gazetteer to
enable them to be serviced and allow the occupants access to amenities including but not limited
to; listing on the Electoral Register, delivery services, and a registered address on utility
companies databases.
24. Car Club
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of a Car
Club Services Scheme in accordance with a contract to be entered into by the developer and an
approved Car Club provider shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The Car Club Services Scheme shall comprise:
 The allocation of x car club parking spaces
 The provision of vehicles

Page 124

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH



Provision of car club membership for all eligible residents of the development for a minimum of
3 years
The phasing at which the scheme will be introduced

Reason: In order to reduce the need for excessive car ownership
25. Car Park Management Plan

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a car park
management plan setting out how the car park will be managed has been submitted to and been
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the approved car park management plan.
Reason: To ensure the safe operation of approved car park(s).
26. Electric Vehicle Charging Points

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of the total
number of car parking spaces, the number/type/location/means of operation and a programme for
the installation and maintenance of Electric Vehicle Charging Points and points of passive
provision for integration of future charging points has been submitted to and been approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to construction of the above ground works. The
Electric Vehicle Charging Points as approved shall be installed prior to occupation.
Reason: To promote sustainable travel, aid in the reduction of air pollution levels and help
mitigate against climate change.
27. Management and Maintenance of Private Streets

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of
proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of proposed carriageways,
footways, footpaths and landscaped areas not put forward for adoption within the site has been
submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following occupation
of the first dwelling on the site, the streets shall be maintained in accordance with the approved
management and maintenance details.
Reason: To ensure that all private streets and landscaped areas are appropriately managed and
maintained to ensure the safety of all users.
28. Implementation of Hard Landscape Works – Shown on Approved Plans

No building herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the landscaping
proposals hereby approved have been carried out in accordance with the approved plans, unless
a revised programme is agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory.

Page 125

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
29. Bird and Bat Boxes

Prior to occupation of the development details provided by a qualified ecological consultant shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority providing the
specification, orientation, height and location for built-in bird nesting and bat roosting
opportunities. This shall include six built-in swift bricks or boxes and two built-in bat boxes.
Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.
Guidance: Examples of built-in bird and bat boxes are available from:
http://www.ibstock.com/sustainability-ecozone.asp
http://www.nhbs.com/brick_boxes_for_birds_eqcat_431.html
Bat boxes should face south, between south-east and south-west. Bat boxes should be erected
at a height of at least four metres, close to hedges, shrubs or tree-lines and avoid well-lit
locations. Bat boxes which are being placed on buildings should be placed as close to the eaves
(if present) as possible.
Swifts
Internal nest trays or boxes are particularly recommended for swifts. Swift bricks are best
provided in pairs or groups (e.g. at least two or three on a building, avoiding windows). This is
because they are usually colonial nesters. Swift boxes/bricks are best located on north, north-east
or east facing walls, at least 5 metres high, so that there is a clear distance (drop) below the swift
boxes/bricks of 5 metres or more so that there is space for the swifts to easily fly in and out of the
boxes. Locating swift boxes under the eaves (where present) is desirable. One of the best
designs is those by Schwegler because they are very durable. See below for some websites with
examples of swift boxes:http://www.nhbs.com/schwegler_swift_box_16_tefno_173237.html
http://swift-conservation.org/Shopping!.htm
Further guidance is available at:
http://www.swift-conservation.org/InternalNestTrays.htm
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.
Post occupation management condition(s)
30. Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall be
at least 5 dB below the background level as determined by BS4142: 2014 Methods for rating and
assessing industrial and commercial sound.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally.

Page 126

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
31. Protection of Parking and Servicing Provision

The areas allocated for vehicle parking, loading and unloading, circulation and manoeuvring on
the approved plans shall only be used for the said purpose and not for any other purposes.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of satisfactory off-street parking and
servicing/loading/unloading facilities for the development. Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables and the tipping of empty bottles into
external receptacles shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to Saturday and not
at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers
32. Hard and Soft Landscape Works - Shown

The landscaping proposals hereby approved shall be carried out no later than during the first
planting season following the date when the development hereby permitted is ready for
occupation or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. All planted materials shall be maintained for five years and any trees or plants
removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years of
planting shall be replaced with others of similar size and species to those originally required to be
planted.
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory.
33. List of Approved Plans and Drawings

The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the application
as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in order to discharge
other conditions attached to this decision:
3187-PA-102-F Proposed Block Plan, received 18 December 2018
3187-PA-103-D Proposed Demolition Plan, received 18 December 2018
3187-PA-105-K Site Plan Ground Floor, received 18 December 2018
3187-PA-106-G Site Plan First Floor, received 18 December 2018
3187-PA-107-E Site Plan Second Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-108-E Site Plan Third Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-109-E Site Plan Fourth Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-110-G Luckwell Road Buildings Ground Floor, received 12 September 2018
3187-PA-111-F Luckwell Road Buildings First Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-112-E Luckwell Road Buildings Second Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-113-E Luckwell Road Buildings Third Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-114-E Luckwell Road Buildings Roof Plan, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-120-B Luckwell Road Buildings Elevations, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-125-A Building 3 Elevations, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-130-I Lynwood Road Apartments Ground Floor, received 18 December 2018

Page 127

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
3187-PA-131-H Lynwood Road Apartments First Floor, received 18 December 2018
3187-PA-132-F Lynwood Road Apartments Second Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-133-F Lynwood Road Apartments Third Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-134-F Lynwood Road Apartments Fourth Floor, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-135-F Lynwood Road Apartments Roof Plan, received 19 June 2018
3187-PA-136-D Lynwood Road Apartments Elevations, received 12 September 2018
3187-PA-137-B Lynwood Road Apartments Elevations and Sections, received 12 September
2018
3187-PA-140-B Lynwood Road Comparative Access Plans, received 18 December 2018
3187-PA-141-A Play Area Plan, received 25 October 2018
3187-PA-142 Lynwood Road Enhanced Loading Bay Plan, received 30 November 2018
3187-PA-154-B Shadow Study Summer Solstice, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-155-B Shadow Study Autumn Equinox, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-160-B Site Elevations, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-167-C Aerial View 1 Luckwell Road, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-168-B Aerial View 2 Winterstoke Road, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-170 Street View, received 12 September 2018
3187-PA-175 View across Courtyard, received 12 September 2018
3187-PA-176 View from Unit 1, received 12 September 2018
3187-PA-180-B Detail Shadow Study Summer, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-182-A Detail Shadow Study Autumn, received 30 April 2018
3187-PA-184-B Views from Nos 184-192 (First Floor Rear Window), received 12 September 2018
3187-PA-190-A Separation Diagrams, received 19 July 2018
3187-PA-191-A Site Context & Height: Section AA, received 19 July 2018
902-01-A Landscape Proposals, received 17 October 2018
CTP-17-522-SK04 Proposed TRO Plan, received 25 October 2018
Air Quality Assessment, received 30 April 2018
Broadband Connectivity Statement, received 30 April 2018
Ecological Appraisal, received 30 April 2018
Energy & Sustainability Statement, received 30 April 2018
Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy, received 30 April 2018
Noise Impact Assessment, received 30 April 2018
Pergola Structure, received 30 April 2018
Transport Statement, received 30 April 2018
Geotechnical and Contamination Reports, received 30 April 2018

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.
ADVICES
1. Vegetation Clearance

All species of wild birds, their eggs, nests and chicks are legally protected until the young have
fledged. If site clearance or tree or hedge removal is undertaken on site whilst birds are nesting,
which is typically between 1st March and 30th September inclusive, then a check is
recommended beforehand by a qualified ecological consultant. Where checks for nesting birds

Page 128

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
are required they should be undertaken by a qualified ecological consultant no more than 48
hours prior to the removal of vegetation or the demolition of, or works to buildings.
2. Works on the Public Highway

The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.
You are advised that before undertaking work on the highway you must enter into a highway
agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the Council, which would specify the
works and the terms and conditions under which they are to be carried out. Contact the Highway
Authority’s Transport Development Management Team by emailing transportDM@bristol.gov.uk
allowing sufficient time for the preparation and signing of the Agreement. You will be required to
pay fees to cover the Councils cost's in undertaking the following actions:
I. Drafting the Agreement
II. A Monitoring Fee equivalent to 15% of the planning application fee
III. Approving the highway details
IV. Inspecting the highway works
3. Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)

You are advised that a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is required. You must submit a plan to a
scale of 1:1000 of an indicative scheme for a TRO, along with timescales for commencement and
completion of the development. Please be aware that the statutory TRO process is not
straightforward; involving the public advertisement of the proposal(s) and the resolution of any
objections. You should expect a minimum of six months to elapse between the Highway
Authority’s TRO Team confirming that it has all the information necessary to enable it to proceed
and the TRO being advertised. You will not be permitted to implement the TRO measures until
the TRO has been sealed, and we cannot always guarantee the outcome of the process. We
cannot begin the TRO process until the appropriate fee has been received. To arrange for a TRO
to be processed contact the Highway Authority’s Transport Development Management Team by
emailing transportdm@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. The cost of implementing any lining and signing required by the TRO is separate to the TRO
fees, which solely cover the administration required to prepare, consult, amend and seal the TRO.
4. Impact on highway network during construction

The development hereby approved and any associated highway works required, is likely to
impact on the operation of the highway network during its construction (and any demolition
required). You are advised that before undertaking any work you must contact the Highway
Authorities Network Management Team by emailing traffic@bristol.gov.uk to discuss any
temporary traffic management measures required, such as footway, Public Right of Way or
carriageway closures or temporary parking restrictions a minimum of eight weeks prior to any
activity on site to enable Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared and a programme
of Temporary Traffic Management measures to be agreed.

Page 129

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/02302/F: Land Bounded By Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road And Lynwood
Road Bristol BS3 3HH
5. Private Road
You are advised that as a result of the proposed layout and construction of the internal access
road, the internal access road will not be accepted for adoption by the Highway Authority under
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. The development will be bound by Sections 219 to 225 (the
Advance Payments Code) of the Highways Act 1980, unless and until you agree to exempt the
access road. The exemption from adoption will be held as a Land Charge against all properties
within the application boundary. Contact the Highway Authorities Transport Development
Management Team by emailing DMengineering@bristol.gov.uk

Page 130

Supporting Documents
2.

Land bounded by Winterstoke Road, Luckwell Road & Lynwood Road
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Site location plan
Aerial view Luckwell Road
Land registry title
Proposed block plan
Proposed site elevations

Page 131

R O A
D

I N

T

E

R

S

L U C K
W E L L

Page 132

W

T

O

K

E
R

O

A

D

18/6/18

Proposal site boundary line updated

C

-

-

B

-

A

-

Rev.

Date

By

Revision Notes

D

Project Title

Drawing Title

0

50

100 M

Project No.

Drawing No.

Date

Scale

Drawn by

Checked by

Buildings to be demolished shown in red

Page 133
Rev.

Date

By

Revision Notes

Project Title

Drawing Title

Project No.

Drawing No.

Date

Scale

Drawn by

Checked by

Title Number : AV40269
This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Gloucester Office.
The following extract contains information taken from the register of the above title
number. A full copy of the register accompanies this document and you should read that
in order to be sure that these brief details are complete.
Neither this extract nor the full copy is an 'Official Copy' of the register. An
official copy of the register is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent
as the original. A person is entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she
suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy.
This extract shows information current on 24 JUL 2017 at 10:27:34 and so does not take
account of any application made after that time even if pending in HM Land Registry
when this extract was issued.

REGISTER EXTRACT
Title Number

: AV40269

Address of Property

: 194 Luckwell Road, Bristol (BS3 3HE)

Price Stated

: £440,000

Registered Owner(s)

: JULIAN ERNEST MILLIGAN and LOUISA MILLIGAN of 176-180
Kellaway Avenue, Bristol BS6 7YL.

Lender(s)

: HSBC Bank PLC

Page 134
1 of 3

Title number AV40269
This is a copy of the register of the title number set out immediately below, showing
the entries in the register on 24 JUL 2017 at 10:27:34. This copy does not take account
of any application made after that time even if still pending in HM Land Registry when
this copy was issued.
This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the register. An official copy of the register
is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person is
entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a
mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the HM Land
Registry web site explains how to do this.

A: Property Register
This register describes the land and estate comprised in
the title.
CITY OF BRISTOL
1

(16.01.1979) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the
above Title filed at the Registry and being 194 Luckwell Road, Bristol
(BS3 3HE).

2

The Conveyance dated 11 December 1978 referred to in the Charges
Register is expressed to grant the following rights:"TOGETHER WITH the right in common with the owner or occupier for the
time being of the adjoining premises
(a) To use the boiler and fuel tank marked on the plan annexed hereto
for the purpose of the heating and supply of water to the premises
hereby conveyed but only so long as there shall be no independent
heating installation serving the premises hereby conveyed
(b) To use the sprinkler valve installation on the premises
(c) to draw water from the water pipe marked green on the plan attached
hereto
(d) To use the central heating installation fire and other apparatus
used and serving the premises hereby conveyed with the adjoining
premises the Purchaser bearing its proportionate part of the cost of
maintenance and insurance thereof."
NOTE: Copy plan filed.

3

The Conveyance dated 11 December 1978 referred to above contains the
following provision:"IT IS HEREBY DECLARED that the wall marked A - B on the plan annexed
hereto is a party structure."

B: Proprietorship Register
This register specifies the class of title and
identifies the owner. It contains any entries that
affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute
1

(29.08.2002) PROPRIETOR: JULIAN ERNEST MILLIGAN and LOUISA MILLIGAN of
176-180 Kellaway Avenue, Bristol BS6 7YL.

2

(29.08.2002) RESTRICTION: No disposition by a sole proprietor of the
land (not being a trust corporation) under which capital money arises
is to be registered except under an order of the registrar or of the
Court.

3

(29.08.2002) The price stated to have been paid on 12 August 2002 for
the land in this title and in title AV61911 was £440,000.

4

(29.08.2002) The Transfer to the proprietor contains a covenant to
observe and perform the covenants referred to in the Charges Register

Page 135

2 of 3

Title number AV40269

B: Proprietorship Register continued
and of indemnity in respect thereof.
5

(27.01.2012) RESTRICTION: No disposition of the registered estate by
the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a
written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the
Charge dated 22 December 2011 in favour of HSBC Bank PLC referred to in
the Charges Register.

C: Charges Register
This register contains any charges and other matters
that affect the land.
1

A Conveyance of the land in this title dated 11 December 1978 made
between (1) Arthur Albert Farmer and June Nora Collins (Vendors) and
(2) Rowland Adams (Metals) Limited (Purchaser) contains the following
covenants:"The Purchaser hereby covenants with the Vendors so as to bind the
property hereby conveyed into whosesoever hands the same may come and
to benefit and protect the adjoining property of the Vendors that the
Purchaser and its successors in title will not at any time interfere
with or permanently cut off the water supply to the fire prevention
appliances common to both premises hereby conveyed and the Vendors'
adjoining property."
NOTE: Copy plan filed.

2

The land is subject to the following rights reserved by the Conveyance
dated 11 December 1978 referred to above:"EXCEPTING AND RESERVING to the Vendors or their successors in title
owners or occupiers for the time being of the adjoining premises a
right of way at all times and for all purposes (including loading and
unloading vehicles) over that part of the premises hereby conveyed as
is shown hatched red on the said plan."
NOTE: The land hatched red on plan to Conveyance dated 11 December 1978
has been tinted blue on the filed plan.

3

(27.01.2012) REGISTERED CHARGE dated 22 December 2011 affecting also
title AV61911.

4

(27.01.2012) Proprietor: HSBC BANK PLC (Co. Regn. No. 14259) 40-54-47
of Securities Processing Centre, P.O. Box 6304, Coventry CV3 9JY.

End of register

Page 136
3 of 3

This is a copy of the title plan on 24 JUL 2017 at 10:27:34. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in HM Land
Registry when this copy was issued.
This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the title plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person
is entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the HM Land
Registry web site explains how to do this.
HM Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of title plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer,
your computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale.
Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.
This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Gloucester Office.

Page 137

© Crown Copyright. Produced by HM Land Registry. Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance
Survey. Licence Number 100026316.

A PA R T M E N T T Y P E K E Y:

1 B e d / 2 Pe rso n

2 Be d / 3 P erso n

2 Be d / 4 P erso n
Existing loading bay platform
and area adjacent enhanced
with return, and retained for
use/access by building on
adjoining site. Existing access
steps, pedestrian gate and
gatepost retained to maintain
secure access to adjacent
property.

3 Be d / 5 P erso n

L Y N W O O D

R O A D

Wheel bump stops in
car parking spaces
Gatepost removed to allow
better access. Site delineated
by use of contrast paving
across site entrance - as
shown.

6.8

Hammerhead for vehicles to
carry out a three point turn

40.
s68
tre

me

New tree set in tree
grille - installed flush
with paving

Pedestrian crossing point.

5

Allocated
parking area 14No. spaces

s

Lynwood Road
‘extended’ into site
New tree set in tree
grille - installed flush
with paving

Pedestrian route to courtyard
under building and separate
from vehicular way.

0.4

L14

FF

es

es

tr
me
6.5

Bollards to protect
building bay over

.
5m

tr
me

Wider space where
existing building
alongside.

Private
terrace

tre
me

6.4

New tree set in tree
grille - installed flush
with paving

6.1

Kerb set off face of
new boundary wall

.23

Refuse

New brick faced
retaining/boundary wall
between site access road and
rear gardens of existing
houses.

Secondary
Entrance
(Building 2)

Bollards denoting perimeter of site.

6m

4

res

et
.8 m

es

etr
4.4
Bollard

11
10
9

Private
terrace

8
7

6

5

4

3

2

1

r

clea

res

met

Forecourts and integral
refuse areas to the
front of each house

Private garden to
house - partially
paved / turfed

House Bike
storage

Page 138

Allocated
parking area 5No. spaces

4.

8

Private
terrace

m

et

re

s

Private garden to
house - partially
paved / turfed

Private
terrace

Bike Storage 40No. Bikes
Private
terrace

Allocated
parking area 8No. spaces
Communal seating area /
outdoor play space

Private garden to
house - partially
paved / turfed

6 metres
Allocated
parking area 10No. spaces

For details see drawing
no. 3187_PA 141 and
Bridges Design
Associates drawing no.
902_01A

House Bike
storage

Wheel bump stops
in car parking
spaces

Guest Bike
Parking

Private garden to
house - partially
paved / turfed

Private
terrace
Existing right of way
retained, with gated
access/egress from site.

Bike Storage 40No. Bikes

House Bike
storage

Principal
Entrance
(Building 3)

>0
.5

Bollards
.

Principal
Entrance
(Building 1)

1.

5m

5 metres

Refuse

K

17/12/18

Enhanced loading bay shown.

J

25/10/18

Gates added.

I

16/10/18

Cross reference to doorstep play drawing
and landscaping plan.

H

11/9/18

Crossing point added at site entrance off
Lynwood Road. Pedestrian route under
north east end of Building 2. Lyn03
apartment ommitted, Lyn04 increased in
size to 2 bed. 45deg spay added to
longitudinal accessible space. Dims added.
Bollards shown to Visit

G

30/7/18

Additional bollards. Boundary to rear of
existing houses enhanced. Wheel bump
stops shown.

F

25/7/18

Modifications to parking bays. Dimensions
added.

E

18/6/18

Loading area clarified

D

-

-

C

-

-

B

-

-

A

-

Rev.

Date

By

Revision Notes

m

I N

6

W

et
re

s

m

Bollard Pedestrian access under
Luckwell Apartments
building

Gate

Guest Bike
Parking

L U C K
W E L L

Private
terrace

For details of heights and
levels at boundary see
drawing no. 3187_PA 141a

R O A
D

House Bike
storage

Principal
Entrance
(Building 2)

T

Allocated
parking area 4No. spaces

E

R

S

Wheel bump stops
in car parking
spaces

T

O

K

Paved margin
against building

Bike Storage
- 25No.
Bikes (+
additional
space)

Private
terrace

Private
terrace

E
R

0

0.5m.

O
25

Project Title

Drawing Title

A

D
50 M

Project No.

Drawing No.

Date

Scale

Drawn by

Checked by

Page 139

Agenda Item 8c
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019

ITEM NO. 3

WARD:

Avonmouth & Lawrence
Weston

SITE ADDRESS:

The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ

APPLICATION NO:

18/03064/F

CONTACT OFFICER:

Ken Reid

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
11 January 2019
DEADLINE:
Proposed containerised self-storage facility with ancillary office (mixed Use Classes B8/B1(a)) with
altered access and associated car parking.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

Aspect360 Ltd
45 Oakfield Road
Clifton
Bristol
BS8 2AX

APPLICANT:

Open 24 Seven Ltd
c/o agent

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

21/12/18 14:05

Page 140

Committee report

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ

SUMMARY
This report concerns the planning application at the site of the former Robin Cousins Leisure Centre,
situated between the M5 motorway bridge, Portway, West Town Road and Avonmouth Football Club.
Built in 1979, the former leisure centre was run by the Council until a combination of the cost of
maintaining the building and dwindling numbers forced its closure in November 2005. The loss of the
leisure centre and community use was a concern for many and was raised in objections received
during the subsequent planning applications. Following its sale on the open market in 2011 and the
granting of planning permission, the building was then used by the applicant for commercial storage
and administration in association with its internet retail business. The site has remained vacant
following a fire at the building in March 2013. The applicant is now seeking full planning permission for
a self-storage facility comprising of a mix of single and double stacked metal storage containers along
with a small on-site office and some parking.
The application is being reported to committee following public interest the proposals have generated
from neighbouring residents and beyond. All of the comments received have raised objections to the
proposals on amenity, safety/security and highway grounds. Many of the responses consider that that
such a use is insensitive given the proximity of residential properties, with other self-storage facilities
readily available within the Avonmouth Industrial Area. Some of the comments received would prefer
the site to be re-developed for housing, although the constraints of the site make this problematic.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The application concerns the site of the former Robin Cousins Sports Centre, which is situated the
edge of Shirehampton and east of Avonmouth, six miles north of the city centre. The site is located
adjacent to the M5 motorway Bridge, just north of the A4 Portway and is accessed from Akeman Way
(which sits between the A4 Portway and West Town Road) via a long vehicular track off West Town
Road. Residential properties are situated just west of the site to the Portway and Maiden Way, with
rear gardens backing onto the perimeter of the site. There is a large playing field (football pitch)
located directly to the north east of the site, which is used by the Avonmouth football club. To the east
lies an area of trees and shrubs which acts as a buffer between the playing field and the M5
Motorway. The site itself at the time of this report mainly comprises of hardstanding with the remaining
remnants of the former leisure centre now demolished.
With the exception of a triangular piece of land to the northwest boundary, the site is unallocated
under the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies. The triangular area of land
comprises of uncultivated vegetation and which is fenced off from the neighbouring Avonmouth
football club. However this part of the site is designated open space under the Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies. The site is also located within the HSE outer zone of a Major
Hazard chemical installation, which is situated at Dalgety PLC in Avonmouth Docks, to the west.
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
78/00569/P_N - Sports Centre and associated Site Works including hard play area and parking.
Granted.
78/03543/U_N - Sports Centre. Granted.
95/00733/F - Land under M5 Bridge adj: Robin Cousins Sports Centre West Town Road Avonmouth,
Bristol. Use for Car Boot Sales on Sundays between 12.00 p.m. to 5.00p.m. Refused for the following
reasons:- The application has been refused because of a direction under Article 14 of the Town and Country

Page 141

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
planning (General Development Procedures) Order 1995 (now Article 14 of The Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015). The Secretary of State for
Transport directs that planning permission be refused because the land is needed by contracts
undertaking the M5 bridge strengthening. Had the direction not been received it is likely that the
application would have been refused because of the detriment to amenity of local residents caused by
the increase of vehicular traffic into the area, increase in noise, fumes and litter associated with the
car boot sales.
11/05231/F - change of use of former sports centre to a mixed use B8 warehouse and B1 offices with
associated external alterations, erection of 72no solar photovoltaic panels and new boundary fencing.
Granted via committee on 4th April 2012.
12/04068/F - Proposed first floor extension to provide 326 sqm use Class B1 office space. Granted.
17/05622/N Demolition of remains of the former Robin Cousins Sports Centre building. Prior
Notification given.
APPLICATION
Planning consent is sought for the development of the site for self-storage which would be available
for use by the general public and commercial businesses to the rent space for storage purposes. This
would comprise of a total of 172 containers, 84 of which would be double stacked. The applicant adds
that the type and size of container may vary depending on market demand, although this will not
change the layout shown on plans in terms of the position and stacking of the containers. Parking
would be situated towards the front of the site to the entrance and which would also be the location for
the site office. The hours of operation would be 7:00am - 20:00pm Monday to Friday, 8:00am 18:00pm on Saturday, and 10:00am - 4:00pm on Sundays and bank holidays. Whilst it is intended
that the site will largely be run remotely with users having coded entry. The small secure office would
be available for occasional use by staff. Access would be via the existing track from Akeman Way
which will be widened, with the existing gated section moved back into the site to allow vehicles to pull
off the road before opening the gate. Access will be strictly controlled with mechanical and
electronically locking systems on the entrance gates with CCTV monitoring.
Since the application was submitted it has been revised following concerns raised by the Local
Planning Authority in regards to ecology, impact on residential amenity, highways, trees and
landscaping. The changes and additional information included the following:
- Reduction in the number of containers, removing a number of the double stacked along the western
boundary
- Revised layout plan
- Additional on-site tree planting
- Revised transport statement and trip rate data
- Addition of a bat survey
- Addition of a noise report
- Addition of a premises management plan
- Revised Ecological Management Plan
- Flood resilience measures
(See plans and supporting documents for details)

Page 142

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
PRE APPLICATION COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The council expect all major planning proposals, including Reserved Matters applications, as well as
those that are below the major threshold but have significant local impact to comply with the
Statement of Community Involvement Guidelines. Whilst this is not a major application, the applicant
has provided a Community Involvement Statement (CIS) as part of their submission.
Process - According to the applicant's community involvement statement, consultation was
undertaken with two local stakeholder groups as suggested by the administrator of the Bristol
Neighbourhood Planning Network. Firstly, a meeting of the Avonmouth Community Group at St
Andrews Church Hall was attended by the applicant and project architect in January 2018. Question
raised included access, security fencing, opening hours, lighting, views from surrounding houses and
the football field, the height of development and planting as screening. The applicant then attended a
meeting of the Shirehampton Community Action Forum in February 2018 at the Shirehampton Public
Hall, where their draft proposals were tabled and various questions were answered.
Outcome - Concerns were raised about the business hours and that there would be strong resistance
to any 24-hour operation. Consequently the applicant agreed to limit hours of opening during
weekdays and weekends respectfully. Residents also wanted assurances that the scheme would not
cause any undue noise of light pollution, which the applicant has stated has been taken into
consideration.
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
Neighbouring properties were consulted by individual letter about the planning application which was
also subject of a site notice. This generated 12 letters of objection. Following revisions to the
proposal, neighbouring properties were re-consulted by individual letter which resulted in a further 34
objections received on grounds including the following.
- This is an inappropriate use for the site/area
- Visually intrusive
- Loss of privacy
- The site would be better used for a community based development
- Traffic generation and increased pollution.
- Existing road infrastructure unsuitable, including inadequate access
- Loss of fully established trees/impact on ecology
- Noise pollution
- Light pollution
- Concerns over the lack of details of the acoustic barrier
- There are similar facilities in the area
- It would lead to drainage problems
- Lack of consultation with the neighbours from applicant
The Avonmouth Planning Group object to the application, citing the lack of public consultation the
applicant has carried out with residents.
The Shire Planning Group object to the application stating that by introducing storage units to this
area would cause unnecessary risk to the residents and an increase of traffic to and from the site that
would be unattainable. The access to the site can have no use, several applications have been turned
down due to the security risk afforded to its location underneath and alongside the Supports of the M5
Bridge
[According to the Council's planning records there has been only one planning application refused
which was proposed directly under the M5 motorway bridge for a car boot sales in 1995 - please refer
to planning history above]

Page 143

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ

The proposed site itself was listed as usage for recreational purposes and is not suitable for any other
purpose due to access and security. The units being on two levels will affect the view, light and
privacy of the surrounding houses. As the site is now being cleared residents are finding there is no
fencing stopping children and pets accessing it. Constant security lights will be an issue as will the
noise of visitors. There are much more suitable and vacant areas in Avonmouth. How will the
applicants be able to respond quickly enough should there be any problems on site? Ideally the site
should be used for the Sporting, Leisure and possibly Swimming activities that
Shirehampton have proved is needed in their Community Plan.
OTHER COMMENTS
Arboricultural Team has commented as follows:An Arboricultural report and Tree protection Plan has been submitted in support of the application.
The proposed storage units will require the removal of two trees - neither tree is considered prominent
in the local area and I do not object to the loss of these, provided adequate mitigation is provided. The
applicant has committed to planting 6 trees as mitigation for tree loss - this is in line with the BTRS
within Policy DM17.
I am happy with the re-positioning and species selected for the replacement trees. Approve subject to
conditions for tree protection and landscaping.
Health And Safety Executive - HazSubCon has commented as follows:The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) do not advise against, consequently the HSE does not
advise, on safety grounds, against the granting of planning permission in this case. As the proposed
development is within the Consultation Distance of a major hazard pipeline you should consider
contacting the pipeline operator before deciding the case [please refer to Wales & West Utilities
comments]
Strategic and Citywide Policy has commented as follows:The playing fields to the north of the site will continue to be protected as reserved open space.
However, there has been a change to the boundary that removes the overlap with the application site.
The overlap was most likely an error in the original boundary, or else a throwback to a time when the
sports centre and playing fields were related. This mapping is not finalised or on public record as yet.
Flood Risk Manager has commented as follows:Please follow standing advice.
Transport Development Management has commented as follows:The submitted trip generation shows there would be a total of 10 movements in the morning peak and
9 in the PM peak. There will also be 122 daily trips. TDM have no concerns regarding the impact of
the development on the local highway network.
The section of Akerman Way underneath the M5 Bridge to West Town Road is not adopted. The
passing place is not at the approximate mid-way point as confirmed on the drawing, however given
visibility and the fact the land required for an additional passing place is not in the gift of the applicant
this provision is acceptable.

Page 144

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
The applicant has not provided any swept path analysis. Although it may take excessive manoeuvring
for vehicles to turn within the site given it is highly unlikely for vehicles to reverse onto the adopted
highway TDM require no further information. Users of the storage containers will park adjacent to their
container. No concerns are raised regarding the level of marked parking bays or cycle parking.
Approve subject to conditions.
Environment Agency (Sustainable Places) has commented as follows:The EA did not wish to comment, please refer to the Standing Advice.
Contaminated Land Environmental Protection has commented as follows:Whilst the proposed development is not overly sensitive to contamination nearby receptors are (a
watercourse runs on the southern boundary and residential premises are adjacent). Historically this
site has been in disrepair since a fire a few years ago and the site is littered with debris that is likely to
contain asbestos containing materials. The land is suspected made ground.
No risk assessment has been submitted in relation to land contamination therefore we recommend
any planning consent includes conditions B11 B12 B13 and C1.
Pollution Control has commented as follows:I would confirm that I am happy with the acoustic report. We will just need to ensure, by condition, that
the noise barrier recommended as detailed is erected. I am happy with the Management plan with
regards to the supervision of the site. Approve subject to conditions including total noise from
development, adhering to the premises management plans and details of artificial lighting.
Highways England has commented as follows:Having reviewed the information submitted, Highways England were concerned that the storage units
adjacent to the south eastern site boundary (namely 24 units), were located within immediate
proximity of the M5 Avonmouth Bridge. The bridge is ranked within the top five critical national
infrastructure assets.
While it was noted that it is intended to implement control measures restricting storage of (potentially
hazardous) materials on site, the location of these units adjacent to the M5 Avonmouth Bridge was
considered to raise inherent resilience concern despite the control measures proposed. On this basis,
Highways England requested that the units adjacent to the south eastern boundary were therefore
relocated or omitted from the scheme.
Following revisions to the scheme, Highways England are satisfied that the layout of the proposed
facility would not interfere with the motorway infrastructure and therefore do not object to the
proposals. Approval should be subject to a condition for details of fence or similar along either side of
the access road to protect the infrastructure of the M5 bridge from being impeded.
Nature Conservation Officer has commented as follows:Because the bat, reptile and hedgehog surveys have now been undertaken, and the building
demolished on site following the method statement produced by ecological consultants, a condition
requiring the Precautionary Method of Working (PMW) pre-commencement is no longer required.
Please ensure permission is carried out in accordance with the PMW under the ecological
assessment as part of a compliance condition and the submission of details for a living roof to the
office, to be secured under a pre-commencement condition.

Page 145

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
Wales & West Utilities has commented as follows:Wales & West Utilities have no objections to these proposals, however our apparatus may be at risk
during construction works and should the planning application be approved then we require the
promoter of these works to contact us directly to discuss our requirements in detail. Should diversion
works be required these will be fully chargeable.
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – July 2018
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017.
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication or
evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that the determination of this application would not have any significant
adverse impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010.
KEY ISSUES
(A) IS THE PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE?
The previously developed areas of the site are unallocated under the provisions of the Site Allocations
and development Management Policies. There is a small triangular piece of undeveloped land which
is designated as open space (see key issue B). The previous authorised use of the site was as a
sports centre which is classed as a community facility (a use that falls within Class D2 of the Use
Classes Order). The loss of sports centres in recent years, along with other leisure facilities across the
city, had become an issue which has generated concerns from the local community. In respect of this
site the previous extant permission (11/05231/F) has already considered the issue of the loss of
community use and established that the change from a community to employment/commercial use
has been accepted. The policies of the Bristol Core Strategy and Site Allocations and Development
Management policies, generally promote growth in employment, providing that there will be no
adverse environmental impact, visual appearance, industrial nuisance factors, transport/highway
impacts and impact upon residential amenity.
It is therefore considered that the principle of the proposed development for commercial use is
acceptable, subject to the specific policy considerations set out in the Core Strategy and Site
Allocations and Development Management policies. The acceptability of the proposal in detail is set
out in the following key issues.

Page 146

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
(B) IS THE LOSS OF OPEN SPACE ACCETABLE?
The land that was formally occupied by the leisure centre is not designated under the provisions of the
local plan. However a rectangular area of undeveloped land measuring approximately 95 square
metres to the northwest corner of the site, would be used to form part of the storage facility. This area
of land is Designated Open Space, as detailed in the Site Allocations and Development Management
Polices Local Plan. Policy DM17 states that development on part, or all of an important open space
as designated will not be permitted unless the development is ancillary to the open space use.
However, on considering this reference should be made to paragraph 97 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (July 2018) which states that open space, sports and recreational buildings and
land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless:
a) An assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, buildings or land to
be surplus to requirements; or
b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or better
provision in terms of quantity/quality in a suitable location; or
c) The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of which clearly
outweigh the loss of the current or former use.
The designation can be traced back to the site's former use as a leisure facility which included the
large playing field to the north. After the closure of the former centre, the area around the building
including the triangular piece of land was partitioned. The remaining area of playing field which is
substantial in size, is now used by the Avonmouth football club. The triangular area of land is fenced
off and has been for a number of years becoming overgrown an unusable. It does not form part of the
Avonmouth football club and would be surplus to the function of the club if it did. The previous
planning consents to for the change of use included this parcel of land, although those proposals did
not include the building of structures on the triangular piece of land. Consequently the Council's
Strategic City Planning Team (Policy) are currently reviewing the designation as part of the Local plan
review, removing the overlap from the application site, meaning it would be unallocated in line with the
rest of the site. The land north of the application site boundary covering the Avonmouth football club
would remain protected as designated open space.
Given the above considerations the proposal in regard to the parcel of land would accord to
paragraph 97 a) of the NPPF.
(C) WOULD THE PROPOSAL HARM THE RESIDENTIAL AMENITY OF ADJOINING OCCUPIERS?
Policy BCS21 of the Bristol Development Framework Core Strategy along with policy DM29 of the
Site Allocations and Development Management Policies requires that proposals safeguard the
amenities of existing development.
The nearest residential properties are situated west of the site onto Maiden Way and Akeman Way,
however there are also properties further south and east to the Portway and West Town Road
respectfully. Consequently the proposed self-storage facility has drawn a number of strong objections
from residents who cite this to be an inappropriate development for this location. The main concerns
are with regard to noise pollution, visual intrusion and pollution from any increased vehicular
movements.
Following the submission of revisions it is noted that all the containers closest to the western
boundary would be single storey in order to limit visual impact and to ensure that they will largely be
screened by the existing hedging, which the applicant seeks to retain on the boundaries of the site. As
such, the visual impacts of the proposed storage containers on the surrounding area should therefore
be limited.

Page 147

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
The proposed hours of operation are largely in line with most commercial office hours. The gated
access would be time activated meaning that customers would not be able to access the facility
outside the trading hours. The findings of the noise assessment were derived from a baseline noise
survey which demonstrated that the site is already affected by relatively high levels of noise, primarily
from the M5. The assessment assumes that a barrier fence would be provided around parts of the site
perimeter as shown on the revised proposed site plan, and which can be secured by condition. Based
on this assessment it is therefore concluded that the noise impact is considered low and not
detrimental to the closest noise sensitive receptors.

The remote use of access to the site by visitors has also raised a concern from a number of residents.
In response to this the applicant has provided a premises management plan, setting out how the
facility would operate and where residents can report any disturbance or anti-social incidents should
any arise. According to the Design & Access Statement, lighting will be required for the roadways and
upper level walkways, but restricted to ensure there is limited light overspill. Further details can be
secured by condition to ensure that there is no intrusive light beyond the confines of the site.
On considering the above the Pollution Control Officer has raised no objections to the proposal
subject to the site being developed in accordance with the construction management statement, and
once opened operating fully in accordance with the premises management plan, with details of noise
and lighting levels conditioned as part of any approval.
On considering the above it is concluded that the proposals will not unacceptably harm the residential
amenity of neighbouring occupiers.
(D) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HAVE IMPLICATIONS IN TERMS OF NATURE
CONSERVATION INTERESTS?
The applicant has included a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) as part of the proposal and
which states that further reptile and hedgehog (footprint tunnel) surveys are required. This includes
surveys of the remnants of the fire-damaged building on the site which could support roosting bats.
Consequently the applicant provided further information including a bat survey and ecological
management plan in response to the concerns raised by the Nature Conservation Officer. This
included details of a site clearance methodology, mitigation and general long-term management of the
site post construction. On considering the additional supporting documentation, the Nature
Conservation Officer is satisfied with the measures.
The application is accompanied by an arboricultural report which has identified a mix of Category B
(moderate quality) and Category C (low quality) trees and groups which have either 10 or 20 year
years' life expectancy on the site. None of the trees are protected by Tree Preservation Orders. The
report outlines proposed works to the trees and notes that two trees, an Alder which is a category B
and Sycamore which is a category C, will be removed. Six new trees are proposed to be planted, all
as indicated on the proposed site plan. This would be in accordance with the Bristol Tree replacement
Standards (and policy DM17 compliant). The site plan also indicates a range of new shrub planting
around the site.
Following revisions to the plans the Arboricultural Officer is satisfied with the proposals subject to
conditions for tree protection and tree planting as part of any approval.
(E) DO THE PROPOSALS SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION
ISSUES?
Fundamental transport and movement objectives of the local plan include the promotion of
sustainable transport choices to include cycling, walking, and public transport. Policy BCS10 of the
Bristol Development Framework Core Strategy, along with policy DM23 of the Site Allocations and

Page 148

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
Development Management Policies are particularly relevant in achieving these objectives.
The proposal has generated objections on the grounds that it would result in considerable increase in
traffic to the area to the detriment of the surrounding streets in terms of highway safety and increases
in noise and pollution. Following discussions with the Local Planning Authority, the application
submitted a revised transport statement which clarified the following.
With regard to access, this would be improved from Akeman Way according to the applicant. There
would be a new gated entrance with a mechanical key pad entry system erected within the site 11m
from the kerb. This will allow cars and vans to pull off Akeman Way before entering the driveway that
leads beneath the bridge up to the existing main site entrance. The access into the site will be
available for cars and vehicles up to 7.5t (box van) in weight only. No other vehicles are anticipated
bar for the delivery of containers during the construction phase only.
With regards to movements the applicant has provided trip rate data at the request of the Local
Planning Authority. The submitted information shows that there would be a total of 10 movements in
the morning peak and 9 in the PM peak, with up to 122 daily trips. Given the historic use of the site as
a leisure facility would have generated greater trip rates, it is not considered that a refusal could be
justified on grounds of vehicular movements to and from the site.
The proximity of the site to the M5 bridge had drawn a holding objection from the Highways England
due to concerns that some of the containers may interfere with the bridge infrastructure, especially in
terms of any hazardous materials that may be stored in the containers. However following revisions to
the site including reducing the number of containers and clarification of the nature of storage,
Highways England are satisfied with the proposals. This is subject to a condition securing the erection
of a boundary fence along the accessway to the facility, to prevent any interference to or obstruction
of the motorway bridge infrastructure.
The proposed revised site layout plan shows 6 visitor car parking spaces located beyond the security
gate at the front of the site with cycle parking within the site both for staff, and any visitors (although
they are unlikely to use this if they are customers using the containers). It is anticipated that users of
the storage containers will park adjacent to their containers where there is available space.
Consequently Transport Development Management has no concerns regarding the level of marked
parking bays or cycle parking within the site.
Given the above the proposal would satisfactorily address highway and transportation issues.
(F) DO THE PROPOSALS SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS HEALTH AND SAFETY ISSUES?
The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) set consultation distances (CD) around major hazard sites
and pipelines where there is an assessed risk and likely effects of major accidents or incidents at the
installation or pipeline. In this instance, Dalgety PLC in Avonmouth Docks located west of the site
along with a major hazardous pipeline owned by Wales & West Utilities are classified as major hazard
sites by HSE.
The application site is located within the outer zone of a Major Hazard installation. However on
considering the nature of the proposals and the relative low numbers of staff required to operate the
facility, the HSE have not advised against the development on safety grounds. With regard to the
major pipeline, Wales & West Utilities do not object to the proposals, however they advise that the
applicant discuss the details of the proposal with them to ensure the proposal would not affect their
assets. Overhead power lines run to the south of the site, with one pylon situated close to the
entrance. However the area immediately around the pylon would comprise of landscaping and
therefore the proposed development would not impede on the electricity infrastructure.

Page 149

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
(G) IS THE PROPOSED DESIGN AND LAYOUT ACCEPTABLE?
The proposed site plan illustrates the layout of the containers around the site with landscaped areas
comprising new tree planting, hedging and fencing along the boundaries which would help to provide
a softer setting to the site. The containers will remain freestanding and moved around the site as and
when required. The double stacked containers will be accessed via simple walkways. It is understood
that the containers will be colour co-ordinated as part of the brand for the business. The proposed
'container' office will be raised above the driveway level by 0.4m and will have gross internal area of
16.0 m2. It will be clad in profiled metal and is insulated. The building will have 3no. solar panels
mounted on its flat roof. The overall development is very much a functional development in terms of
design. However given then it would be surrounded by green infrastructure it would have limited visual
impact on the surrounding area, with only clear views of it via the M5 bridge.
Given the above considerations the proposed design and layout would be acceptable.
(H) WOULD THE PROPOSAL SATISFY THE CITY'S OBJECTIVES WITH REGARD TO
SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE?
Policies BCS13, BCS14, BCS15 and BCS16 of the adopted Core Strategy give clear guidance on
sustainability standards to be achieved in any development, and what measures to be included to
ensure that development meets the climate change goals of the development plan. Applicants are
expected to demonstrate that a development would meet those standards by means of a sustainability
statement.
Applying the principles of proportionality, it would not be expected that the nature of this development
would be able to deliver all the sustainable measures required under the policy. The applicant has
identified that the site office would be able to house solar panels as set out in the sustainability and
energy assessment. According to the manufacturer's technical guidance, they have the potential to
exceed the 0.75 kWP output required to meet the residual carbon emissions saving target. This would
help yield a saving of 21% in residual energy according to the energy table therefore compliant with
policy.
The applicant also states that there is scope for a living roof to be installed on the office structure
which is welcomed. With regard to the rest of the site, the applicant states the potential for living
(green/brown) roofs has been considered but in this case, given the nature of the development it is
simply not practical for them to install such roofs onto the containers for a number of reasons. These
include the requirement to change containers every 5 years due to maintenance issues and other
structural constraints.

On considering the above it is concluded that the proposal would satisfy objectives with regard to
sustainability and climate change.
(I) DOES THE PROPOSAL RAISE ANY FLOODING ISSUES?
The site falls within flood zone 2 which has a medium risk of flooding. In accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2018, policy BCS16 of the Core Strategy states that development
will follow a sequential approach to flood risk management, giving priority to the development of sites
with the lowest risk of flooding. However, as the proposal is on a site with a previous planning
permission for a comparable commercial use (see 11/05231/F), which according to the applicant was
implemented, and would therefore still be extant. Therefore the principle of development has already
been decided and the requirements under the sequential test are therefore not required. Furthermore
it can also be argued that the proposal would result in a suitably flood-resilient design operating with
relatively few staff, which is likely to be preferable, also negating the necessity for a sequential test.

Page 150

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
The National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance also give more
details on how different uses should be determined depending on their flood vulnerability. The
guidance identifies that the proposed facility as 'less vulnerable' given its primary use is for storage.
As the proposal is for a less vulnerable use within flood zone 2, the Environment Agency's standing
advice applies in terms of a site specific flood risk assessment (FRA).
The applicant states that the proposals accord with the principles of adopted Council Policy with
regard to Flood Risk and Water Management, as well as the West of England Sustainable Drainage
guidance.

The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) as part of the application which
recommends that flood resilient construction measures are used, including flood proof doors to each
unit and the office 'Portacabin'. The office would also sit on legs which will raise it 400mm above the
ground level. This is above the predicted flood level as described in the accompanying FRA.
Nevertheless, the applicant suggests that they could sign up to the Environment Agency's flood
warning system and in the event of flooding likely to occur the site could be evacuated and closed well
before flooding were to occur. The use of flood proof doors would help mitigate the effects of potential
flooding. As such it is considered that the proposed development would not be at risk in the case of
any extreme flood event.
In terms of site drainage, the application is supported by drainage proposals following site
investigations by Structural Solutions. The proposals accord with the principles of adopted Council
Policy BCS16: Flood Risk and Water Management, as well as the West of England Sustainable
Drainage guidance. If strictly necessary, the applicant adds that further details for sustainable
drainage can be provided as a condition of any future consent. It is considered that the detailed
design for this can be secured by condition.
(J) DOES THE PROPOSAL ADEQUATELY ADDRESS CONTAMINATED LAND ISSUES?
Whilst the proposed development is not directly sensitive to contamination, there are nearby receptors
such as a watercourse on the southern boundary and residential premises adjacent which are. The
recent history of the site has been one of disrepair and then fire damage with debris likely to contain
asbestos containing materials according to the Council's Land Contamination Officer. As no risk
assessment has been submitted in relation to land contamination to date, it is recommended that any
approval of the scheme is subject to standard land contamination conditions.
CONCLUSION
The principle of development is acceptable given the previous consents that allowed the change from
a leisure centre to an employment/commercial use. Part of the development would be built on land
designated as open space, however this relates to the former use of the site, and the land in question
is no longer of recreational value given its condition and inaccessibility. It is concluded that the
proposed use would not have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the neighbouring
properties situated to the west of the site. The details of the proposal have demonstrated that the use
would be able to co-exist with the residential properties through managed operation. The mitigation
measures which are proposed with the development, and in particular during the construction phase,
would not compromise the ecological interests of the site.
In respect of highway considerations, the proposal is acceptable and would not constitute a hazard
either within the site or to the surrounding highway network. It would not result in unacceptable
increase in vehicular movements in the surrounding area. The proposed landscaping measures once
fully implemented would help retain the existing levels of green infrastructure. The proposed tree replanting regime would accord with the BTRS to the satisfaction of the Council. The proposal has
demonstrated that the site would not pose any environmental health and safety concerns in terms of

Page 151

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
flooding or land contamination subject to conditions.
Given these considerations approval of the application is recommended for approval subject to
conditions.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay?
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a new
dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of buildings in
lawful use, are exempt from CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no
CIL is payable.
RECOMMENDED

GRANTED subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Construction management plan
No development shall take place including any works of demolition until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and been
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be
adhered to throughout the construction period. The statement shall provide for:
Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors
routes for construction traffic
hours of operation
method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway
pedestrian and cyclist protection
proposed temporary traffic restrictions
arrangements for turning vehicles
Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the highway in the lead into development both
during the demolition and construction phase of the development.

3.

Land affected by contamination - Site Characterisation
No development shall take place until an investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application, and has been completed in accordance
with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or
not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme should be submitted to and be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment
must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. The report of the findings must include:

Page 152

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:
* human health,
* property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and
service lines and pipes,
* adjoining land,
* groundwaters and surface waters,
* ecological systems,
* archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both
during the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors
4.

Land affected by contamination - Submission of Remediation Scheme
No development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a
condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health,
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment has been prepared,
submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria,
timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site
will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990
in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both
during the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors.

5.

Land affected by contamination - Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no development other than that required to be carried
out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall take place until the approved
remediation scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local Planning
Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation
scheme works.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be
produced, and be approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination both during the construction phase and
to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can

Page 153

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
6.

M5 Motorway bridge
Prior to the commencement of development, details for a close-boarded fence or similar
barrier not less than 2 metres high along either side of the site access road, should be
submitted to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and Highways England prior to the
occupation of the development, and thereafter retained for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure the safe operation of the Strategic Road Network.

7.

Acoustic fence
Prior to commencement of development, detailed drawings of the proposed acoustic fence
shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The detail
thereby approved shall be carried out fully in accordance with the approved details and
completed before the occupation of the development, and thereafter retained for the life of the
development.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the fence complies with the
requirements of the Noise Assessment (Acoustics Report A1371 R01) dated 2nd November
2018.

8.

Artificial Lighting (external)
No commencement shall take place until a report detailing the lighting scheme and predicted
illuminance levels at neighbouring residential properties has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Council.
The scheme shall include a plan illustrating the illuminance levels across the development site
up to and including nearby off site residential windows and gardens which may be affected.
The level of illuminance should be appropriate to the character of the surrounding area as a
whole.
Artificial lighting to the development must meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior
Lighting Installations in table 2 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the
Reduction of Obtrusive Lighting, GN01:2011.
Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining residential occupiers and the
nocturnal ecological interests of the site.

9.

Protection of Retained Trees during the Construction Period
No work of any kind shall take place on the site until the protective fences have been erected
around the retained trees in the position and to the specification shown on Drawing No.
BHA_324_02. The Local Planning Authority shall be given not less than two weeks prior
written notice by the developer of the commencement of works on the site in order that the
council may verify in writing that the approved tree protection measures are in place when the
work commences. The approved fence(s) shall be in place before any equipment, machinery
or materials are brought on to the site for the purposes of the development and shall be
maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the
site. Within the fenced area(s) there shall be no scaffolding, no stockpiling of any materials or
soil, no machinery or other equipment parked or operated, no traffic over the root system, no
changes to the soil level, no excavation of trenches, no site huts, no fires lit, no dumping of

Page 154

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
toxic chemicals and no retained trees shall be used for winching purposes. If any retained tree
is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place and
that tree shall be of such size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be
specified in writing by the council.
Under no circumstances should the tree protection be moved during the period of the
development and until all works are completed and all materials and machinery are removed.
Landscaping works within protected areas is to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority
and carried out when all other construction and landscaping works are complete.
Reason: To protect the retained trees from damage during construction, including all ground
works and works that may be required by other conditions, and in recognition of the
contribution which the retained tree(s) give(s) and will continue to give to the amenity of the
area in line with Policy DM17.
10.

Living roof
Before the relevant part of work is begun, a method statement provided by a qualified
ecological consultant shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority for the creation of a living roof on the proposed main office building on site which
include wildflowers and does not employ a significant area of Sedum (Stonecrop). This shall
include details of the layout and area, construction, design (to include the provision of features
for invertebrates shown on a site plan including stone and log piles, piles of pure sand 20 to 30
cm deep, coils of rope and areas of bare ground, varying depths of substrate varying from 10
to at least 20 cm in height with troughs and mounds shown in profile on a plan, details of the
seed mix and planting) and maintenance of the living roof. The use of egg-sized pebbles shall
be avoided because gulls and crows may pick the pebbles up and drop them. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the statement or any amendment
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To conform with Policy DM29 in the Local Plan which states that 'proposals for new
buildings will be expected to incorporate opportunities for green infrastructure such as green
roofs, green walls and green decks

11.

Renewable energy - PV
Prior to installation, details of the PV panels (including the exact location, dimensions, design/
technical specification) together with calculation of C02 emissions reductions to achieve a
minimum 20% reduction on residual emissions from renewable energy in line with the
approved sustainability statement should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and
approved in writing. The panels shall be installed prior to the commencement of the use and
thereafter retained.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions

12.

Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy
and associated detailed design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage
for the site using SuDS methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with
the approved Sustainable Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and
maintained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Page 155

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory
means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the
lifetime of the proposal.
Pre occupation condition(s)
13.

Land affected by contamination - Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with the requirements of Condition 3 and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of Condition 4,
which is to be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority in accordance with condition 5.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

14.

C26

Flood Evacuation Plan - Commercial Property

No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the applicant
has submitted to and had approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a Flood Warning
and Evacuation Plan (FEP). This Plan shall include the following information:
* command & control (decision making process and communications to ensure activation of
FEP);
* training and exercising of personnel on site (H& S records of to whom and when);
* flood warning procedures (in terms of receipt and transmission of information and to whom);
* site evacuation procedures and routes; and
* provision for identified safe refuges (who goes there and resources to sustain them).
The FEP shall be reviewed at intervals not exceeding 3 years, and will form part of the Health
& Safety at Work Register maintained by the applicant.
Reason: To limit the risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of flood
management on the site
15.

Noise from development
All recommendation detailed in the Noise Assessments submitted with the application shall be
implemented in full prior to the commencement of the use permitted and be permanently
maintained.
Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining residential occupiers.

Page 156

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
16.

Tree planting plan - Landscaping
The development hereby approved shall not be used until details for replacement planting, in
line with Bristol Tree Replacement Standard (Policy DM17), to be illustrated on a landscaping
plan are submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. It shall include:
- A schedule detailing sizes and numbers of all proposed trees/plants
- Sufficient specification to ensure successful establishment and survival of new planting.
The planting shall be carried out no later than during the first planting season following the
date when the development hereby permitted is ready for occupation or in accordance with a
program, details of which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning
authority. All planted materials shall be maintained for 5 years and any trees removed, dying,
being severely damaged or become seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall be
replaced with others of a similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory and in line with
Bristol City Council Policy DM17

17.

Energy and Sustainability in accordance with statement
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures,
renewable energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into
the design and construction of the development in full accordance with the Climate Change &
Sustainability Statement (Energy Saving Experts, received 7th June 2018) prior to occupation.
A total 21.1% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions beyond Part L 2013 Building Regulations
in line with the energy hierarchy shall be targeted, and a minimum 20% reduction in carbon
dioxide emissions below residual emissions through renewable technologies shall be
achieved.
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and
can adapt to a changing climate in accordance with policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BCS14
(sustainable energy), BCS15 (Sustainable design and construction), and DM29 (Design of new
buildings).

18.

Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the
car/vehicle parking area shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter,
the area shall be kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles associated
with the development
Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development.

19.

Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept
free of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.

Page 157

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
Post occupation management
20.

Precautionary Method of Working (PMW)
The development hereby approved shall accord with the measures set out in the approved
Precautionary Method of Working (PMW) set out in the Ecological management Plan (received
9th November 2018) with respect to vegetation and site clearance and the potential presence
of nesting birds and legally protected reptiles and any other legally protected and priority
species including badgers and hedgehogs.
Reason: To ensure the protection of legally protected and priority (Section 41) species which
are a material planning consideration.

21.

Premises Management Plan
The premises shall only be used in accordance with the Premises Management Plan received
9th November 2018 submitted with the application.
Reason: in the interests of residential amenity

22.

Hours open to customers
No customers shall remain on the premises outside the hours of 07:00-20:00 Monday to
Friday, 08:00-18:00 on Saturday, and 10:00- 16:00 on Sundays and bank holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

23.

Container Office
The proposed container office shall be set at a minimum of 0.4m above the existing ground
level.
Reason: To reduce flood risk to the proposed development.

25.

Flood resilience
The development shall be carried out fully in accordance with the measures set out under the
approved details of the flood resilient construction measures received 9th November 2018.
Reason: To reduce flood risk to the proposed development.

List of approved plans
26.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
1646(L)00 Location map, received 18 June 2018
1646(L)02 Existing site plan, received 18 June 2018
1646(L)05 A Existing site topographical survey, received 13 September 2018
1646(L)06 Existing elevations, received 18 June 2018
1646(L)07 Existing sections and elevations, received 18 June 2018
1646(L)08 Existing sections and elevations, received 18 June 2018

Page 158

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ
1646(L)10 D Proposed site plan, received 4 December 2018
1646(L)11 A Proposed indicative part sections and elevations, received 9 November 2018
1646(L)12 B Proposed sections and elevations, received 12 December 2018
1646(L)13 B Proposed sections and elevations, received 12 December 2018
1646(L)14 B Proposed sections and elevations, received 12 December 2018
1646(L)15 Proposed gated entrance, received 18 June 2018
1646(L)16 A Proposed office, received 9 November 2018
510 Drainage contributing areas plan, received 18 June 2018
511 Outline drainage strategy option a - gravity system, received 18 June 2018
Climate change and sustainability statement, received 18 June 2018
Premises Management Plan, received 9 November 2018
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Advices
1.

The living roofs should be covered with local low-nutrient status aggregates (not topsoil) and
no nutrients added. Ideally aggregates should be dominated by gravels with 10 - 20% of
sands. On top of this there should be varying depths of sterilised sandy loam between 0 - 3 cm
deep. An overall substrate depth of at least 10 cm of crushed demolition aggregate or pure
crushed brick is desirable. The roof should include areas of bare ground and not be entirely
seeded (to allow wild plants to colonise) and not employ Sedum (stonecrop) because this has
limited benefits for wildlife. To benefit certain invertebrates the roof should include local
substrates, stones, shingle and gravel with troughs and mounds, piles of pure sand 20 - 30 cm
deep for solitary bees and wasps to nest in, small logs, coils of rope and log piles of dry dead
wood to provide invertebrate niches (the use of egg-sized pebbles should be avoided because
gulls and crows may pick the pebbles up and drop them). Deeper areas of substrate which
are at least 20 cm deep are valuable to provide refuges for animals during dry spells. An area
of wildflower meadow can also be seeded on the roof for pollinating insects. Please see
www.thegreenroofcentre.co.uk and http://livingroofs.org/ for further information and the
following reference: English Nature (2006). Living roofs. ISBN 1 85716 934.4

2.

Advisory Note - PV design guidance
The applicant is reminded that evidence that the PV design has been approved by an MCS
(Microgeneration Certification Scheme) accredited installer to ensure shading is taken into
account within the energy generation calculations should be submitted within energy
statements and PV details.

3.

Construction site noise: Due to the proximity of existing noise sensitive development and the
potential for disturbance arising from contractors' operations, the developers' attention is
drawn to Section 60 and 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974, to BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2:
2009 Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites code of practice for basic
information and procedures for noise and vibration control" and the code of practice adopted
by Bristol City Council with regard to "Construction Noise Control". Information in this respect
can be obtained from Pollution Control, City Hall, Bristol City Council, PO Box 3176, Bristol
BS3 9FS.

4.

BS Standard - tree work: Any works should be completed in accordance with British Standard
3998: Recommendations for tree work, you are advised that the work should be undertaken by
a competent and suitably qualified tree contractor.

5.

Tree Protection: You are advised to refer to BS5837 : 2012 Trees in relation to construction
for detailed information on types of tree protection, protection zones and other relevant
matters.

Page 159

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/03064/F : The Old Sports Centre West Town Road Bristol BS11 9FQ

6.

Bats and bat roosts: Anyone who kills, injures or disturbs bats, obstructs access to bat roosts
or damages or disturbs bat roosts, even when unoccupied by bats, is guilty of an offence
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 and
the Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations Act. Prior to commencing work you
should ensure that no bats or bat roosts would be affected. If it is suspected that a bat or bat
roost is likely to be affected by the proposed works, you should consult English Nature
(Taunton office 01823 283211).

7.

Wessex Water requirements: It will be necessary to comply with Wessex Water's main
drainage requirements and advice and further information can be obtained from
http://www.wessexwater.co.uk.

8.

You are advised that the planting season is normally November to February.

9.

Wales and West Utilities gas pipelines may be at risk during construction and you should
contact PlantProtectionEnquiries@wwutilites.co.uk before starting any work.

10.

National Grid
As the development is situated close to overhead power lines, you should contact the National
Grid for further advice at the following address:
Land and Development Group
National Grid Transco
NGT House
Warwick Technology Park
Gallows Hill
Warwick
CV34 6DA
Tel: 01926 653000

Page 160

Supporting Documents
3.

The Old Sports Centre, West Town Road
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Proposed site plan
Proposed gated entrance
Proposed office
Proposed part elevations & section
Proposed sections & elevations A-A & B-B
Proposed sections & elevations C-C & D-D
Proposed section and elevations E-E

Page 161

Page 162

Page 163

Page 164

Page 165

Page 166

Page 167

Page 168

Agenda Item 8d
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
WARD:

Bedminster

SITE ADDRESS:

7 Beryl Road Bristol BS3 3DH

APPLICATION NO:

18/05778/H

ITEM NO. 4

CONTACT OFFICER:

Monica Forde

Full Planning (Householders)

DETERMINATION
28 December 2018
DEADLINE:
Proposed demolition of existing extension and erection of replacement single storey rear extension.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

We Are Not Architects
17 Sandbach Road
Brislington
Bristol
BS4 3RZ

APPLICANT:

Ms Amy Prendergast
7 Beryl Road
Bristol
BS3 3DH

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

21/12/18 12:27

Page 169

Committee report

Item no. 4
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/05778/H: 7 Beryl Road Bristol BS3 3DH

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY
This application is being presented to Development Control Committee due to the applicant being a
Bristol City Council Planning Officer. Paragraph 12.1 of the Member and Officer Code of Conduct
confirms that:
“Officers must not play any part in the processing of any application where they have, or can be
perceived to have, a conflict of an interest. Such interests would include financial or professional
interests and the interests of family and friends.”
The application site is a two-storey mid terraced property on the west side of Beryl Road, Bedminster
in south Bristol.
Full householder planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing rear extension(s) and
erection of a single storey extension.
Key issues in the assessment of the application are design and amenity.
The report below assesses the application against the required planning policies, the development is
found to be acceptable and the recommendation of this report therefore, is that full planning
permission is granted.
SITE DESCRIPTION
This application relates to the dwelling known as 7 Beryl Road, situated in the Bedminster ward of the
city, in south Bristol.
The existing dwelling on site is a two-storey mid-terraced property, with a single storey rear extension
and a single storey sunroom adjacent to the boundary with no. 6 Beryl Road.
The property is not located in a conservation area.
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
The following certificate of lawful development is currently pending:
18/05779/CP - Application for a Certificate of Proposed Development - Proposed rear 'dormer' roof
extension and 2no. rooflights.
APPLICATION
This application seeks permission for the erection of a single storey rear extension to the existing
dwelling.
The existing rear extension and sunroon would be demolished as part of the proposals.
The proposed extension would be situated on the rear (south) side of the host dwelling. It would
project 6m from the rear elevation and would be 3.9m wide, extending the full width of the site. The
extension would have a hipped roof and be 3.3m in height to the ridge, dropping to 2.4m at the eaves,
on the boundaries with 6 and 8 Beryl Road.
Bi-fold doors are proposed on the rear elevation in addition to 4no. rooflights.
Materials would be similar in appearance to the main dwelling.

Page 170

Item no. 4
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/05778/H: 7 Beryl Road Bristol BS3 3DH
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
Neighbouring properties were consulted on the proposed development with an expiry date of
26/11/2018. One neutral comment was received in response to the consultation. This queried what
was being proposed as part of the application.
The case officer contacted the neighbour to confirm the proposed changes.
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012
Bristol Local Plan Comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocation and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2015 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017.
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
SPD2

A Guide for Designing House Alterations and Extensions (October 2005)

KEY ISSUES
A. IS THE DESIGN OF THE PROPOSED EXTENSION ACCEPTABLE?
Policy BCS21 states that new development should be of high quality, and should contribute positively
to an area’s character and identity.
Policy DM26 sets out that the layout and form of new development should contribute to the creation of
quality urban design. The height, scale and massing of development should be appropriate to the
immediate context.
Policy DM30 sets out the design principles for alterations to existing buildings. Extensions to existing
buildings are expected to respect the siting, scale, form, proportions, materials and the overall design
and character of both the host building and the surrounding area.
SPD2 states that single storey rear extensions should not extend any further than 3.5 metres from the
rear of the existing dwelling.
The proposed development includes the demolition of an existing rear extension and sunroom and the
erection of a wraparound single storey rear extension. It is considered that the proposed development
would consolidate the existing extensions and be an improvement to the existing situation in terms of
design.
The proposed single storey rear extension would extend 6 metres beyond the rear elevation of the
main dwelling. Whilst this exceeds the guidance of SPD2, the proposed rear extension would project
approximately 1.2m less than the existing utility extension and infill the existing 1.4metre narrow strip
of garden. As such, the overall depth would be less than the existing protrusion and this length is
considered acceptable.
The proposed hipped roof would be 2.4m in height on the boundary with neighbouring properties at 6
and 8 Beryl Road; which is 0.2m lower than the height of the existing sunroom.
The design would be in keeping and subservient to the existing dwelling, which is supported.

Page 171

Item no. 4
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/05778/H: 7 Beryl Road Bristol BS3 3DH

The submitted plans state that the proposed materials would be similar in appearance to that of the
existing dwelling. The proposed extension would be located on the rear elevation which would be of
limited visibility from the public realm and is considered acceptable.
A condition requiring that materials match the existing property should be attached to any permission
to ensure that the design is in keeping with the host dwelling.
In summary, the proposal is considered to respect policies BCS21, DM26 and DM30 as well as SPD2
guidance and would be acceptable in terms of design.
B. WOULD THE PROPOSALS BE ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY?
Policy BCS21 states that new development should safeguard the amenity of existing development.
Policy DM30 states that alterations to existing development should safeguard the amenity of the host
premises and neighbouring occupiers and leave sufficient usable external private space for the
occupiers of the building.
SPD2 states that rear extensions should be designed so as not to cross a 45 degree line (on plan and
elevation) projected from the mid-point of an adjoining neighbour’s nearest ground floor habitable
room window which is perpendicular to the proposed extension.
The proposed rear extension would cross the 45 degree line on elevation and plan. While this is not
compliant with SPD2, it is recognised that the narrow architectural style of terraced dwellings of this
type is a significant constraint in creating rear extensions that can fully satisfy the 45 degree rule,
particularly on plan.
Moreover, considering the existing sunroom is 2.6 metres high on the boundary wall between the
property and the adjoining neighbour, and the proposed extension would be 0.2m lower, it is
considered that the proposed development would not exacerbate the current situation.
Additionally, the rear elevation of No. 6 is dual aspect, with south facing windows on the rear elevation
which would ensure that the neighbouring dwelling continues to receive satisfactory sunlight.
The proposed extension would not impact No.8 on account of its existing extension.
In summary, it is considered that the proposed development would not cause unacceptable harm to
residential amenity and would respect policies BCS21, DM30 and SPD2 guidance.
CONCLUSION
The proposed development is considered to comply with Bristol City Council policy. The design is
considered to be acceptable and there would be no detrimental impact on residential amenity. It is
recommended that planning permission be approved for the proposed development.
HOW MUCH COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) WILL THIS DEVELOPMENT BE
REQUIRED TO PAY?
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a new
dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of buildings in
lawful use, are exempt from CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no
CIL is payable.

Page 172

Item no. 4
Development Control Committee A – 9 January 2019
Application No. 18/05778/H: 7 Beryl Road Bristol BS3 3DH
RECOMMENDED

GRANTED subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission

The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the date of
this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
Post occupation management
2. External Works to Match
All new external work and finishes and work of making good shall match existing original work
adjacent in respect of materials used, detailed execution and finished appearance except where
indicated otherwise on the approved drawings.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character of the area.
List of approved plans
3. List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the application as
listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in order to discharge other
conditions attached to this decision.
Site Location/ Existing Block Plan No 01. Received 16th November 2018
Site Location/ Proposed Block Plan No 01. Received 16th November 2018
Existing Floor Plans – No 02. – Received 02 November 2018
Existing Elevations – No. 03 – Received 02 November 2018
Existing Sections – No. 04 – Received 02 November 2018
Proposed Floor Plans – No. 05 – Received 02 November 2018
Proposed Elevations – No. 06 – Received 16 November 2018
Proposed Sections – No. 07 – Received 02 November 2018
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Page 173

Supporting Documents
4.

7 Beryl Road
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Existing elevations
Existing floor plans
Existing sections
Proposed elevations
Proposed floor plans
Proposed sections
Site photos

Page 174

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6 M

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2 M

0.25

0.5

0.75

1

1.5 M

0.5

1

1.5

2

3

M

1

2

3

4

6

M

2

4

6

8

12 M

5

10

15

20

30 M

12.5

25

37.5

50

75 M

1:10
0
1:20
0
1:25
0
1:50
0
1:100
0
1:200
0
1:500

PARTY WALL

0
1:1250
Status|

FOR COMMENT
Revisions|

v01 - Initial proposals.
v02 - Second proposal with internal rearrangement of spaces.
v03 - Boiler cupboard and wardrobe amends.

Page 175

Notes|

Drawing Number|

Drawing Scale|

03

1:100

Drawing|

Existing Elevations
PARTY WALL

Project Reference|

201842
Site Address|

7 Beryl Road, Bedminster, Bristol, BS3 3DH
Client|

Amy Prendergast/Matt Ryan
Project|

Loft conversion, extension and associated internal works

WANA

We Are Not Architects is the trading name of WANA ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
Registered in England and Wales No. 10691495|17 Sandbach Road, Brislington, Bristol, BS4 3RZ.

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6 M

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2 M

0.25

0.5

0.75

1

1.5 M

0.5

1

1.5

2

3

M

1

2

3

4

6

M

2

4

6

8

12 M

5

10

15

20

30 M

12.5

25

37.5

50

75 M

1:10
0
1:20
0
1:25
0
1:50
0
1:100
0
1:200
0
1:500
0
1:1250
Status|

UTILITY
CH+2325

FOR COMMENT
Revisions|

v01 - Initial proposals.
IC

WC

v02 - Second proposal with internal rearrangement of spaces.

CH+2325

v03 - Boiler cupboard and wardrobe amends.

SVP

SUN ROOM

KITCHEN

VAULTED CEILING

BATHROOM

CH+2650

CH+2575

Page 176

Notes|

LIVING
CH+2650

BEDROOM
CH+2625

OFFICE

CH+2200 UNDER RIDGE

LIVING
CH+2650

BEDROOM
CH+2625

Drawing Number|

Drawing Scale|

02

1:100

Drawing|

Existing Floor Plans
Project Reference|

201842
Site Address|

7 Beryl Road, Bedminster, Bristol, BS3 3DH
Client|

Amy Prendergast/Matt Ryan
Project|

Loft conversion, extension and associated internal works

WANA

We Are Not Architects is the trading name of WANA ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
Registered in England and Wales No. 10691495|17 Sandbach Road, Brislington, Bristol, BS4 3RZ.

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6 M

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2 M

0.25

0.5

0.75

1

1.5 M

0.5

1

1.5

2

3

M

1

2

3

4

6

M

2

4

6

8

12 M

5

10

15

20

30 M

12.5

25

37.5

50

75 M

1:10
0
1:20
0
1:25

2200

0
1:50

34.00°

0
1:100
0
1:200

2625

0
1:500
0
1:1250

FOR COMMENT

2325

2650

2550
1660

2325

Status|

Revisions|

v01 - Initial proposals.
v02 - Second proposal with internal rearrangement of spaces.
v03 - Boiler cupboard and wardrobe amends.

Page 177

B

A

Notes|

C

34.00°

2200

D

Drawing Number|

Drawing Scale|

04

1:100

2575

2625

Drawing|

Existing Sections
Project Reference|

201842
Site Address|

1660

2650

2550

2650

7 Beryl Road, Bedminster, Bristol, BS3 3DH
Client|

Amy Prendergast/Matt Ryan
Project|

Loft conversion, extension and associated internal works

WANA

We Are Not Architects is the trading name of WANA ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
Registered in England and Wales No. 10691495|17 Sandbach Road, Brislington, Bristol, BS4 3RZ.

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6 M

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2 M

0.25

0.5

0.75

1

1.5 M

0.5

1

1.5

2

3

M

1

2

3

4

6

M

2

4

6

8

12 M

5

10

15

20

30 M

12.5

25

37.5

50

75 M

1:10
0
1:20
0
1:25
0
1:50
0
1:100
0
1:200
0
1:500

PARTY WALL

0
1:1250
Status|

FOR COMMENT
Revisions|

v01 - Initial proposals.
v02 - Second proposal with internal rearrangement of spaces.
v03 - Boiler cupboard and wardrobe amends.

Page 178

Notes|

MATERIALS SIMILAR IN APPEARANCE TO THE MAIN DWELLING HOUSE

Drawing Number|

Drawing Scale|

06

1:100

Drawing|

Proposed Elevations
PARTY WALL

Project Reference|

201842
Site Address|

7 Beryl Road, Bedminster, Bristol, BS3 3DH
Client|

Amy Prendergast/Matt Ryan
Project|

Loft conversion, extension and associated internal works

WANA

We Are Not Architects is the trading name of WANA ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
Registered in England and Wales No. 10691495|17 Sandbach Road, Brislington, Bristol, BS4 3RZ.

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6 M

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2 M

0.25

0.5

0.75

1

1.5 M

0.5

1

1.5

2

3

M

1

2

3

4

6

M

2

4

6

8

12 M

5

10

15

20

30 M

12.5

25

37.5

50

75 M

1:10
0
1:20
0
1:25
0
1:50
0
1:100
0
1:200
0
1:500
0

3925

1:1250

Page 179

BH TO SE SPECIFICATION

STRUCTURAL OPENING

VAULTED CEILING

STRUCTURAL OPENING
BH TO SE SPECIFICATION

KITCHEN

FOR COMMENT

CHECK SUPPORT FOR MASONRY ABOVE

LIVING/DINING

Revisions|

v01 - Initial proposals.
v02 - Second proposal with internal rearrangement of spaces.
v03 - Boiler cupboard and wardrobe amends.

REMOVE STACK

BATHROOM

CH+2650

CH+2575

4015

BOILER

Notes|

STRUCTURAL OPENING

WC
CH+2650

STORE

1500

750
REMOVE STACK

BEDROOM
CH+2625

2400

COATS

REVERT LOFT TO STORAGE

2400

LIVING
CH+2650

3460

3425

DINING

4285

UTILITY

NEW STAIR TO CURRENT REGS
800
750

BH TO SE SPECIFICATION

750

REMOVE STACK

REBUILD PARTY WALL ASTRIDE THE BOUNDARY

6000

Status|

BEDROOM
CH+2625

Drawing Number|

Drawing Scale|

05

1:100

Drawing|

Proposed Floor Plans
Project Reference|

201842
Site Address|

7 Beryl Road, Bedminster, Bristol, BS3 3DH
Client|

Amy Prendergast/Matt Ryan
Project|

Loft conversion, extension and associated internal works

WANA

We Are Not Architects is the trading name of WANA ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
Registered in England and Wales No. 10691495|17 Sandbach Road, Brislington, Bristol, BS4 3RZ.

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6 M

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2 M

0.25

0.5

0.75

1

1.5 M

0.5

1

1.5

2

3

M

1

2

3

4

6

M

2

4

6

8

12 M

5

10

15

20

30 M

12.5

25

37.5

50

75 M

1:10
0
1:20
0
1:25
0
1:50
0
1:100
0
1:200

2625

0

2000

1:500
0

SERVICE VOID

1:1250

FOR COMMENT

2000

2650

2400

2175

2200

3260

Status|

Revisions|

v01 - Initial proposals.
v02 - Second proposal with internal rearrangement of spaces.
v03 - Boiler cupboard and wardrobe amends.

Page 180

B

A

Notes|

C

34.00°

D

Drawing Number|

Drawing Scale|

07

1:100

2575

2625

Drawing|

Proposed Sections
Project Reference|

201842
Site Address|

7 Beryl Road, Bedminster, Bristol, BS3 3DH
2650

2400

2650

CHANNEL GUTTER

Client|

Amy Prendergast/Matt Ryan
Project|

Loft conversion, extension and associated internal works

WANA

We Are Not Architects is the trading name of WANA ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
Registered in England and Wales No. 10691495|17 Sandbach Road, Brislington, Bristol, BS4 3RZ.

18.05778.H - 7 Beryl Road Site Photos

Above: Rear elevation of 7 Beryl Road showing existing extension and sunroom
Below: Rear elevations showing relationship with 8 Beryl Road (Left)

Page 181

Above: Rear of 7Beryl Road showing relationship with 6 Beryl Road (right)
Below: Existing sun room and extension

Page 182

